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City of Minet

Finance Department

April 22,2016

To the Honorable Mayor,
City Council, and

Citizens of the

City of Minot, North Dakota

Ladies and Gentlemen,

The City Council requires an annual audit of the
books of account, financial records, and transactions
of all administrative departments of the City by
independent certified public accountants selected by
the City Council. Pursuant to that requirement, we
hereby issue the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report of the City of Minot, North Dakota, for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2015. The City
Finance Department prepares this set of financial
statements in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
and audited in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America
by a firm of licensed certified public accountants.

This report consists of management’s representations
concerning the finances of the City of Minot (the
City). Consequently, management assumes full
responsibility for the completeness and reliability for
all the information presented in this report. To
provide a reasonable basis for making these
representations, management of the City has
established a comprehensive internal control
framework designed both to protect the government’s
assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile
sufficient reliable information for the preparation of
these financial statements in conformity with GAAP.
Because the cost of internal controls should not
outweigh their benefits, the City’s comprehensive
framework of internal controls provides reasonable
rather than absolute assurance the financial
statements will be free from material misstatement.

As management, we assert, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, these financial statements are

complete and reliable in all material respects.

Eide Bailly, LLP, a firm of licensed certified public
accountants, have audited the City’s financial
statements. The goal of the independent audit was to
provide reasonable assurance the financial statements
of the City for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2015 are free of material misstatement. The
independent audit involved examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management; and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. The independent
auditor's report has been included as the first
component of the financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of
the City was part of a broader, federally mandated
“Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of
federal grants and/or agencies. The standards
governing Single Audit engagements require the
independent auditor to report not only on the fair
presentation of the financial statements, but also on
the audited government’s internal controls and
compliance with legal requirements, with special
emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements
involving the administration of federal awards.
These reports are available in the Single Audit
Section of this report.

GAAP requires management to provide a narrative
introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany
the basic financial statements in the form of
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A).
This letter of transmittal is designed to complement
the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with
the MD&A. The City’s MD&A is immediately
following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the City of Minot

The City, incorporated on July 16, 1887, is located in
the north central part of North Dakota. The City

currently occupies a land area of approximately 27.48
square miles and serves a population of 40,888 based

* The Magic City *

PO Box 5006 « Minot, North Dakota 58702-5006  (701) 857-4784 « Fax (701) 857-4782
Website: http://www.minotnd.org



The Honorable Mayor, City Council and Citv Manager

on the 2010 census. Located twelve miles north of
the City, and a definite part of the community, is one
of the nation's largest Air Force bases. The economic
impact of the Minot Air Force Base on the City
during 2015 was approximately $578 million. During
20135, the Minot Air Force Base had nearly $125
million in construction, services and other
expenditures. Minot Air Force Base serves as the
home for over 12,107 active duty personne! and their
dependents. Many of the personnei assigned to the
base choose to reside in the City during their tour of
duty and after their discharge. The relationship
between the citizens of Minot and the citizens of the
base is one of cooperation and friendliness.

The City is empowered to levy a property tax on real
property located within its boundaries. It is also
empowered by state statute to extend its corporate
limits by annexation, which occurs periodically when
deemed appropriate by the City Council. During
20135, the property valuations for building permits
decreased by over $78.2 million compared to 2014
due in part to the flood recovery and stabilization of
housing in the City. The majority of the decreases
were due to the following: new residential buildings
decreased by $49.6 million primarily due to multi-
family residences and single family declining by
£34.1 million and $10.5 million, respectively; new
nonresidential buildings increased by $12.6 million
primarily due to an increase in commercial and
nonresidential remodels and additions of $24.0
million and an increase of $19.8 million in schools, a
decrease of $22.5 million in office, banks, and
professional buildings, and a decrease in industrial
and manufacturing and services stations and repair
garages of $5.9 million and $5.2 million,
respectively.

The City has had a healthy level of growth in
property values in the past couple of years. Based on
the results of the City Council passing an ordinance,
the first penny sales tax was reallocated to the
following as of July 1, 2014: property tax relief 10%;
economic development 15%; improvements fund
25%; and flood control 50%. This reallocation
continues to enable the City to reduce the number of
mills levied.

In 1972, the citizens of the City voted to operate
under a Home Rule Charter, with a council-manager
form of government. Policy-making and legislative
authority vest in a city council consisting of the

mayor and 14 council members. The City Council is
responsible, among other things, for passing
ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing
committees, and hiring both the city manager and city
attorney. The city manager is responsible for
carrying out the policies and ordinances of the
council, and for overseeing the day-to-day operations
of the city government. The council is elected on a
non-partisan basis. Council members serve four-year
staggered terms, with seven council members elected
every two years by ward. The mayor is elected to
serve a four-year term and is elected at large.

The City provides a full range of services
contemplated by statute or charter. This includes
police and fire protection, the construction and
maintenance of highways, streets, and other
infrastructure, sanitation, planning and community
development, water and sewer, cemetery, airport, and
general administrative services necessary to serve the
citizens of the City.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the
City’s financial planning and control. All
departments and agencies submit requests for
appropriations to the city manager in June of each
year for the ensuing year’s budget, which begins
January 1. Budget-to-actual comparisons are
provided in this report for each individual
governmental fund for which an appropriated annual
budget has been adopted. For the general fund and
major special revenue funds this comparison is
presented on pages 26 through 29 as part of the basic
financial statements for the governmental funds. For
nonmajor governmental funds, other than the general
fund, with appropriated annual budgets, this
comparison is in the governmental fund subsection of
this report, beginning on page 81.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements
is best understood when it is considered from the
broader perspective of the specific environment
within which the City operates.

Local Economy. Minot’s centralized location in
North America and its high-quality transportation
make it an attractive site for both businesses and
manufacturers. The sales tax base, the oil industry,
and construction are all factors that build a solid
foundation for business and industry to enjoy greater



The Honorable Mavor, City Council and Citv Manager

productivity and profitability.

Sales Tax Collections Property Tax Levied
2011 § 21,612,185 2011 $12,736,802
2012 26,705,354 2012 0,408,148
2013 24,850,061 2013 12,449,978
2014 27,245,883 2014 14,505,927
2015 26,035,551 2015 16,451,633

During 2011, the City incurred the worst flooding in
history. Despite the millions of dollars in damages,
the financial position of the City remains sound with
management continuing to administer the financial
policies established by the City Council in a prudent
and effective manner as shown in the table below. A
continuation of that cooperative effort will assure the
citizens a healthy future.

Assets & Deferred Qutflows, Liabilities & Deferred
Inflows and Net Position Per Capita
Total Total
Assets & Liabilities

Deferred & Deferred  Net
Population Outflows  Inflows  Position
2011 40,888 % 7205 § L2000 § 6,005
2012 40,888 8,970 1,194 7,776
2013 40,888 12,401 1,738 10,663
2014 40,888 16,467 2331 14,136
2015 40,888 19413 4,625 15053

Expenses and Propram Revenues Per Capita
Charges  Operating Capital Change

for Grants antt Grants and  in Net
Population Expenses  Services  Coniributions Contributions  Pesilion

2011 40888 $ 1533 S M3 & 187 & 171 8 607
012 40,888 1,702 897 308 L LTI
2013 40,838 1,638 68 3% 1,160 1472
2014 40,888 1858 668 201 1,869 1,844
2015 40,888 2641 913 414 3878 igiz

Ratio of Net Posifion to Expenses

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
2011 3.97 3.67
2012 4.35 5.02
2013 3.27 6.43
2014 5.20 8.12
2015 4.39 8.50

Long-Term Financial Planning. The City
continually plans for anticipated construction projects
and infrastructure needs. Cash reserves have been
capped by the Finance Director effective September

Vi

30, 2011 in the Sales Tax Northwest Area Water
Supply Project (NAWS) Fund that received a 1%
dedicated sales tax. These cash reserves will allow
continued funding of the NAWS project rather than
issuing debt for the project. The NAWS project will
bring Missouri River water to Minot and Northwest
North Dakota, ensuring an adequate water supply for
the future. The project is pending determination of
where the treatment of the water will take place. The
project will extend to Northwest North Dakota. The
voters opted to continue collecting the 1% sales tax,
formerly for NAWS, and dedicate 30% to property
tax relief, 40% to infrastructure projects and 30% to
community facilities. However, if additional funds
are needed for NAWS, the Finance Director may
reallocate funds back to the project.

The City of Minot is also the recipient of three
separate atlocations of funding from the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development
Community Block Grant — Disaster Recovery Funds.
The first allocation was in April 2012 for
$67,575,964. The second allocation was in April
2014 for $35,056,000. The third allocation was in
January 2016 for $74,340,770. The first allocation is
considered “no year funds”, which means there is not
a date by which the funds must be spent. However,
the City has completed an Action Plan, which has
been approved by the City Council for expenditure
for the funds to include housing rehabilitation and
reconstruction, and public infrastructure. The second
allocation has obligated a portion of the gross funds
to home acquisitions, demolitions, and street repairs
at this time. The obligated funds must be spent in
two years. The third allocation will be obligated to
reduce flood risk and increase resilience, build
affordable, resilient neighborhoods, and foster
economic resilience and diversification.

The City has completed several major highway
projects in recent years with additional projects
planned for 2016. Other projects planned for the
future include water and sewer, storm sewer, and
special assessment projects. These projects will be
funded with CDBG-DR, oil impact grants, storm
sewer development funds, State Water Commission
funds, and debt, thereby increasing the per capita
debt. The per capita debt is deceiving in that not all
the debt service payments will be paid through
general property taxes but rather with dedicated
revenue sources to fund portions of each of these
projects.



The Honorable Mavor, City Council and City Manager

Awards. The Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence
in Financial Reporting to the City of Minot for its’
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2014. This was the
36™ consecutive year the City has achieved this
prestigious award. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, the City must publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial report. This report
must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of
one year only. We believe our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to
meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements and we are submitting it to the
Government Finance Officers Association to
determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgements. The preparation of this report
on a timely basis could not be accomplished without
the efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff
of the Finance Department. [ would like to express
my appreciation to all members of the department
who assisted and contributed to the preparation of
this report. I would also like to thank the Mayor and
City Council for their unfailing support and for
maintaining the highest standards of professionalism
in the management of the City’s finances.

Respectfully submitted,

\ B Wb
Cindy K. Hemphi
Finance Director
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CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Minot, North Dakota

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Minot, North
Dakota (the City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, and the refated notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or etror.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
www.eidebailly.com

4310 17th Ave. 8. ] P.O. Box 2545 | Fargo, ND 58108-2545 | T 701.239.8500 | F 701.239.8600 [ EOE



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the govermmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Minot, North Dakota, as of December 31,
2015, and the respective changes in financial position and, where, applicable, cash flows thereof and the
respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund and the Sales Tax NAWS Fund, for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in notes 1 and 5 to the financial statements, the City has adopted the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 68 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and GASB No. 71 Pension
Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date, which has resulted in a
restatement of the net position as of January 1, 2015. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this
matter

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, schedule of contributions, schedule of net pension liability, schedule of changes
in net pension liability, schedule of investment returns, and schedule of funding progress be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Minot, North Dakota’s financial statements. The introductory section, schedule of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance — budget and actual — major debt service fund,
combining and individual nonmajor fund statements and schedules, capital assets used in the operation of
governmental funds, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and
is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The schedule of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance — budget and actual — major debt
service fund, combining and individual nonmajor fund statements and schedules, capital assets used in the
operation of governmental funds, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.



The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 20, 2016 on our
consideration of the City of Minot, North Dakota’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering City of Minot’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

@QM Le7

Fargo, North Dakota
April 20,2016

[#8]
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City of Minot
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
December 31, 2615

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Minot, we are
pleased to offer readers of the City of Minot’s
financial statements this narrative overview and
analysis of the City’s financial activities for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, with
comparative data for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2014. We encourage readers to
consider it in conjunction with the additional
information presented in the accompanying letter
of transmittal, the basic financial statements, the
fund financial statements, and the notes to the
financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

s  The net position of the City increased by
over $107.1 million or 21.1% after
restatement. This increase was primarily
due to an increase in capital grants of over
§48.0 million. The majority of the grants
were for infrastructure improvements, In
addition, general revenue increased by over
$6.5 million due to an increase in property
taxes levied for general purposes of
$3,510,949 and an increase in property
taxes levied for debt of §1,749,009. The net
position of governmental activities
increased by over $37.3 million or 13.1%
and net position of business type activities
increased by over $69.9 million or 31.3%
after restatement.

» Total cost of all programs was over $107.9
million after restatement. This is an
increase of over $6.9 million from 2014
after restatement. Culture and recreation
increased by over $2.3 million due to the
increase in activity in the sales tax
improvements and sales tax community
facilities funds. Highways and streets
increased by $0.5 million for road work due
to increased traffic on aging roads.

e  The unassigned fund balance for the
General Fund was over $24.6 million or
84.0% of the total general fund
expenditures. This is an increase from
2014 of over $1.9 million.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis serves as an
introduction to the City’s basic financial
statements. The comprehensive annual financial

report presents the following three components

of the financial staternents:

1. Government-wide financial statements
provide information for the City as a whole.

2. Fund financial statements provide detailed
information for the City’s significant funds.

3. Notes to the financial statements provide
additional information essential to
understanding the government-wide and
fund statements.

This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial
statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements
provide readers with a broad overview of the
City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-
sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents
information on all the City’s assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources, with the difference between
the assets plus deferred outflows of resources
and liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources
reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the
City is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information
on how the City’s net position changed during
the most recent fiscal year. This statement uses
the accrual basis of accounting, which means the
City reports changes in net position as soon as
the underlying event that gives rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported
in the statement for some items that will only
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (for
example, uncoliected sales tax, and earned but
unused vacation leave).

Both the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities present information as
follows:

s  Governmental activities — This includes
most of the City’s basic services, with
property and sales taxes, interest
income, user fees and
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intergovernmental revenues supporting
it.

* Business-type activities — This includes
those services which are intended to
recover all or a significant part of their
costs through user fees.

The government-wide financial statements begin
on page 16.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity with a
self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and
other financial resources, together with all
related liabilities and residual equities or
balances, and changes therein, which are
segregated for the purpose of carrying on
specific activities or attaining certain objectives
in accordance with special regulations,
restrictions, or limitations. The City of Minot,
like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

The fund financial statements provide detailed
information about the City’s significant funds —
not the City as a whole. There are three
categories of City funds— governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds
account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the
govermment-wide financial statements. The
governmental fund statements provide a detailed
short-term view of the government operations
and the basic services it provides, and are
reported on the modified accrual basis of
accounting which focuses on available spendable
resources. This allows the reader to evaluate the
City’s short-term financing requirements.
Because the focus of governmental funds is
narrower than the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the
information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may
better understand the long-term impact of the
government’s near-term financing decisions.
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and

the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate the
comparison between the governmental funds and
the government-wide financial statements.

The City maintains 29 individual governmental
funds. The City presents separate information in
the governmental fund balance sheet and
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balances for the general fund, and the
following major funds: sales tax NAWS, special
assessment debt service, highway reserves, and
capital purchases. Data from the other
governmental funds are combined in a single,
aggregate presentation. Combining statements
provide individual fund data for each of these
nonmajor governmental funds, which begin on
page 72.

The City adopts an annual budget for its’
governmental funds. Budgetary comparison
statements demonstrate compliance.

The governmental fund financial statements
begin on page 18.

Proprictary Funds. The City maintains two
types of proprietary funds, enterprise and internal
service. Enterprise funds report activities that
charge for services provided to outside
customers. The enterprise funds are business-
type activities in the government-wide
statements. The City uses enterprise funds to
account for its Airport, Sanitation, and Water and
Sewer operations, as major funds, and its
Cemetery and Parking Authority operations, as
nonmajor funds. Internal Service funds report
activities that provide supplies and services to
other City programs and activities. The City of
Minot uses internal service funds to account for
its central garage and for the self-funded
insurance program. Because these services
predominantly benefit governmental rather than
business-type functions, they have been included
within governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements.
Proprietary fund statements provide the same
type of information as the government-wide
statements, only in more detail. The City
combines both internal service funds in a single,
aggregate presentation in the proprietary fund
financial statements. The City provides
individual fund data for the nonmajor proprictary
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funds in the form of combining statements,
which begin on page 110. Individual fund data
for the internal service funds are also in the form
of combining statements beginning on page 114.
The basic proprietary fund statements begin on
page 30.

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds account for
resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. The City is a trustee for its
employees’ pension and other post-employment
benefit plans. It is also responsible for other
assets held on behalf of others. The City is
responsible for ensuring the assets reported in
these funds are used for their intended purpose.
The City reports fiduciary activities in separate
Statements of Fiduciary Net Position and
Changes in Fiduciary Net Position. These
activities have been excluded from the City’s
other financial statements since the City cannot
use these assets to finance its operations. The
accounting used for fiduciary funds is similar to
proprietary funds. The basic fiduciary fund
statements begin on page 36.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information
essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements are on pages 38-61 of this report.

The City presents combining statements referred
to earlier in connection with nonmajor
governmental funds and internal service funds
immediately following the notes to the financial
statements, Combining and individual fund
statements and schedules are on pages 72-125 of
this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL
ANALYSIS

The following two tables present condensed
information on the City’s Net Position and
Changes in Net Position for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2015, with comparative data for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, Assets
and deferred outflows of resources exceeded
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by
$615,483,714 at the close of the most recent
fiscal year.

The largest portion of the City of Minot’s net
position (74.8%) reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g. land, buildings, equipment,
infrastructure, intangibles, and books); less any
related debt used to acquire those assets that are
still outstanding. The City uses these capital
assets to provide services to its citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the City reports
investment in capital assets net of related debt,
the resources needed to repay this debt comes
from other sources, since the City cannot
liquidate the capital assets to pay the liabilities.
A portion of the City’s net position (9.0%)
represents resources subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. Restricted
net position includes amounts restricted for debt
service $11,539,290, for sales tax property tax
relief $3,320,232, for economic development
projects $6,440,271, for the NAWS project
$34,099,423, and for other purposes, $14,491.
The unrestricted net position of $99,413,890 is to
meet the government’s ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors. There are no restrictions,
commitments, or other limitations that
significantly affect the availability of fund
resources for future use.

Net Position
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activitics Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Current and other assets $ 161,311,483 3 140,780380 $ 76842371 § 39837367 § 238,154,054 § 2005617,747
Capital assets 251,151,060 190,213,485 302,640,945 221,798,735 553,792,005 412012220

Total assets 412,462,543 330,993,865 379483516 281,636,102 791,946,059 612629967
Defermed outflows of resources 8,278,700 - 2,573,944 - 10,852,644 -
Long-term debt outstanding 34,743,237 35,701,823 56,976,886 41,849,871 91,720,123 77,551,694
Other liabilities 60,064,190 10,404,069 31,268,608 16,363,606 91,332,798 26,767,675

Total liabilities 96,706,342 46,105,892 88,477,613 58,213,477 185,183,955 104,319,369
Defened inflows ofresources 1,868,915 - 232 119 - 2,131,034 -
Net position
Invested in capital assets 213,781,240 153,468,851 246,874,877 187,576,187 460,656,117 341,045,038
Restricted net position 48,237,103 43,662,672 7,176,604 5,781,608 55.413,707 49,444 280
Unrestricted net position 60,117,643 87,756,450 39,296,247 30,066,830 $9,413,890 117,823,280

Total net position $ 322,135986 $ 284,887,973 § 2932347728 § 223424625 § 615483714 § 508,312,598
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At the end of 2015, the City is able to report
positive balances in all three categories of net
position, both for the government as a whole, as
well as for governmental and business-type
activities.

Changes in Net Position. The City’s net
position increased $107,171,116 during 2015.
The majority of this increase was due to an
increase in program revenues of over §51.1
million. There was a decrease to the net pension
in the amount of $52,901,832 dueto a
restatement of the beginning net position to
record the City’s proportionate share of net
pension liability in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 68 Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of
GASB Statement No. 27. This resulted in the
recognition of a net pension liability in the
amount of $59,323,830, the deferred outflows of
resources related to pension in the amount of
510,852,644, and the deferred inflows of
resources related to pension in the amount of
$2,131,034.

Governmental Activities, Governmental
program revenues increased over $26.8 million
due to operating and capital grants and
contributions increasing by $31.3 million and
charges for services decreasing by nearly $4.3
million. Governmental program expenses
increased by over $2.9 million. Overall the
general government increased over $0.3 million,
while culture and recreation increased over $2.3
million.

Business-Type Activities. Business-type
program revenues increased by over §17.7
million during 2015 due to increases in capital
grants and contributions of over $16.6 million.
Business-type program expenses increased by
$3.9 million in 2015 due to increases in expenses
in Water and Sewer of over $1.6 million due to
an increase in infrastructure projects, Minot
[nternational Airport of over $2.3 million due to
construction of a new airport terminal and apron.
The charts below summarize the City’s revenues
and expenses for both governmental and
business-type activities.

Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2084
Program Revenues
Charges for services $ 9235921 § 13553946 S 28176915 S 28313724 § 37412836 S 41867670
Operating grants and contributions 14,541,486 14,686,073 2,406,340 1,248,307 16,947,826 15,934,380
Capital grants and contributions 74,438,583 43,098,461 84,112,970 67427366 158,551,353 110,525,827
General revenues
Taxes 50,172,851 47,185,180 166,746 82,208 50,339,597 47,267,388
{nvestment eamings 694.916 471,073 {19,072 114,540 813,988 383613
Miscelianeous 2,702,358 604,999 1,244,180 44,404 3,946,338 649,403
Total revenues 151,786,115 119,599,732 116,226,223 97,230,549 268,012,338 216,830,281
Program Expenses
General govemment 27,783,373 27476,332 - - 27,783,373 27.476,332
Public safety 14,843,622 15,297,259 - - 14,843,622 15,297,259
Highways and streeis 16,772,838 16,199,177 . - 16,772,838 6,199,177
Culture and recreation 0,99t 456 7673973 - - 9991456 7673973
Economic development 3,266,376 3,292475 - - 3.266,37% 3292475
interest on long-term debt 1,323,446 1,084,587 - - 1,323,446 1,084,587
Aimport - - 8,758,360 6,406,365 8,758,360 6,406,365
Cengtery - - 469,091 488,825 469,001 488 825
Parking authority - - 98,705 72,806 98,705 72,806
Sanitation - - 4,464,495 4,461,806 4464 495 4,461,806
Walter and sewer - - 20,167,628 18,558,478 20,167,628 18,538,478
Total expenses 73,981,111 71,023,803 33958279 20988280 107,939,390 101,012,082
Excess (deficiency ) before transfers 77,805,004 48,575,929 82,267 544 67,242,269 160,072,948 115,818,199
Transfers 1,262,055 {353,310) {1.262,055) 353310 - -
Change in net position 79,067,059 48,222 620 81,005,889 67,595,579 160,072,948 115,818,199
Net position, January 1 284,887,573 236,665,353 223,424,625 155,829,046 508,312,598 392,494,399
Chanyge in accounting principle - Note 5E {41,819,046) - (1t,082,786) - (52,901,832) -
Net position, January |, as restated 243,068,927 236,665,353 212,341,839 155,829,046 455,410,766 392,494,399

Net position, December 31

8 322135986 S 284.887.973 § 203347728 § 223.424.615

$ 615483714 5 508312598
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FINANACIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S
FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City of Minot uses fund
accounting o ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. Some funds are required
statutorily while others are internally set up to
assist management in accounting for certain
activities.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City’s
governmental fiunds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
spendable resources. Such information is useful
in assessing the City’s financing requirements,
In particular, an unassigned fund balance may
serve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the
fiscal year.

As of the end of 2015, the City’s governmental
funds reported combined ending fund balances
of over $132.3 million, an increase of over $6.5
million in comparison with 2014, Revenues for
the period increased by nearly $25.1 million due
to an increase of $20.4 million intergovernmental
revenues, an increase in property tax collections
of $5.1 million, an increase in special assessment
collections of $2.0 million, and an decrease in
charges for services of $3.6 million while
expenditures increased by $28.1 million due to
increases in general government by $2.5 million,
culture and recreation expenditures increased by
$2.3 million, and an increase in capital outlay
contracted work of $16.8 million. The City also
issued over §1.8 million in special assessment
bonds in 2015 to fund expenditures for a water
and sewer district and paving districts. The City
also issued over $0.4 million in general
obligation bonds. The governmental funds
nonspendable fund balance is $2,320,419,
restricted fund balance $79,520,645, no
committed fund balance, assigned fund balance
$25,864,361, and unassigned fund balance
$24,689,554,

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of
the City. At the end of the current fiscal year,
the unassigned fund balance of the general fund
was $24,689,554. As a measure of the general
fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare the
unassigned fund balance to total fund

expenditures. The unassigned fund balance
represents 84.0% of total general fund
expenditures.

The City of Minot's general fund fund balance
increased by $2,231,858 during the current fiscal
year. This increase resulted from expenditures
being lower than budgeted for the following
departments: Engineering, Police Patrol, Fire
Control, and Street totaling nearly $2.3 million.
The savings were primarily due to grant
encumbrances which were used in the next fiscal
year and less anticipated snow removal needed in
2015,

The Sales Tax NAWS Fund had a decrease in
fund balance of $30,222 due to the increase in
expenditures.

The Special Assessinent Debt Fund increased
its fund balance by $2,261,812 due to revenues
being more than expenditures during 2015 due to
special assessment prepayments.

The Highway Reserve Fund increased in fund
balance by $3.2 million due to an increase in
intergovernmental revenues for the Downtown
Infrastructure project.

The Capital Purchases Fund decreased by
nearly $3.9 million due to capital purchases
expenditures exceeding revenues.

Propriety Funds. The City of Minot’s
proprietary funds provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide
financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position at the end of the year
for the major Enterprise Funds was $38,842,687,
of which Airport accounted for §1,135,450,
Sanitation $1,056,571, Water and Sewer
$36,644,018 and the nonmajor funds accounted
for $6,648. Restricted net position was
$7,176,604 for bond covenants. The restrictions
do not significantly affect the availability of fund
resources for future use,

The change in net position for these funds was
$69.9 million. This change was due to an
increase in intergovernmental revenues of over
$1.2 million, and increase in expenses of over
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$3.9 million, and an increase in capital
contributions of over $16.8 million.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY
HIGHLIGHTS

The differences between the original budget and
the final amended budget was a decrease in
revenues of over $1.0 million and an increase in
expenditure appropriations of nearly $2.0
million. Differences between the final amended
budget and actual amounts in the general fund
consist of total revenues being §1.1 million less
than budgeted and the expenditures being $4.6
million less than budgeted due to 1.6 million in
grants carrying over to 2016, $0.8 million less
snow events than budgeted for and various
departments not spending their entire budget.
There is a total deficiency of actual revenues
over expenditures of over $4.6 million.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT
ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets. The City’s investment in capital
assets for its governmental and business-type
activities as of December 31, 2015, is
$553,792,005 (net of accumulated depreciation).
This investment in capital assets includes land,
buildings, equipment, infrastructure, intangibles,
and books.

Major capital asset events during the current
fiscal year included the following:

Home Acquisitions

Paving Districts

Airport Terminal

Downtown infrastructure

Donations of infrastructure

A variety of other street construction
projects

® & & & &

Additional information on the City of Minot’s
capital assets can be found in Note 4. D on pages
47-48 of this report.

Capital Assets (net of depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Land $ 42,560,187 § 31055094 $ 5417535 § 5417535 § 47986722 § 36,472,629
Construction in progress 20,208,352 8215463 79,901,837 48,330,342 100,110,189 56,545,805
Buildings 7.014,313 7,000,461 8,336,587 9,136,547 15,550,900 16,137,008
Equipment 9,541,125 7,359,002 6,436,326 6,142,674 15,977,451 13,501,676
[nfrastructure 170,559,143 135,363,756  202288,158 152,690,952 372,847,301 288,054,708
Intangible assets 322,912 374,745 60,502 80,685 383414 455,430
Books 936,028 844,964 - - 936,028 844,964

Total capital assels

$251,151.060 $190213485 $302.640945 3221.798.735 § 553792005 3§ 412,012,220
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Long-Term Debt. At year-end, the City had
total debt of $161,291,672, an increase of
$23,182,626 over the prior year. Note 4. H on
pages 51-53 of this report describes the City’s
long-term debt in detail.

The 2016 City of Minot budget value of a mill
increased from $189,000,000 to $209,200,000
per mill.

Outstanding Debt
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

General obligation bonds $ 13260000 $ 15235000 % - $ . $ 13260000 $ 15255000
Special assessment bonds 22,930,600 23,160,600 - - 22,930,000 23,160,000
Capital Financing Program Bonds 1,910,000 - - - 1,910,000 -
Revenue bonds - - 58,730,000 42,395,000 58,730,000 42,393,000
Unamortized premitm 1,244,638 1,183,693 687,920 439,757 1,932,567 1,625,750
Unamorized discount (14,944) (15,302) (316,133) (195,046) {331.077) (210,348)
MNotes payable - - 1,130,981 1,209,334 1,130,981 1,209,334
Capital leases 4,026 6,495 1,029,389 473,392 1,033,415 479,887
Compensated absences 1,067,304 1,024,492 304,652 268,009 1,371,956 1,292,591
Net pension liability 46,399,696 41,819,046 12,924,134 11,082,786 39,323,830 52,901,832

Total outstanding debt

$ 86800720 § 82435724 § 74490952 §

55,673,322 % 161,291,672 $ 138.109.046

The City issued new debt for special assessment
bonds of $1,835,000, general obligation bonds of
$390,000, capital financing program bonds of
£1,945,000, water and sewer bonds of
$6,860,000, and airport bonds of $11,770,000.
The City received a rating of Aa2 from Moody’s.

In addition, net pension liability of $59,323,830
was recorded due to the implementation of
GASB Statement No. 68.

The City’s debt is limited to 8% of the assessed
valuation of taxable property within the City of
Minot or $203,226,781. The City’s legal debt
margin is $191,071,246. The net bonded debt
per capita is $295.05.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT
YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES

Projects in 20135, which boosted the economy in
Minet included, Nedrose School building added
a bus barn concession building for $9.6 milltion;
Minot Public School added an additional
classroom and gymnasium for $6.4 million,
Dakota Square Mall renovated the common areas
for $5.6 million, St. Alexis Medical Center built
commercial space for $4.7 million, and several
other condos, apartment buildings, restaurants
and business remodels.

The mill levy for the City of Minot’s 2016
budget is 79.50 mills — compared to 78.63 mills
in 2014, an increase of 0.87 mills. The increase
in the mills is due to an increase in operating
expenditures.

Total appropriations for operations for 2016
decreased over $16.8 million dollars from 2015.
This 51% decrease is due to the airport budget
decreasing by nearly $12.4 million due to capital
projects, the CDBG-DR budget decreased by
$13.5 million, and the general fund and sales tax
funds increased by $3.5 million each.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL
MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a
general overview of the City’s finances and to
demonstrate the City’s accountability for the
money it receives for the citizens of Minot. If
you have any questions about this report or need
further information, contact the City of Minot
Finance Department, 515 2" Avenue SW or PO
Box 5006, Minot, ND 58702 or visit us online at
www.minotnd.org.
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 20135
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Governmental Business-Type Total Total
Activitics Activities 2015 2014
ASSETS
Cash and ¢ash equivalents $ 28,096,632 S 42848594 S 70,945,226 $ 87,444,506
Investents 47,061,198 13,016,444 60,077,642 45,727,320
Receivables
Taxes receivable delinquent 1,030,461 10,741 1,041,202 343,152
Special assessments delinguent 24,760 - 24,760 19,543
Accounts receivable, net of allowance 529,359 3,846,936 4,376,295 3,749,145
L.oans receivable, net of zllowance 2,040,000 - 2,040,000 60,000
Intergovernmental receivable 15,863,832 9,592.719 25,456,551 25,297.219
Accrued interest receivable 27,987 8,861 36,848 31,0064
inventory 318,592 - 318,592 356951
Prepaid 06,949 30,184 337,133 224,298
Other assets - capital credits 359,619 311,488 671,107 329,199
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 48,949,699 71,076,604 56,126,503 29,191,520
Negative OPEB obligation 40,455 B 40,455 2,092,679
Capital assets not being depreciated
[and 42,569,187 5,417,535 47,986,722 36,472,629
Constmiclion in progress 20,208,352 19,901,837 100,110,189 56,545,805
Capital assets net of accunmilated depreciation
Buildings 7,014,313 §,530,587 15,550,900 16,137,008
Eguipment 9,541,123 6,436,326 15,977,451 13,501,676
Infrastructure 170,559,143 302,288, 5% 372,847,501 288,034,708
Intangible assets 322,912 60,502 383,414 455,430
Books 936,028 - 936,028 844,964
Special assessments defesred 16,761,940 - 16,761,940 5,753,151
Total asseis 412,462,543 379,483,316 191,946,059 612,631,967
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outfiow of resources related o pension 8,278,700 2,573,944 10,852,644 -
Total deferred outflows of resources 8,278,700 2,573,944 10,852,644 -
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3,417,977 7,988,129 11,406,106 11,343,399
Retainage payable 1,717,338 8,107,407 9,824,745 4,472,547
Internal balances 3,926,644 (3,926,644} - -
Accrued salaries payable 201,249 84,333 375,582 1,053,171
Inswrance ¢laims payable 142,927 - 142,927 109,069
Accrued interest payable 267,619 447,454 715,073 757,199
Customer deposits 137,689 201,458 339,147 251,856
Uneamed reverue - other 4,179 5675 9,854 201,522
Current debt - due within one year
Special assessment debt with governtmental conymitment 38,476 - 38,476 38,476
Compensated absences 373,556 106,628 480,184 432,407
Capitzl leases payable 3,403 162,795 166,198 234,228
All other debt 4,547.981 4,334,740 8.882.721 6,784,877
Moncurrent debt - due after one year
Special assessment debt with governsnental commitment 678,410 . 678,410 678,410
Compensated absences 693,748 198,024 891,772 840,184
Capitzl leases payable 623 866,594 867,217 245,659
All other debt 34,064,827 55,898,037 89,962,864 75,932,973
Accrued MSWLF postelosure care costs B 1,078,849 1,078,849 923,392
Nel pensicn liability 46,399,696 12,924,134 59,323,830 -
Total liabilities 96,706,342 88,477,613 185,183,955 104,319,369
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflow of Tesources retated 10 pension 1,898,915 232119 2,131,034 -
Total deferred inflow of resources 1,898,915 232,119 2,15E,034 -
NET POSITION
Net investment in capitaf assets 213,781,240 246,874,877 460,656,117 341,045,038
Restricted for:
Dbt service 4,362,686 7,176,604 11,539,290 7,062,397
Passenger facility charges not spent - - - 651,251
Sales tax property tax relief 3,320,232 - 3,320,232 4,009,260
Econesmnic development 6,440,271 - 6,440,271 5,750,029
NAWS 34,099,423 - 34,099,423 34,129,645
Other purposes 14,491 - 14,491 645,506
Unrestricted net position 60,117,643 39,296.247 99,413,850 115,018,972
Total net position s 322.135.98¢ S 293.347.728 § 615483.714 5 308,312,598

The accompanying notes to the financiol sterements are an integral part of these statenients,
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Statement of Activitics
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Funelions/Programs

Governmentai Activities
General government
Public safety
Highways and strects
Culze and recreation
Community development
Interest on long-term debt

Total povernmentai activitics

Business-Type Activities
Adrpory
Cemetery
Parking authority
Sanitation
Water and sewer

Total business-lype activitics

Total government

Program Revenugs

Net (Expense} Revenue and
Changes in Net Pasifion

Operating Capital
Charges For Grants and Granls and Governmental Business-Type Total Taotal
Expenses Services Conirib Cantrik Activities Activities 2015 2014
s 27783373 8 7.592971 % 5524812 § 31,748416 § 17082825 § - $ 17082825 § 1,820,420
14,843,622 1074256 311,833 2,663,668 (10,793,863) . {10,793,863) (12,573,299)
16,772,838 - 3,606,392 39,835,660 31,669,214 - 31669214 12,444,874
9,991,456 568,694 98,447 190,839 {9,133,476) - (9,133,476} (7.000,254)
3,266,376 - - - (3,266,376) - (3.266.376) (3,292,475)
1,323,446 - - - (1.323.446) - (1,323,446} (1.084.587)
73,981,111 ©.235.921 14.541.486 74.438.583 24,234,879 - 24,234,379 314,678
8,738,360 3,327,502 2,401,140 21,362,081 18,332,453 18,332,453 19,408,389
469,091 313,70t . - (155,390} (155,390} (158,561}
98,765 45,655 - - (53,050) (53,050} (35.060)
4.464.495 4,536,174 5,200 - 76,379 76,379 308,712
20,167,628 18,953,794 - 62,750,885 62.537,055 62.537.055 47.377.637
33,958,27¢ 28,176,915 2,406,340 84.112.97¢ 80,737.946 80,737,946 67,001,117
S 107.939.360 8§ 37412836 S 16947.826 S 158.551 553 24,234,875 80,737,946 104,972,825 67,315,795
General Revenues
Taxes
Tropenty taxes, levied for general purposes 13,094,945 166,746 13.201.69% 9.756,742
Property 1axes, levied for debt service 2875336 - 2,875,336 1,126,237
Sales tax 26,035,551 - 26,035,55¢ 27,245,883
Municipal highway tax 2,740,748 . 2,740,748 2,952,874
S1ate pid distribution-unrestricted 4411924 - 4,411,524 4,792,103
Franchise taxes 702,627 - 702,627 699,277
Other taxes 311,720 - 311,720 700,272
Investment earnings 694916 119072 813,988 585,613
Miscel laneous 2,702,338 1,244,180 3,946,338 649,403
Transfers 1,262,055 1.262.055) - -
Taotat general revenues and transfers 54,832,180 267,943 55,100,123 48,502,404
Change in net position 79,067,05¢ 81,005,859 160,072,948 115,813,199
Net pasition, January 284,387,973 223,424,625 508,312,598 392,494,399
Change in accaunting principle - Note 5E (41.819.046) {11.082.786) (52,903.832) -
Net position, January I, as restated 243,068.927 212,341,839 455,410,766 392,494,399
Net position, December 31 S 322135986 S 293,347,728 3 615483 714 § 508,312,598

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these siatements.




City of Minot, North Dakota

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2015

With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments
Investments - certificates of deposit
Taxes receivable delinquent
Special assessments receivable delinquent
Accounts receivable
Allowance for accounts receivable
Loans receivable
Allowance for loans receivable
Due from other funds
Intergovernmental receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Inventory
Prepaid
Other assets - capital credits
Investments
Advance to other funds
Special assessments receivable uncertified
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Retainage payable
Due to other funds
Accrued salaries payable
Customer deposits
Advance from other funds
Unearned revenue - other
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Uncertified special assessments

Unavailable revenue - property taxes

Unavailabie revenue - special assessments
Deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCE

Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assipned
Unassigned
Total fund balance
Total liabilities, inflows and fund balance

Special Debt
Revenue Service Fund Capital
Fund Special Project Fund
General Sales Tax Assessment Highway
Fund NAWS Debt Reserve
§ 3474414 3 - 3 - 3 3,764.025

- 6,726,904 3,166,702 -

19,631,443 4,009,883 - -
580,754 - 5,187 -
1,075 - 16,415 -
463,350 - - 38,902
(126,085) - -
1,927,814 - 688 4,834,051
23,844 4,143 - -
197,445 1,000 - -
320,414 - - -
- 23,419.872 - -
- - 1,341,140 -
9,775 - 16,681,025 -
$ 26504243 $§ 34.161.802 § 21211157 § 8.636.978
$ 651,555 § 61379 §$ 15,666 § 423,910
- - - 454,804
257,200 - - -
137,689 - - -
- - - 133,227
4,179 - - -
1,050,623 61,379 13,666 1,011,941
9,775 - 16,681,025 -
235,357 - 3,187 -
1,075 - 8,075 -
246,207 - 16,694,287 -
517,859 1,000 - -

- 34,099,423 3,166,702 -

- - 1,334,502 7.625.037
24,689,554 - - -
25,207,413 34,100,423 4,501,204 7,623,037

$ 26504243 5§ 34.161.802 8 21,211,157 §  8.636,978




City of Minot, North Dakota
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Capital Total Total
Project Fund Other Governmental Governmental
Capital Governmental Funds Funds
Puorchases Funds 2015 2014
ASSETS
Cash and investments § 1,100,946 § 17449179 § 25,788,504 § 48,269,688
Restricted cash and investments - 39,056,093 48,949,699 23,409,912
Investments - certificates of deposit - - 23,641,326 22,507,915
Taxes receivable delinquent - 444,520 1,030,461 339,746
Special assessments receivable delinquent - 7,270 24,760 19,543
Accounts receivable - 143,853 648,105 881,086
Allowance for accounts receivable - - (126,085) -
Loans receivable - 2,550,000 2,550,000 75,000
Allowance for loans receivable - {510,000) (510,000) (15,000}
Due from other funds - 1,072,005 1,072,005 1,860,272
Intergovernmental receivable 4,243,608 4,857,671 15,863,832 11,761,375
Accrued interest receivable - - 27,987 31,064
Inventory - 6,083 6,083 6,390
Prepaid - 8,504 206,949 159,054
Other assets - capital credits - 36,973 357,387 132,425
Investments - - 23,419,872 23,219,405
Advance to other funds - 173,527 1,514,667 1,779,126
Special assessments receivable uncertified - 71,140 16,761,940 5,753,151
Total assets $ 5344554 § 065368818 3% 161.227.552 § 140.190.352
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 1048937 § 1,196,043 $§ 3397490 $ 2,697,588
Retainage payable 1,178,119 84,415 1,717,338 781,607
Due to other funds - 1,072,005 1,072,005 1,860,272
Accrued salaries payable - 34,049 291,249 817,680
Customer deposits - - 137,689 59,450
Advance from other funds - 4,854,524 4,987,751 1,865,128
Unearned revenue - other - - 4,179 200,547
Total liabilities 2,227,056 7,241,036 11,607,701 8,282,312
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Uncertified special assessments - 71,140 16,761,940 5,733,151
Unavailable revenue - property taxes - 205,968 446,512 275,786
Unavailable revenue - special assessments - 7.270 16,420 15,537
Deferred inflows of resources - 284,378 17,224,872 6,044,474
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable - 1,801,560 2,320,419 2,077,195
Restricted - 42,254,520 79.520.645 74.497.978
Committed - - - 198,623
Assigned 3,117,498 13,787,324 23,864,361 26,648,670
Unassigned - - 24,689,554 22,441,100
Total fund balance 3,117,498 57,843,404 132,394,979 125,863,566
Total liabilities, inflows and fund balance $ 5344554 § 65368818 § 161.227.552 % 140.190,352

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statenments.
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
To the Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2015

Total fund balances for governmental funds $132,394.979

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position is different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of:

Land ' $ 42.569.187
Construction work in process 20,208,352
Buildings. net of accumulated depreciation ($7.875,208) 7.014,313
Equipment, net of accumulated depreciation ($11.974.229) 9,541,125
Infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation ($54,152.440) 170,559,143
Intangible assets, net of accumulated depreciation ($275,417) 322912
Books, net of accumulated depreciation ($2,394,834) 936,028
Total capital assets (Note 4. D) 251,151,060

A negative OPEB obligation should be reported as an asset in the government-

wide statement of net position and in connection with proprietary and fiduciary funds.

Conversely, a negative OPEB obligation is not considered to represent a financial

asset; therefore, it is not properly reported in a governmental fund. 40,435

Net pension liability and pension related deferred outflows and inflows of resources are not due
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. These amounts consist of?
Net pension liability (46,399,696)
Deferred outflows of resources §.278,700
Deferred inflows of resources (1.898,915)
(40,019911)

Internal service funds are used by the City to charge the cost of the central garage

and the City's self insurance to the individual funds. The assets and liabilities

of the internal service funds are included in the governmental activities

in the statement of net position, They are not included in government-wide. 2,013,174

Some of the City's taxes and special assessments will be collected after year-end,

but are not available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures;

therefore, they are reported as deferred revenue in the governmental funds.

Total taxes and specials not available 17,224 872

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities are not due and

pavable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities.

Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather is recognized

as an expenditure when due. All liabilities, both current and long-term, are reported in the

statement of net position. (Note 2. A) (540,668,643)

Total net position of governmental activities $322.135.986

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Special Debt
Revenue Service Fund Capital
Fund Special Project Fund
Sales Tax Assessment Highway
REVENUES General Fund NAWS Debt Reserve
Property tax collections $ 7.858,702 § - 5 78.806 % -
Special assessment collections 4,181 - 4,826,273 -
Sales tax collections - - - -
Licenses and permits 1,331,860 - - -
Intergovernmental 10,490,385 - - 13,449,511
Charges for services 3,289,345 - “ -
Fines and forfeits 679,969 - - -
Interest income 173,500 261,084 107,758 19,353
Miscellaneous 961,622 - 87,854 500,673
Total revenues 24,789,564 261,084 5,100,691 13,969,537
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 10,100,265 241,306 2,084,467 -
Public safety 14,869,964 - - -
Highways and streets 4,423,031 - - -
Culture and recreation - - - -
Economic development - - - -
Capital outlay
Contracted work - - - 9,012,688
Equipment - - - -
Legal - - - -
Other - - - 161,948
Acquisitions - - - -
Engineering - - - 1,902,627
Debt service
Principal retirement - - 2,100,000 -
Interest and fiscal charges - - 753,402 8.358
Total expenditures 29,393,260 241,306 4,937,869 11,085,621
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (4,603,696) 19,778 162,822 2,883,916
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
General obligation bonds issued - - - 390,000
Bonds issued - - 1,945,000 -
Premium on bonds - - 153,806 12,435
Discount on bonds - - - -
Capital leases - - - -
Sale of City property 13,500 - - -
Transfers in 6,889,153 - 3,315 69,058
Transfers out (67.099) {50,000) (3,131) (128,123}
Total other financing sources {uses) 6,835,554 (50,000} 2,098,990 343,370
Net change in fund balance 2,231,858 (30,222) 2,261,812 3.227.286
Fund balance, January 1 22,975,555 34,130,645 2,239,392 4,397,751
Fund batance, December 31 $ 25.207.413 % 34100423 $ 4301204 § 7.623.037
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Capital Total Total
Project Fund Other Governmental Governmental
Capital Governmental Funds Funds
REVENUES Purchases Funds 2015 2014
Property tax collections b - $ 7,781,890 $ 15,719,398 § 10,550,013
Special assessment collections - 53.809 4,884,263 2,030,276
Sales tax collections 4,550,907 21,484,644 26,035,551 27,245,883
Licenses and permits - - 1,331,860 1,862,029
Intergovermnental 19,730,840 17,206,002 60,876,738 40,409,003
Charges for services - 1,799,754 5,089,099 8,746,373
Fines and forfeits - - 679,969 1,229,088
Interest income 12,866 120,355 694,916 471,073
Miscellaneous 110,847 1,273,915 2,934,911 604,999
Total revenues 24,405,460 49,720,369 118,246,705 93,148,737
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government - 13,813,814 26,239,852 23,680,730
Public safety - - 14,869,964 14,376,257
Highways and streets - 3,543,697 7.966,728 8,357,587
Culture and recreation - 9,762,841 9,762,841 7,364,051
Economic development - 3,266,376 3,266,376 3,292,475
Capital outlay
Contracted work 16,836,624 4,207,498 30,056,810 13,218,035
Equipment - 2,581,331 2,581,331 2,489.396
Legal 177,919 3,751 181,670 1,292
Other 1,828,311 197,320 2,187,579 835.096
Acquisitions 9,275,869 16,337 9,292,206 9.230,112
Engineering 64,559 3.223,643 5,190,829 2,152,157
Debt service
Principal retirement - 2,385,000 4,485,000 3.060,000
Interest and fiscal charges - 557,728 1,319,488 1,022,919
Total Expenditures 28,183,282 43,559,336 117,400,674 89.280.107
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (3,777,822) 6,161,033 846,031 3,868,630
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
General obligation bonds issued - “ 390,000 -
Bonds issued - 1,833,000 3,780,000 8,085,000
Premium on bonds - - 166,241 332,360
Discount on bonds - (1,779) (1,779) -
Capital leases - - - 7.921
Sale of City property - 75,363 88,865 93,325
Transfers in 2,548,141 10,396,268 19,905,635 21,264,126
Transfers out (2,658,260} (15,737,267) (18,643,880) (21.617,436)
Total other financing sources (uses) {110,119) (3,432,413) 5,685,382 8,165,296
Net change in fund balance (3,887.941) 2,728,620 6.531,413 12,033,926
Fund balance, January 1 7,005,439 55,114,784 125,863,566 113,829,640
Fund balance, December 31 3 3117498 § 57843404 § 132.394.979 $ 125.863.566

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activities
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015

Net change in fund balances-total governmental funds 5 6531413

The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities is different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures; however, in the

statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated

useful Yives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which

capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. (Note 2. B) 61,564,445

(Gross proceeds from the sale of capital assets is reported as revenue in the governmentai fund;
however, in the statement of activities only the gain or loss on the transaction is reporied. {(Note 2. B) (626,870)

Bond proceeds are reported as financing sources in governmentai funds and thus
contribute 1o the change in fund balance, In the statement of net position
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities and does not affect the statement of
activities; similarly, repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds but reduces the liability in the statement of net position. (Note 4. H)

Debt issued

Special assessment bonds issued 3 (3,780,000)
Premium on bonds issued (166,241)
General obligation bonds issued (390,000)
Repayments of bond principal 4,485,000
Payment on capital lease 2,469
Annual amortization of leases, premiums, and discounts 105,459
Net adjustment 258,466

A negative net pension and OPEB obligation should be reported as an asset in the government-wide

statement of net position, Conversely, a negative net pension and OPER obligation is not considered to

represent a financial asset; therefore, it is not properly reported in a governmental fund. The

government-wide statement of nef activities reports the change in the net pension and OPEB

abligation asset from year to year. (2,052,224)

Changes to net pension liability and pension related deferred outflows and infiows of resources do
not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not requporied as expenditures
in governmental funds £,799,135

Under the modified accrual basis of zccounting used in the governmental funds, expenditures

are not recognized for transactions not normally paid with expendable available

financial resources. In the statement of activities, however, which is presented on the accruat basis,

expenses and liabilities are reported regardless of when financial resources are available.

In addition, interest on long-term debt is not tecognized under the modified accrual basis of

accounting until due.
Accrued interest payable (3,958)
Compensated absences (42,812)

Change in revenue accruals. The purpose of this adjustment is to recognize the net change in
unavailable revenues. Under the modified accrual basis of aceounting, revenues are not
recognized unless they are deemed available to finance the expenditures of the current period.
Accrual-basis recognition is not limited by availability, so certain revenues need to be reduced
by the amounts unavailable at the begirning of the year and increased by the ameunts
unavailable at the end of the year. This adjustment records a net decrease in revenues
unavailable at the end of the year which were less than beginning revenues by this amount.

New special assessment districts to be billed and collected annually 15,359,988
Special assessment write-offs, foreclosures, and interest 704,673
Amount shown as revenue in govermmental funds {4,884,263)
Net change 11,180,398

Internal service funds are used by the City to charge the cost of the central

garage and the City's self insurance to the individuat funds. The net revenue of

internal service fitnds is reported with governmental activities. 459,066
Change in net position of governmental activities § 79.067.059

The accompanying noies to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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City of Minot, North Dakota

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual

For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015

General Fund

With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

REVENUES
Property tax collections
Special assessment collections
Licenses & permits
Intergovernmental federal
Operating Grants
Intergovernmental state
Highway fund
State aid distribution
Financial institution tax
Cigarette tax
Telecommunications tax
Homestead and disabled veterans tax credits
Fire insurance refund
Gambling tax revenue
State operating grants
Intergovernmental county
Operating grants
Road and bridge
Joint communications
Computer maintenance
Assessed utility
Intergovernmental other
Housing authority
Parking authority
Cable TV franchise fees
Total intergovernmental
Charges for services
Engineering & administrative
Utility & special funds
Agency funds
Fleet labor
Total charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Parking tickets
Police court
Total fines and forfeitures
Interest income
Miscellaneous income
Work for others
Policing-Central Campus
Miscelianeous
Damage claims
Towing fees
Total miscellaneous income
Total revenues

Budgeted Amounts 2015 Variance 2014
Final Actual With Actual

Original Amended Armounts Final Budget Amounts
$ 9626256 § 8,252,794 § 7.858,702 % 394092 § 4,720,060
3,436 5,456 4,181 1,275 4,975
1,738,318 1,738,318 1,331,860 406,458 1,862,029
137,855 98,885 420,610 (321,725) 422,504
2,984,010 2,984,010 2,740,748 243,262 2,945,858
4,702,120 4,702,120 4,411,924 290,196 4,792,103
- - - - 373,313
133,587 133,587 132,711 876 134,790
144,842 144,842 132,092 12,750 144,842
- - 190,231 (190,231) 187,304
266,993 306,983 347,616 (40,633) 289.597
26,398 26,398 23,710 2,688 26,048
48,400 269,638 110,952 158,686 77,824
7,943 7,943 35,599 (27.656) 33.848
3,701 5,701 - 5,701 7.016
1,119,854 1,119,854 1,032,124 87.730 994,559
120,111 120,111 125,582 (5,471) 190,156
19,971 19,971 23,207 {3,236) 21.27%
49,957 49,957 59,869 (9.912) 54,892
4,515 4,515 783 3,732 2,562
593,932 593,932 702,627 (108,695} 699,277
10,366,191 10,588,447 10,490,385 98,062 11,397,772
509,875 509,875 349,976 159,899 677,961
2,733,893 2,733,891 2,733,893 (2) 2,677,363
50,000 50,000 135,023 (85,023} 3,527.496
49,200 49.200 70,453 (21,253} 102,286
3,342,968 3,342,966 3,289,345 53,621 6,985,306
79,839 79.839 135,012 (53,173} 104,659
975,415 975,415 544,957 430,458 1,124,429
1,055,254 1,035,254 679,969 375,285 1,229,088
291,702 291,702 173,500 118,202 77,316
59,043 59,043 68,631 (9,588) 55,366
103,867 103.867 99,268 4,599 112,904
394,341 408,764 640,826 (232,062) 426,637

- 90,959 133,284 (42,325) -
43,617 43,617 19,613 24,004 33,535
600,868 706,250 961,622 (255,372) 628,442
27,027,013 25,981,187 24,789,564 1,191,623 26,904,988
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual

General Fund

For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015

With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Budgeted Amounts 2015 Variance 2014
Finai Actual With Actual
Original Amended Amounts _ Final Budget  Amounts
EXPENIHTURES
General government
Mayor and city council $ 172,040 § 172,040 150,845 % 21,195 § 147,503
City manager 391,319 391,319 381,230 10,089 358,521
City clerk 392,089 392,090 339,018 53,072 336,267
City attorney 362,721 362,721 336,175 26,346 264,371
Administrative and general 1,775,755 1,882,448 1,698,969 183.479 1,695,222
Finance 1,018,654 1.205,470 1,091,740 113,730 959,804
Information technology 716,328 737,082 678,506 58,576 662,859
Property assessment 600,558 600,656 528,435 72,221 521,876
Planning 346,970 856,959 482,200 374,759 -
Building inspection 1,133,835 1,145,666 950,822 194,844 830,294
Traffic 1,281,733 1,344,099 1,244,733 99,366 1,112,638
Engineering 1,151,252 1,566,137 931,702 634,435 1,153,906
Vehicle maintenance 802,707 801,143 638,595 162,548 601.424
Property maintenance 737,306 814,254 647,295 166,959 559,514
Total general government 10,883,267 12,272,084 10,100,265 2,171,819 9,204,201
Public safety
Police administration 1,288,628 1,467,037 1,208,451 258,586 1.192,967
Police patrol 3,406,444 5,658,921 3,280,469 378,452 5,091,868
Criminal investigation 1,480,733 1,489,227 1,362,441 126,786 1,321,413
Narcotics task force 64,842 81,367 74,428 6,939 81,357
Telecommunications division 1,119,854 1,119,853 1,032,124 87,729 994,500
Municipal judge 878,028 878,028 561,429 316,599 871.07t
Fire administration 996,836 1,037,824 978,339 59,485 943,730
Fire contro} 4,786,999 4,864,417 4,372,283 492,134 3.879.351
Total public safety 16,022,364 16,596,674 14,869,964 1,726,710 14,376,257
Street & storm sewer maintenance 5,204,303 5,221,479 4,423,031 798.448 3,791,484
Total expenditures 32,109,936 34,090,237 29,393,260 4,696,977 27,371,942
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (5,082,923) (8,109,050)  (4,603,696) (3,505,354) (466,954)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Capital leases . - - - 7.921
Sale of property - - 13,500 {13,500) 6,125
Transfers in 5,082,923 6,636,500 6,889,153 (252,653) 4,023,843
Transfers out - - (67,099) 67,009 (95,285)
Total other financing sources {uses} 5,082,923 6,636,300 6,835,554 (199,054) 3,942,604
Net change in fund balance $ - $ (1,472,550) 2,231,858 _§ (3,704.408) 3,475,630
Fund balance, January 1 22,975,555 19,499,905
Fund balance, December 31 $ 25,207,413 $§ 22.975555
The accompanying notes fo the financial statements are an infegral part of these statemenis,




City of Minot, North Dakota
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual
Major Special Revenue Fund
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Sales Tax NAWS

Original
& Final 2015 Variance 2014
Budgeted Actual with Final Actual
REVENUES Amounts Amounts Budget Amounts
Interest income $ 168441 § 261,084 % (92,643) § 136,410
Total revenues 168,441 261,084 (92,643) 136,410
EXPENDITURES
General government 3,000,000 241,306 2,758,694 420,631
Total expenditures 3,000,000 241,306 2,758,694 420,631
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (2,831,559 19,778 (2,851,337) (284,221
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (50,000) (50,000) - {50,000}
Total other financing sources {uses) (50,000) (50,000) - (50,000)
Net change in fund balance § (2,881,559) (30,222) % (2,851,337) (334,221)
Fund balance, January 1 34,130,645 34,464,866
Fund balance, December 31 $ 34,100,423 $ 34,130,645
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City of Minot, North Daketa
Statement of Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Business-Type Activitics
Enterprise Funds

Water
ASSETS Alrport Sanitation & Sewer Noomajor
Currgnt assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 10953953 § 3,588,401 § 27894953 § 481287
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,441,420 - 3,287,153 -
Investments - certificate of depasits - 1,001,108 12,015,276 -
Taxes receivable delinquent - - - 10,741
Accounts receivable 399.35¢ 385414 4,016,960 17,298
Altowance for doubtful accounts - - (972,086) -
Intergovernmental receivable 2,963,589 142,371 6,481,334 425
Accrued interest receivable " 1,108 7,753 -
Inventory - - - -
Prepaid 2,808 1405 25,867 164
Total current assets 15,766,126 5,049,867 32,757,150 502,915
Moncurrent assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1307645 - 1,140,386 -
Advance from other funds - - 3,701,456 .
Unamortized bond discounts 284,601 - 31,532 -
Other assets - capital eredis 27,884 52,600 227.663 3341
Capital assets
Land 2,890,804 367335 1,843,495 313,901
Buildings 12,210947 2,149,398 4,848 486 130,885
Equipment 4,785,712 4314923 8,318,841 566,763
Infrastructure 71,799,788 4,126,280 192,853,907 407,289
[ntangible assets - - 454,849 -
Construction i progress 50,006,507 105872 29,786,453 2,605
Total capital assets 141,694,158 11,063,808 240,106,031 1443443
Less-accumulated depreciation (28,258,480} (4,226,079) (38,477,194) (704,742)
Net capital assets 113,435,678 6,837,729 181,628,837 738701
Total noncurrent assets 115,055,808 6,800,329 186,729,874 742,042
Total assels 130,821,928 11,940,196 239,487,024 1,251,957
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources related to pension 291,603 810,834 1,407,357 64,150
Total deferred outflows of resources 291,603 210,834 1,407,357 64.150
LIABIATIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 2,197 415 90,535 5,695,823 4,356
Retainage payable 5,530,802 3.892 2,572,713 -
Accrued salaries payable 15,900 23,668 40,284 4481
Compensated absences 31,625 20,991 47,724 7.287
Insurance claims payable - - - -
Bonds payable 1,265,000 - 2,995,000 B
Notes payable - - 81,i19 -
Capital leases payable 179 162616 - -
Accrued interest payable 236420 - 211,034 -
Unearned revenue - other 5,675 - - -
Total current habilities 9,213,016 310,702 11,643,697 16,124
Long-term liabilities
Customer deposits 5364 - 195,494 600
Compensated absences 40,162 55,698 88,61 13,534
Bonds payable 29,780,000 - 24,750,000 -
Notes payable - - 1,049,862 -
Unamortized bond premiums - - 687,929 -
Capital leases payable 3499 851,362 11,733 -
Advance 10 other funds - - 228,372 -
Accrued MSWLF closure and postclosure care costs - 1,078,849 - -
Net pension liabitity 1,511,754 3,518,203 7,392,256 501,921
Total fong-term liabilities 31,340,779 5,504,112 34,404 277 516.055
Total Habilities 40,553,795 5.814.814 46,047,974 532,179
DEFERRED INFIL.OWS OTF RESQOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources related to pension 1,557 55,894 130.08% 38,579
Total deferred inflow of resources 7.557 55,894 130,089 38,579
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets 86,667,664 5823751 153,644,761 738,701
Restricted for bond covenants 2,749,065 - 4,427,539 -
Restricted for passenger facility receipts not spent - - - -
Restricted for chapel/veteran's memorial . - - -
Unrestricted net position 1,135,450 1,056,571 36,044,018 6,648
Total net position $ 90552179 § 6880322 5 194716318 § 745349

The ecampanying seies o the finenciof stalements are an iniegral pact of these statemients,
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Statement of Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2815

With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

3l

Governmental
Activities
Total Internal
Enterprise Service Total Total
ASSETS Funds Funds 2015 2014
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 42848594 3 2.308,068 45,156,662 3 39,174 818
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 4,728,573 - 4,728,573 2,881,293
[nvestments « certificate of deposits 13,016,444 - 13,016,444 -
Taxes receivable delinquent 10,741 - 10,741 3,406
Accounts receivable 4,819,022 7.33% 4,826,361 3,148,781
Alowance for doubtful accounts (972,086) - (972,086) (280,722
Intergovernmental receivable 9,592,719 - 9,592,719 13,535,844
Acerued interest receivable 8.861 - 8,861 -
Inventory - 312,509 312,509 350,361
Prepard 30,184 - 30,184 63,244
Total current assets 74,083,052 2,627.916 76,710,968 58.879,025
Nencurrent assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2,448,031 - 2,448,031 2900315
Advance from cther funds 3,701,456 - 3,701,456 383,833
Unamortized bond discounts 316,133 - 316,133 195,046
Other assets - capital credits 311488 2232 313,720 196,774
Capital assets
Land 5417,535 . 5417,535 5417535
Buildings 21,359,716 - 21,339,716 21,696,204
Equipment 17,986,239 - 17,986,239 16,572927
Infrastructure 269,187,264 “ 269,187,264 216,178,846
[ntangible assets 454,840 - 454,849 454,849
Construction in progress 79,901 437 - 75,901,837 48,330,342
Total capital assets 394,307,440 - 394,307,440 308,650,703
Less-aceumulated depreciation (91,666,495 - {91,666,495) (86,851.,968)
Net capital assets 302,640,945 - 302,640,945 221,798,73%
Total noneurrent assets 309,418,053 2232 309,420,285 225474703
Total assets 583,501,105 2,630,148 386,131,253 284,353,728
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outllows of resources refated to pension 2.573.944 - 2,573,944 -
Total deferred ovtflows of resources 2,573,944 - 2,573,944 -
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 7,988,120 20,487 8,008,616 8,645811
Retainage payable 8,107.407 - 8,107,407 3,690,940
Accrucd salarics payable 84,333 . 84,333 235,491
Compensated absences 106,628 - 106,628 93,835
Insurance claims payable - 142,927 142,927 109,069
Bonds payable 4,200,000 - 4,200,000 2,295.000
MNotes payable 81,119 - 81,119 78,353
Capital leases payable 162,795 - 162,795 230,825
Accrued interest payable 447,454 - 447,454 493,538
Unearned revenue - other 5,675 - 5,675 975
Total current liabilities 21,183,340 163,414 21.346.954 15.873.837
Long-term labslities
Customer deposits 201,458 - 201,458 192,366
Compensated absences 198,024 - 198,024 174,284
Bonds payable 54,530,000 B 54,530,000 40,100,000
Notes payable 1,049,862 - 1,049,862 1,130,981
Unamortized bond premiunms 087,929 - 687,929 439,757
Capital leases payable 866,594 - 866,594 242,567
Advanee to other funds 228,372 - 228372 297,831
Accrued MSWLF closure and postelosure care ¢osts 1,078,849 - 1,078,849 923,392
Met pension liability 12,924,134 - 12,524,134 -
Total long-term liabilities 71,765,222 - 71,765,222 43,501,158
Total liabilities 92.948.762 163414 93,112,176 59,374,995
DEFERRED INFLOYWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resaurces related to pension 232119 - 232,119 -
Total deferred inflow of resources 232,119 - 232119 -
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets 246,874,877 . 246,874,877 187,576,187
Restricted for bond covenants 7,176,604 - 7.176,604 5.115,955
Restricted for passenger facility receipts not spent - - - 651,251
Restricted for chapelfveteran's memorial - . - 14,402
Unrestricted net position 38,842,687 2,466,734 41,309.421 31,620,938
Total net position 262,894,168 § 2,466,734 295,360,902 224.978,733
Some amounis reported for business-type activities in the
statement of net position are different because centain
intemal service fumd assets and liabilities are included. 453,560 453,560 462,170
§ 203.347.728 205814462 S 225.447.903




City of Minot, North Dakota

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds

For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015

With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

OPERATING REVENUES

Sales
Cost of goods sold
Gross margin
Charges for services
Employer
Employee
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries
Employee benefits
Professional services
Property services
Purchased services
Supplies
Sundry
Insurance claims
Amortization
MSWLF closure & postclosure care
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES {(EXPENSES)

Property tax collections
Intergovernmental revenues
Interest income
Miscellaneous income (expense)
Gain (loss) on sale of City property
Passenger facility charge income
Customer facility charge income
Interest and fiscal charges
Total non-operating revenues {expenses)
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers
Capital contributions
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total contributions and transfers
Change in net position
Net position, January 1
Change in accounting principle - Note SE
Net position, January 1, as restated
Net position, December 31

Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Water
Airport Sanitation & Sewer Nonmajor
b3 - b3 - - b -
3,339,385 4,534,462 19,890,510 359,334

- 2,616 66,219 -

3,339,385 4,537,078 19,956,729 359,334
869,183 1,463,703 2,490,096 311,887
215,986 344,302 577.833 89,204

1,203,835 32,066 60,466 97

1,589.424 673,693 2,457,926 30,078
117,125 46,867 573.397 18,462
249,652 285,342 2,817,980 23277
189,585 617,345 1,668,472 31,396

- - 11,176 -

- 155,457 - -
3,721,229 845,618 8,492,140 61,333
8,156,019 4,464,393 19,149,486 567,796

{4.816.634) 72,685 807.243 {208,462}
- - - 166,746
1,372,949 - - -
15,253 6,481 96,287 1,051
(54.697) 42,719 1,252,547 3,611
(5.265) 5,200 (179,782) -
722.830 - - -
303,361 - - -
(597,076) (102) (838.360) -
1,759,355 54,298 330,692 171,408
(3,057.279) 126,983 1,137,935 (37,054)
21,362,081 - 62,750,889 -
545,173 243,044 1,036,939 -
(97,099 (409,404) (2,516,381) (64,327)
21,810,155 (166,360) 61,271,447 (64,327)
18,752,876 (39,377) 62,409,382 (101,381)
73,086,526 9,833,061 138,696,584 1,339,283
(1,287,223) (2,913,362) {6,389,648) (492,533)
71,799,303 6,919,699 132,306,936 346,730
$ 90552179 § 6,880,322 § 194716318 § 745349

The accompanying noies ro the financial statements are an infegral part of these statentents.
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City of Minot, North Dakota

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015

With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Governmental
Activities
Total Internal
Enterprise Service Total Total
OPERATING REVENUES Funds Funds 2015 2014
Sales § - $ 994277 3 994,277 § 1,335,788
Cost of goods sold - (902,794} (902,794)  (1,241,660)
Gross margin - 91,483 91,483 94,128
Charges for services 28,123,691 - 28,123,691 28,217,086
Employer - 2,193,558 2,193,558 1.877,129
Employee - 633,410 633,410 562,813
Miscellaneous 68,835 - 68,835 52,443
Total operating revenues 28,192,526 2,918,451 31,110,977 30,803,599
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries 5,134,869 - 5,134,869 4,894,913
Employee benefits 1,227,385 - 1,227,385 1,629,872
Professional services 1,296,464 “ 1,296,464 773,175
Property services 4,751,121 - 4,751,121 3,924,130
Purchased services 755,851 - 755,851 618,580
Supplies 3,378,251 - 3,378,251 3,989,056
Sundry 2,506,798 - 2,506,798 2,502,810
Insurance claims - 2,523,588 2,523,588 2,038,201
Amortization 11,176 - 11,176 7,107
MSWLF closure & postclosure care 155,457 - 155,457 143,634
Depreciation 13,120,322 - 13,120,322 10,348,263
Total operating expenses 32,337,694 2,523,588 34,861,282 30,809,741
Operating income (loss) (4,145,168) 394,863 (3,730,305) {66,142)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Property tax collections 166,746 - 166,746 82,208
Intergovernmental revenues 1,372,949 - 1,372,949 144,096
Interest income 119,072 3,943 123,015 118,502
Miscellaneous income {expense) 1.244,180 44,649 1,288,829 (288,670)
Gain (loss) on sale of City property (179,847) - (179,847} (22.433)
Passenger facility charge income 722,830 - 722,830 872,372
Customer facility charge income 305,361 - 305,361 375,935
Interest and fiscal charges (1,435,538) - (1,435,538  (1,207,269)
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 2,315,753 48,592 2,364,345 74,741
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers (1.829,415) 443,455 (1,385,960) 8,599
Capital contributions 84,112,970 - 84,112,970 67,305,703
Transfers in 1,825,156 - 1,825,156 1,606,228
Transfers out (3,087,211) - (3,087,211  (1.252,918)
Total contributions and transfers 82.850,915 - 82,850,915 67,659,013
Change in net position 81,021,500 443,455
Net position, January 1 222955454 2,023,279
Change in accounting principle - Note 5E (11,082,786) -
Net position, January 1, as restated 211,872,668 2,023,279
Net position, December 31 $ 202804168 $ 2.466,734
Change in net position enterprise funds only 81,021,500 67,551,384
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of
internal service fund activities to enterprise funds (15,610) 44,194

Change in net position of business-type activities

$ 81.005,890 § 67.593.578
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprictary Funds

For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31,2014

Business-Type Activitics
Enterprise Funds

Water &
Airport Sanitation Sewer Nonmajor
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users $ 3237411 3 4482318 § 19175997 § 343,908
Payments to suppliers (635,825) (1,575,688} {6,641,000) (109,780}
Payments to employees {1,§55,351) (1,583,457} {3,406,708) (432,220)
Due from otlier agencies 2,751,899 3.297 1,187,367 109
Due to other agencics - - - {1,266)
Net cash provided (uscd) by operating activities 4,198,134 926,870 10,315,656 {199,249)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Taxes received 1,318,252 42,7119 1,252,547 170,357
Transfers in 345,173 243,044 1,436,939 -
‘Fransfers ou £97,099) (409,404) (2,516,381) {64,327)
Internat activity - payments from ather funds - - (3,317,623} -
Internat activity - payments to other funds - - {69,459} -
Net cash provided (used) by nencapital financing activitics 1,766,326 (123,641) (3.613.977) 106,030
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital contributions 21,362,085 - 41,951,568 -
Passenger facility charges 722,830 - - -
Customer facility charges 305,361 - - -
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (39,659,435) 238,185 (24,509,927} (34,339
Praceeds from bonds 11,770,000 - 6,860,000 -
Disposal of capital assets (367,776} (696,285) (7,432,756} -
Capital lease payment {898) (325,838) (2,167} -
Principal paid on capital debt - - (2.373,353) -
Interest paid on capital debt (597,076} (02) (838,360) -
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related finaneing activities (6,464,213} {791,040) 13,655,005 (34,339}
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividends £5,253 6,48) 96,287 1,051
Net cash provided by investing activities 15,253 6,481 96,287 1,051
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash cquivalents {485,200) 18,670 20,452,973 {126,507}
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1 14,188,218 4,500,899 23,884,797 607,794
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31 $ 13,703.018 5§ 4519369 5 44.337.768 § 481.287
Cash and cash equivalents arc comprised of the following:
Cash and cash equivalents 310,953,953 § 3518401 § 27,894,953 S 481287
Tnvestients - certificate of deposits - 1,001,168 12,015,276 -
Restricted cash and casl cquivalents - current 1,441,420 - 3,287,153 -
Restricted cash and casl equivaleats - noncurrent 1,307,645 - 1,140,386 -
Total cash and cash equivalents o the Statement of Net Position $ 13703018 § 4.519.569 § 44,337,768 § 481287
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) 5 (4,816,634} § 72,685 § 807243 S (208442)
Adjustients to reconcile operating income {loss} to
net cash provided (used) by operating activitics
Depreciation expense 3,721,229 845,618 8,492,140 61,335
Amortization expense - - 11,176 -
MSWLF closure and post closure care cost adjustnent - 155,457 - -
Change in assets and liabilities
Taxes receivable - - - (7.335)
Receivables, net 28,57t (67.363) (938,424) (8.047)
Accrued interest receivable - (1.108) (7,753} -
Inventory - - - -
Prepaid 8,334 22,569 £, 151 (44}
Accounts payable 72,710 75,733 (797,256) (4,470}
Retainapge payable 2,709,274 3,892 1,703,301 "
[ntergovermmentat receivables 2,151,899 3,257 1,187,367 562
Accrued salaries payable (£0,667) (24,953) {64,119) {11,370)
[nsurance claims payable - - - -
Accrued interest payable (68,218) - 22,134 (3,496)
Custemer deposits 30 - 9,062 -
Other assets/liabilitics {143,579) {8,858) 164,294 (1.719)
MNet pension liability (59.5§5) (150,099) (274,660) (16,203)
Uneamed revenue - other 4,700 - - -
Met cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 4,198,134 § 926870 ¥ 10315656 5 (199.249)
NONCASH CAPITAL ACTIVITY
Borrawing under capital lease N - $ 87,000 S 13900 § -
Construction of capital assets from developers - - 20,796,321 -

Transfer fully depreciated capital assets to general fund -
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Due fram other agencies
Due 1o other agencics
Net cash provided {used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FENANCING ACTIVITIES
Taxes received
Transfers in
Transfers out
Internal activity « payments from other funds
Internal activity - payments te other funds
Net eash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

Governmental

Total
Enterprise
Funds

Activities

Internal Service

Funds

Total
2015

Tatal
2014

3 27,239,634 3

3,858,344 § 31097978 § 232,158,688

CASH FLOWS FROM CATITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital contributions
Passenger facility charges
Customer facility charges
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from bonds
Disposal of capital assels
Capital lease payment
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividends
Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivaients
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31

Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the following:

(8.962,293) (3.373.586) (12,335879) (8,618,391}
(6,977,336} - (6977.336)  {6,487,637)
3,942,672 - 3,942,672 -
{1,266} - (1,266) (6,242,229}
15241411 484758 15,726,169 10,810,431
2,783,875 - 2,783,875 270,708
1,825,156 - 1,625,156 1,606,228
(3.087,211) - (3,087,211} {1,252.918)
(3.317,623) 4,649 (3.272,974) {289,276}
(69,459) - (69,459} -
{1.865,262) 44,649 (1,820,613) 334,742
63,313,649 - 63,313,640 46,663,982
722,830 - 722,830 872,372
305,361 - 305,361 375,935
(63,972,516} - (63,972,516)  (39,581,772)
18,630,000 - 18,630,000 10,910,000
(8.496,817) - (8.496,817)  (23.134,303)
(328,903) - (328,903} (215,671}
(2,373,353) - (2.373.353) (4,595,681}
(1,435,538) . (1,435,538} {1.207,269)
6,364,713 . 6.364.713 (9912407}
119,072 3.943 123,015 118,502
119,072 3,043 123,015 118,502
19,859,934 533350 20,393,284 1,351,268
43,181,708 1774718 44556426 43.605.158
S 63.041.642 S 2308068 S 65349710 S 44,956.426

Cash and cash equivalents $ 42,848,594 S 2,308,068 $ 45,156,662 S 39,174.818
[nvestments - certificate of deposits 13,016,444 - 13,016,444 -
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - current 4,728,573 - 4,728,573 2,881,293
Restricted cash and ¢ash equivalents - noncurrent 2,448,031 - 2,448,031 2,900,385
Total cash and cash cquivalents on the Statement of Net Position $ 63041642 §  2308.068 $ 65.349.710 S 44956426
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) £ (d,145.168) & 394,863 3 (3,750,305) $ {66,142}
Adjustments to reconciie operating incomne {loss}) to
net cash provided (used) Dy operating activities
Depreciation expense 13,126,322 - 13,120,322 10,348,263
Amortization expense 11,176 - 11,176 7107
MSWLF closure and post closure care cost adjustiment 155,457 - 155,457 143,634
Chaage in assets and liabilities
Taxes receivable (7,335} - (7,335) 1,422
Receivebles, net (983,463} (753) (936,216) 215,233
Acerzed interest receivable (8,861) - (8,861) -
iaventory - 37,852 37,852 3.736
Prepaid 32,210 2,850 35,060 (43,440)
Accounts payable (653,283) 16,088 (637,195) 4,022,332
Retainage payable 4,416,467 - 4,416,467 2,292,707
Intergovernmental receivables 3,943,125 - 3,943,125 (6,241,725)
Accrued salaries payabie ($1E,109) - (111,109) 30,780
Insurance claims payable - 33,858 33,858 (6,602)
Accrued interest payable {49.580) - (49,580) 148,615
Customer deposits 9,092 - 9,092 21,387
Other assets/liabilities 10,£38 - 14,138 {66,870)
Net pension liabilicy (500,477) - {500,477} -
Uncamed revenue - other 4,700 - 4,708 -
Net cash provided {used) by operating activitics 3 15241411 § 484,758 § 15,726,169 5 10.810431
NONCASH CAPITAL ACTIVITY
Borrowing under capital lease S 884900 S " S 884900 S 5383
Construction of capital assets from developers 20,799,321 - 20,799,321 20,641,721
Transfer fully depreciated capital assets to general fund - - - 221,594

The accompanying notes to the financial siatements are an integral part of these Statements,
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
December 31, 2015
Pension OPEB
Trust Trust Agency
Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents b 171,064 % - 3 404,426
Investments
Money market 785,921 34,855
Equity/stocks 34,211,683 669,625
Fixed income 21,699,341 402,421
Alternative 4,201,907 53,732
Total investments 60,898,852 1,160,633
Taxes receivable delinquent 25,131 - 1,015
Due from other funds 88,934 - 265
Intergovernmental receivable - - 24,843
Total assets 61,183,981 1,160,633 $ 510,954
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable - - $ 510,689
Due to other funds - 88,934 265
Total liabilities - 88,934 3 510,954
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 25,131 -
NET POSITION
Restricted for pension benefits 61,158,850 -
Restricted for OPEB benefits - 1,071,699
Total net position $ 61,158,850 % 1,071,699

The accompanying Rotes to the financial statements are an integral part of these sfatements.



City of Minot, North Dakota
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Pension OPEB
Trust Trust 2015 2014
Fund Fund Total Total
ADDITEONS
Contributions
Employer $ 4250241 3% 32,959 § 4283200 § 4,847,704
Employee 2,635,549 466,515 3,102,064 3,194,919
Total contributions 6,885,790 499,474 7,385,264 8,042,623
Investment income
Interest and dividends 1,596,449 22,292 1,618,741 1,690,204
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments (2,765,087) (34,777) (2,799,864) 2,605,674
Total investment income (1,168,638) (12,485) (1,181,123) 4,295,878
L.ess investment expense 157,642 3,161 160,803 149,915
Net investment income (1,326,280) (15,646) (1,341,926) 4,145,963
Total additions 5,559,510 483,828 6,043,338 12,188,586
DEDUCTIONS
Benefits paid to plan member and beneficiaries 7,299,926 - 7,299,026 6,912,542
Refunds paid to plan member and beneficiaries 434,086 - 434,086 566,634
Retiree claims - 363,549 363,549 549,772
Third party premiums - 176,300 176,300 166,938
Administrative expenses 224,143 15,600 239,743 316,469
Total deductions 7,958,155 555,449 8,513,604 8,512,355
Change in net position (2,398,645) (71,621) (2,470,266) 3,676,231
Net position, January 1 63,557,495 1,143,320 64,700,815 61,024,584
Net position, December 31 $ 61,158,850 % 1,071,699 § 62,230,549 § 64,700,815
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CITY OF MINOT, NORTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015

Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The financial statements of the City have been
prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
The GASB is the nationally accepted standard setting
body for establishing GAAP for governmental
accounting and financial reporting. With respect to
both the government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements, the City has adopted GASB
statement No. 62 “Codification of Accounting and
Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements, ” Governments also have the option
of following subsequent private-sector guidance for
their business-type activities and enterprise funds,
subject to this same limitation. The City has elected
not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

B. REPORTING ENTITY

The City of Minot was incorporated on July 16, 1887.
The City has been governed by a Council, with a part-
time Mayor and 14 part-time Aldermen, since the
citizens approved a home rule charter in 1972. The
accompanying financial statements present the
activities of the City of Minot. Only funds of the City
have been included since the City does not have any
blended or discrete component units,

C. BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GASB
34)

The basic financial statements are prepared in
conformity with GASB Statement No. 34 and
presented on both the government-wide and fund
financial level. Both the government-wide and fund
financial statements categorize primary activities as
either governmental or business-type.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements, consisting
of the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities or Changes in Net Position, report
information on all of the non-fiduciary activities.
Reporting of the internal activities has been eliminated
to avoid duplication on the statements.

Government activities, which normally are supported

by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely
significantly on fees and charges for support.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree
the direct expenses of a given function or segment is
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
The City eliminates indirect expense allocations from
the statement of financial activities. Program revenues
include: 1) fines, fees, and charges for services to
customers that benefit from the services provided, 2)
operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital
grants and contributions, including special assessments,
The City reports taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements report information at the
individual fund level. Each fund is considered a
separate accounting entity. Separate financial
statements are provided for governmental funds,
proprietary funds and fiduciary funds, even though the
latter are excluded from the government-wide
statements. Major individual governmental funds and
major individual enterprise funds are reported in
separate columns in the fund financial statements.
Nonmajor funds are consolidated into a single column
within each fund type in the financial section of the
basic financial statements and are detailed in the
supplemental information.

D. FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

The financial transactions of the City are recorded in
individual funds. Each fund is accounted for by
providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts
comprised of its assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund balance
or net position, revenues and expenditures/expenses.
The various funds are reported by generic classification
within the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria
{percentage of assets, liabilities, revenues or
expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the
governmental and enterprise combined) for the
determination of major funds. The nonmajor funds are
combined in a column in the fund financial statements
and are detailed in the combining statements section.



CITY OF MINOT, NORTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015

Notes to Financial Statements

The City reports the following major governmental
funds:

The General Fund is the government’s primary
operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those
required to be accounted for in another fund.
Revenue sources include property taxes, licenses
and permits, state and county shared revenues, and
charges for goods and services. In addition to
general government, primary expenditures include
public safety, highways and streets, culture and
recreation, and economic development.

The Sales Tax NAWS Fund accounts for the
collection of a one percent City sales tax. The
collection on this tax was reallocated by the
Finance Director effective October [, 2011 due to
sufficient funds available to pay the local share of
the Northwest Area Water Supply project as
projected at the time the collection was
reallocated.

The Special Assessment Debt Fund is a debt
service fund established to accumulate the
resources from properties benefitted by special
assessment districts used to pay the principal and
interest on bonds for projects in special assessment
districts.

The Highway Reserve Fund is used to account
for the financing of highway improvement projects
in the City of Minot funded by federal, state, and
local funds.

The Capital Purchases Fund is a capital project
fund used to fund capital purchases deemed
beneficial to the citizens of Minot and funded by
federal, state, and local funds.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Airport Fund is used to account for the
activities of airline services to the residents of the
City and the surrounding areas. The rates generate
the primary funding source.

The Sanitation Fund is used to account for
residential garbage collection as well as landfill
services for the City. The residential and landfill
rates fund the expense and keep the fund self-
supporting.

The Water and Sewer Fund accounts for the
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water and sewer services provided to the City. The
rates are set to ensure the costs of services and
infrastructure debt are adequate.

Additionally, the government reports the following
fund types:

The Internal Service Funds account for health
insurance and fleet management services provided
to other departments of the government, or to other
governments, on a cost reimbursement basis.

The Fiduciary Trust Funds account for the
activities of the City Employee Pension Plan,
which accumulates resources for pension, benefit
payments to qualified employees, and the City’s
Other Post-Employment Benefits, which
accumulate resources for OPEB payments to
qualified employees.

The Agency Funds are used for assets held by the
City as the agent for other individuals, private
organizations, or other governmental units and/or
funds. These funds include Payroll Deductions,
Social Security, and Hotel/Motel and Motor
Vehicle Taxes (collects lodging and motor vehicle
taxes disbursed to the Convention and Visitor’s
Bureau and All Season’s Arena).

E. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF
ACCOUNTING

Measurement focus is a term used to describe which
transactions are recorded within the various financial
statements. Basis of accounting refers to when
transactions are recorded, regardless of the
measurement focus.

The government-wide financial statements are reported
using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary
fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. This
focus concentrates on the fund’s assets. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Agency funds have no measurement
focus. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items
are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported
using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting,



CITY OF MINOT, NORTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMEBER 31, 2015

Notes to Financial Statements

This focus concentrates on the fund’s resources
available for spending currently or in the near future.
Revenues are recognized when they become both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered
available when they are collectible within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the City considers
revenues available if they are collected within 30 days
of the end of the fiscal year. Expenditures are generally
recognized when the liability is incurred, as under
accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are
recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, sales taxes, municipal highway taxes,
estate taxes, and franchise fees are considered to be
susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion
of special assessment receivable due within the current
fiscal period is considered susceptible to accrual as
revenue of the current period. All other revenues are
considered measurable and available only when cash is
received by the City.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and
expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services
and producing and delivering goods in connection with
a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the City of Minot’s
enterprise and internal service funds are charges to
customers for sales and services. Operating expenses
for enterprise funds and internal service funds include
the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses,
MSWLF closure and post-closure care costs, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When fund balance resources are available for use, it is
the government’s policy to use restricted, committed,
assigned, and unassigned resources as they are needed
in that order.

The financial statements include certain prior-year
summarized comparative information in total. Such
information does not include sufficient detail to
constitute a presentation in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such
information should be read in conjunction with the
City’s financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2014, from which the summarized
information was derived.
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F. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET
POSITION OR EQUITY

Cash

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as short-term,
highly liquid investments readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and so near their maturity they present
insignificant risk of change in value because of
changes in interest rates.

Interest earnings are allocated to the funds based on an
average balance in the cash account. Those funds that
have an average negative balance in the cash account
are charged interest at the rate earned by the cash
account.

Investments

North Dakota state statute authorizes municipalities to
invest their surplus funds in: a) bonds, treasury bills
and notes, or other securities that are a direct obligation
of, or an obligation insured or guaranteed by, the
Treasury of the United States, or its agencies,
instrumentalities, or organizations created by an act of
Congress; b) securities sold under agreements to
repurchase written by a financial institution in which
the underlying securities for the agreement to
repurchase are of a type listed above; ¢) certificates of
deposit fully insured by the federa! deposit insurance
corporation or by the state; and d) obligations of the
state.

The Pension Trust Funds are authorized to invest all or
part of their surplus funds in other investments by
selecting a funding agent or agents to hold and invest
such funds for the board and such funds shall be placed
for investment only with a firm or firms whose primary
endeavor is money management.

Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted
market prices. Fair value is the amount at which an
investment could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties.

Method used to value investments. Investments are
reported at fair value. Securities traded on a national or
international exchange are valued at the last reported
sales price at current exchange rates. For the pension
and OPEB plans, independent valuation services are
used along with appraisals for other investments. The
net appreciation in fair value of investments consists of
the realized gains or losses and the unrealized



CITY OF MINOT, NORTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015

Notes to Financial Statements

appreciation or depreciation in fair value of
investments during the year. Realized gains and losses
on sales of investments are computed based on the
difference between the sales price and the fair value of
the investments as of the beginning of the year or cost
if purchased during the year. Unrealized appreciation
or depreciation is computed based on changes in the
fair value of investments between years.

Receivables and Payables

Transactions between funds representative of
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end
of the fiscal year are referred to as “advances to/from
other funds™ (i.e., non-current inter-fund loans). All
other outstanding balances between funds are referred
to as *due to/from other funds” (i.e., current inter-fund
loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements
as “internal balances.”

All receivables are shown net of an allowance for
uncollectible accounts. This allowance is equal to
estimated losses that may be incurred in collection of
outstanding receivables.

All real estate 1s assessed as of the current value on
February | of each year. Property taxes are attached as
an enforceable lien on the real estate and become due
on January 1 of the year following the assessment date.
A 5% reduction of the taxes is allowed if the taxes are
paid in full by February 15.

Penalty and interest are added on March 1 if the first
half of the taxes is not paid. Additional penalty and
interest are added October 15 to those taxes not paid.
Taxes are collected by the County and remitted
monthly to the City.

The City is permitted under provisions of the Home
Rule Charter to levy taxes, as needed for general
governmental services and payment of principal and
interest on long-term debt.

Inventories and Prepaid [tems

Inventories are valued at average cost (first-in, first-
out) in the proprietary funds and the governmental
funds. The costs of inventory are recognized as
expenditures in governmental funds and as expenses in
proprietary funds when consumed.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to
future accounting periods (consumption method) and
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are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide
and fund financial statements.
Restricted Assets

Assets whose use is restricted for construction, debt
service, or the payment of specific claims and benefits
have been classified as restricted assets as their use is
limited by bond covenants or other externally imposed
requiremnents.

Certain proceeds of the City’s Airport and Water and
Sewer enterprise funds revenue bonds, as well as
certain resources set aside for their repayment, are
classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet
because their use is limited by applicable bond
covenants. A construction account is established within
the fund into which the proceeds of the bonds are
deposited. A debt service account is established within
the fund to set aside the net revenues of the utility each
month an amount equal to not less than the sum of one-
sixth of the interest due within the next six menths plus
one-twelfth of the principal to become due within the
next twelve months.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings,
equipment, infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
street lights, and similar items), intangibles, and books,
are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in the government-
wide financial statements. Capital assets, other than
infrastructure assets, are defined as assets with an
initial, individual cost of $5,000 or more and an
estimated useful life in excess of two years. The City
reports infrastructure assets on a network and
subsystemn basis. Accordingly, the amounts spent for
the construction or acquisition of infrastructure assets
are capitalized and reported in the government-wide
financial statements regardless of their amount. Capital
assets are valued at historical or estimated historical
cost if actual historical cost is not available. Donated
capital assets are valued at estimated fair value on the
date donated.

Additions or improverments that significantly add value
to an asset such as extending the useful life of an asset
or increasing capacity or efficiency are capitalized.
Other costs for repairs and maintenance are expensed
as incurred,

Depreciation/amortization has been provided over the
estimated useful life, using the straight-line method, as
follows:
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Buildings 20-40 years
Infrastructure 30-50 years
Equipment 3-10 years
Intangibles 10 years
Books 20 vears

Net Position/Fund Balance

The difference between assets plus deferred outflows
of resources and liabilities plus deferred inflows of
resources is “net position” on the government-wide,
proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements and
“fund balance™ on the governmental fund financial
statements.

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund
balances are classified as nonspendable, restricted,
committed, assigned or unassigned.

Nonspendable fund balance represents a portion of
fund balance that includes amounts that cannot be
spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form
or {b) legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact.

Restricted fund balance represents a portion of fund
balance that reflects constraints placed on the use of
resources (other than nonspendable items) that are
either: (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as
through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws
or regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed by
taw through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

Committed fund balance includes amounts that can
only be used for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by formal action of the
government’s highest level of decision-making
authority (the City Council), the vote of the citizens, or
the wishes of a donor or third party. The formal action
required to be taken to establish, modify or rescind a
fund balance commitment is a majority vote by the
City Council.

Assigned fund balance represents amounts constrained
by the government’s intent to be used for specific
purposes, but neither restricted nor committed. The
City Council has the authority to assign amounts to a
specific purpose via an ordinance or resolution,

Unassigned fund balance represents residual
classification for the general fund. This classification
represents fund balance not assigned to other funds and
not restricted, committed, or assigned to specific
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purposes within the general fund. The general fund
should be the only fund that reports a positive
unassigned fund balance amount. In other
governmental funds, if expenditures incurred for
specific purposes exceeded the amounts restricted,
committed, or assigned to those purposes, it would be
necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance.

In the event the fund balance exceeds the minimum
requirements equal io one month’s average
expenditures for the budget year, the excess may be
utilized for any lawful purpose approved by City
Council. The first priority is to utilize the restricted
before unrestricted fund balance when both are
available. Committed funds will be considered spent
first when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for
which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund
balance classification could be used like assigned or
unassigned. In order to minimize the long term effect
of such use, the excess shall be appropriated to fund
one time expenditures or expenses which do not result
in recurring operating costs, or other onetime costs
including the establishment of or increase in legitimate
restriction or commitment of fund balance/retained
earnings in other funds.

The emergency levy fund is established and updated
through the annual budget process with the budget
ordinance approval by the City Council. The fund
objective is to keep the cash balance arcund the value
of three mill levy. The funds may be spent for overtime
along with associated benefits or operation
expenditures not predictable in the budget.

Compensated Absences

Employees accrue vacation leave at a rate of eight
hours per month for the first five years of continuous
service. The accrual rate is increased to ten hours per
month after five years, twelve hours per month after
ten years, and fourteen hours per month after fifteen
years of service. A maximum of 240 vacation hours
may be carried over from year to year. Accumuiated
unpaid vacation is accrued when earned in the
government-wide and proprietary fund statements.

Sick leave is accrued at a rate of eight hours per month
of continuous service. Accumulation of sick leave is
unlimited; however, liabilities are not recorded in any
fund, as there are no provisions for vesting of unused
sick leave.
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Self-Insurance

The City is self-insured for health benefits. Liabilities
are recorded when a determinable cilaim has been
incurred.

Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial
position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate element,
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition
of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so
will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
{revenue) until that time. The City has unavailable
revenue from a variety of sources in the governmental
funds. These amounts are deferred and recognized as
an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts
become available.

Deferred Qutflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position
will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate element, deferred
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net
assets by the government that is applicable to a future
reporting period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expenditure) until that time.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and
proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund
type statements of net position. Bond premiums and
discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of
the bonds using the effective interest method.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund
types recognize bond premiums and discounts during
the current period. The face amount of debt issued is
reported as other financing sources. Premiums received
on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported
as other financing uses.

Comparative Data/Reclassifications
Comparative total data for the prior year have been

presented in order to provide an understanding of the
changes in financial position and operations of these
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funds. Also, certain amounts presented in the prior year
date have been reclassified in order to be consistent
with the current year’s presentation,

G. REVENUES
Grant Revenue

The City recognizes grant revenues when all applicable
eligibility requirements, including time requirements,
are met. The City follows the policy if expenditures of
finds are the prime factor for determining eligibility
for the grant funds; revenue is recognized at the time of
the expenditure.

NOTE 2-RECONCILIATION OF
GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

A. The governmental fund balance sheet includes a
reconciliation between total governmental funds fund
balance and net position of governmental activities as
reported in the government-wide statement of net
position. One element of the reconciliation explains,
“long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not
due and payable in the current period and therefore are
not reported in the funds.” The details of this
{$40,668,643) difference are as follows:

Bonds payable $ 38,100,000
Unamortized discounts/premiums 1,229,694
Accrued interest payable 267,619
Capital lease payable 4,026
Compensated absences 1,067,304
Net adjusiment to reduce fund balance-

total governmental funds to arrive at

net position-govermnmmental activities 3 40.668.643

B. The governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances include
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances,
total governmental funds and changes in net position of
sovernmental activities as reported in the government-
wide statement of activities. One element of that
reconciliation explains “Governmental funds report
capital outlays as expenditures; however, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets are
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense.” The details of these
differences are as follows:
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Donated capital assets $ 23.215,631
Capital outlay 49,490,425
Depreciation (11,141,611)
Net adjustment to decrease net changes

in fund balances—total governmental

funds to arrive at changes in net position

of govemmental funds $ 61564445
Proceeds from capital asset sales $ 88,865
CGain/(loss) on capital asset sales (715,735)
Net adjustment to decrease net changes

in fund balances—total governmental

funds to amive at changes in net position

of governmental funds 5 (626870

NOTE 3-STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND
ACCOUNTABILITY

A. COMPLIANCE WITH FINANCE-RELATED
LEGAL AND CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with
GAAP for the General Fund and Special Revenue
Funds. The Fire Equipment, Equipment Purchases, and
Flood Control Capital funds are the only three Capital
Project Funds budgeted. All appropriations lapse at
year-end unless encumbered.

The City incurred no material violations of finance-
related legal and contractual provision.

B. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER
APPROPRIATIONS AT THE LEGAL LEVEL
OF CONTROL

The budget is prepared by fund, by department within
each fund, and by line item within each department.
The legal level of budgetary control is at the fund level.
The management of the City of Minot has the authority
to exceed line items or department budgets as long as
the fund appropriations are not exceeded. City Council
approval is required for (a) the transfer of
appropriations from one fund to another fund or the
addition of line items within a fund or both and (b) an
increase in the aggregate total of appropriations in
order to reflect changes in financial circumstances.

The City incurred two violations of excess of
expenditures over appropriations. Sales Tax
Improvements incurred over a $0.6 million violation
due to budgeted transfers being considered in the
budget balancing process. Special Assessment Debt
incurred a $2.8 million violation due to the Capital
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Financing Program bond proceeds were planned to
offset expenditures.

C. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCE DEFICITS

The City had no fund balance deficits as of December
31,2015,

NOTE 4-DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS
A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Except for the cash in the NAWS fund, the City
maintains a pooled cash portfolio used by substantially
all City funds using the pooled deposit and investment
concept. This concept provides the City with the ability
to maximize earnings on idle fund monies while
ensuring the liquidity needs of each fund are met and
the integrity of the cash balances of each fund are
preserved. The poo! consists of checking and savings
accounts, certificates of deposit, and securities,
including money market accounts, which are stated at
market value.

Government and Business-Type Funds

Investment Policy: The City's investment policy serves
as the guide to the deposit and investment of operating
funds managed within the City’s pooled cash porifolio.
This policy sets forth the City’s investment objectives
as well as authorized and suitable deposits and
investments, and serves as a guide for proper
diversification, maturity constraints, internal controls
and performance measurement. The foremost
objective of the City’s investment program as set forth
by the investment policy is safety of principal.
Investment decisions are made under the assamption
that, except under limited circumstances, all
investments within the pooled cash portfolio will be
held to maturity.

Allowable deposits and investments:

a. U.S. Treasury obligations, which carry the full
faith and credit guarantee of the United States
government and are considered to be the most
secure instruments available;

b. U.S. government agency and instrumentality
obligations that have a liquid market with a
readily determinable market value;

c. Certificates of deposits and other evidences of
deposit at financial institutions;

d. Repurchase agreements whose underlying
purchased securities consist of the
aforementioned instruments
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Custodial credit risk - deposits: This is the risk in the
event of bank failure, the government’s deposits may
not be returned to it. As of December 31, 2015, the
City is fully insured by FDIC and has pledged
collateral in the amount of 110% of its investments.

Custodial credit risk - investment: This is the risk, in
the event of the failure of the counterparty; the
government will not be able to recover the value of its
investments or collateral securities in the possession of
an outside party. The City of Minot minimizes credit
risk, which is the risk of loss due to the failure of the
issuer or backer, by; 1) limiting investments to the
types of authorized securities; 2) pre-qualifying the
financial institutions with which the City will do
business; and 3) diversifying the investment portfolio
so the impact of potential losses from any one type of
security or from any one individual issuer will be
minimized.

Interest rate risk: The City minimizes interest rate risk,
which is the risk the market value of securities in the
portfolio will fall due to changes in market interest
rates, by: 1) structuring the investment portfolio so
securities mature to meet cash requirements for
ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell
securities prior to maturity; and 2) investing operating
funds primarily in shorter-term securities, money
market funds, or similar investments and limiting the
average maturity of the portfolio in accordance with
this policy.

As of December 31, 2015, the City has invested in cash
and money markets $127,683,736, $15,637,374 of U.S.
bonds, and certificates of deposit $17,010,513, which
have no credit ratings. The City also has NAWS
investments valued at $27,429,755. The fixed income
securities are all United States Government Agency
securities.

Investment Type Fair Value  Rated AAA  Not-Rated
Fixed Income 3 22,366,789 $17461331 F 4,905438
Cash & Money Market 1,053,083 - 1,053,083
Totat Fair Value 3 23419872 $17461331 § 5938541
Maturity (Years) Fixed Income

0-1 $ 4195545
1-3 17,150,363
3-5 286,944
10-15 629,758
15+ 104,179

3267
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B, INTERGOVERNMENTAL RECEIVABLES

A total of $25,456,551 is due from intergovernmental
receivables. This includes $14,956,869 due from the
Federal Government, $6,213,794 from an EDA grants;
$£3,875,317 from Department of Emergency Services;
$2,577,275 from Community Development Block
Grant — Disaster Recovery grant; $1,430,707 from the
FAA; $463,692 from U.S. Corp of Engineers;
$191,775 from Community Development Block
Grants; $74,984 from Department of Transportation
grants; $60,898 from Department of Homeland
Security; $60,423 from EPA grants; and $8,004 from
Department of Justice. It also includes $10,213,815
from the State of North Dakota, $3,143,398 from the
State Water Commission for home acquisitions;
$1,849,315 for city sales taxes; $1,609,450 for ND
Department of Emergency Services; $1,537,882 for
State Aeronautics; $1,024,294 for State Aid
Distribution: $650,021 for ND Trust Land Grants;
$298,200 for Municipal Highway tax; $40,896 from
ND Housing & Finance Agency; $29,987 from ND
Bureau of Criminal Investigation; $24,647 for NDDOT
projects; and $5,725 from ND gambling taxes; and
$285,867 due from Ward county.

C. RECEIVABLES

Loans receivables as of the end of the current fiscal year for
the Sales Tax-Economic Development fund were:

Due within one year $ 800,000
Due after one year 1,750,000
Less: allowance for uncollectible (510,000%
Total loans receivable £ 2.040.000

The only receivables not expected to be collected
within one year are $15,161,857 of special assessments
deferred and the loans receivables as noted above.

Governmental funds report deferred inflows in
connection with receivables for revenues not
considered available to liquidate liabilities of the
current period. At the end of the current fiscal year, the
deferred inflows reported in the governmental funds
were as follows:

Uncertified special assessments $ 16,761,940
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 446,512
Unavailable revenue - special assessments 16,420

Total deferred inflows of resources $17.224.872
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Receivables for the City’s individual major, nonmajor and
internal service funds, including the applicable allowances
for uncollectible accounts, are in the following table:

Accrued Less: Allow
Taxes Specials Specials  Accounts Intergovt'l  Interest Gross for Total Net

Delinquent  Deferred  Delinquent Reccivable Loans Receivable  Receivable  Receivables  Uncollectible  Receivables

General $ SR0,754 % 9775 § 1075 3 463350 % - 5 1927814 S 23844 § 3006612 $ (126085) § 23880527
Sales Tax NAWS - - - - - - 4,143 4,143 . 4,143
Assessment debt 5,187 16,681,025 16,415 - - 688 B 16,703,315 - 16,703,315
Highway reserve - - - 38,502 - 4,834,051 . 4,872,953 . 4,872,933
Capital purchases - - - - - 4,243,608 B 4,243,608 - 4,243,608
Nenmajor govemimental 444,520 71,140 2270 145,853 2,550,000 4,857,671 - 8,076,434 {510,000y 7,566,454
Airport - - - 399,350 - 2.968,589 - 3,367,939 - 3367939
Sanitation - - - 385414 “ 142,371 1,108 528,893 - 528,893
Water and sewer - - - 4,016,960 - 6,481,334 7,753 10,506,047 {972,086) 9,533,961
Nonmajor enterprise 10,741 - - 17,298 - 425 - 28,464 - 28,164
Internal service - - “ 7,339 - - - 7,339 - 7338
Total net receivables 3 1.041;3.02 $ 16761940 & 24760 353474466 $ 2350000 $25436551 § 36848 $51.345767 5 (i.608.171) $49.737.596
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D. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31,

2015 was as follows:

Governmental Activities

Land
Construction in progress
Depreciable assets
Buildings
Equipment
Infrastructure
Intangible assets
Books
Totals at historical cost
Accumulated depreciation
Buildings
Equipment
Infrastructure
Intangible assets
Books
Total accumulated depreciation
Govermnmental activities capital assets, net

Business-Type Activitics

Land
Construction in progress
Depreciable assets
Buildings
Equipment
Infrastructure
Intangible assets
Totals at historical cost
Accumulated depreciation
Buildings
Equipment
Infrastructure
Intangible assets
Total accumulated depreciation
Business-lype activities capital assets, net
Total capital assets, net

Balance 01/01/15 Additions Deletions Transfers  Balance 12/31/15
3 31,055,094 § 12,068,589 §$ 554,496 $ - 5 42,569,187 |
8215463 72,743,165 60,750,276 - 20,208,352
14,913,448 397,409 421,336 - 14,889,521 :
17,911,741 3,922,288 318,675 - 21,515,354 .
180,559,156 44,260,256 107,829 - 224,711,583 ¢
598,329 - - - 508,329 |
3,794,171 153,490 616,799 - 3,330,862 ¢
257,047,402 133,545,197 62,769,411 - 327,823,188
{7,912,987) (383,357 421,336 - (7.875.208)
(10,552,739} (1,676,891 255,401 - (11,974,229}
{45,195,400) (8,966,904) 9,864 - (54,152.440):
{223,584) {51.833) - - 275417,
(2.949.207) (62,426) 616,759 - (2,394,834);
(66,833.917) {11, 14L61D 1,303,400 - {76,672.128)
3 190213485 § 122403586 3 61.466.011  § - $ 251151060
Balance 01/01/15 Additions Deletions Transfers Balance 12/31/15
3 5417535 § - h) - $ - 3 5417535
48,330,342 §5,082,669 53,511,174 - 79,901,837
21,696,204 - 336,488 - 21,359,716
16,572,927 2,288,697 812,243 (63,142) 17,986,239
216,178,846 60,346,295 7401019 63,142 269,187,264
454,849 - - - 454,849
308,650,703 147,717,661 62,060,924 - 394,307,440
(12.559,657) {588,394) 324,922 - (12,823.129)
(10.430,253) (1,895,990) 776,330 - (11,549,913)
(63,487,394 (10,622,861) 7,211,649 - (66,899,106)
(374,164) (20,183) - - (394.347)
{86,851,968) (13.127,428) 8,312,901 - (91,666,495)
221,798,735 134,590,233 53,748,023 - 302,640,945

3 412,012,220 §

256.993.819 §

115214034 3

8 553.792.005

47



CITY OF MINOT, NORTH DAKOTA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015

Notes to Financial Statements

Depreciation expenditure or expense was charged to
the following functions/programs of the City for the
current fiscal year:

Govemnmental Activities

General government § 830,087
Public safety 1,075,421
Highways and streets 3.944.086
Culture and recreation 292,017

Total depreciation expenditure -

govermnmental activities $i,141,611

Business -Type Activities

Airport $ 3,721,229
Cemetery 47,799
Parking authority 13,536
Sanitation 845,618
Water and sewer 8,499,246

Total depreciation expense -

business-type activities $13,127.428

E. COMMITMENTS

Construction and other significant commitments as of
December 31, 2015 were $86,260,830.

Spent to Date Remaining
General fund b 378,735 % 435,671
Highway reserve 30,870,204 6,233,733
Capital purchases 12,801,977 5,762,773
Nonmajor governmental funds 19,141,520 10,181,439
Airport 65,647,494 15,298,301
Sanitation 100,327 120,615
Water and sewer 41,186,251 48,179.469
Nonmajor enterprisc funds - 46,329

3 170,126,508 § 86,260,830

The City is also committed to approximately $74.1
million local share in the Northwest Area Water
Supply Project to bring water from the Missouri River
to Minot. The City’s local share of expenditures to date
is approximately $41.3 million. The City has
approximately $32.8 million local share remaining on
this project. This project will be funded with sales tax
monies approved by the voters in March 1999. The
City has encumbrance commitments of $1,189,150 in
the general fund, and $8,995,032 in nonmajor
governmental funds. The City has encumbrance
commitments of $1,231,094 in Airport, $24,365 in
Sanitation, $1,282,766 in Water and Sewer.

48

Although there are various other commitments, it is the
opinion of the City they will not have a material effect
on the financial statements.

F. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES,
AND TRANSFERS

Total
Highway Nenmajor Water&  Adwance
Govemmental funds Reserwe Gov't Sewer From
Special Assessment Debt § 5 (286395 S 354845 51341140
Nonmajor Gov 173,527 173,527
Business-type funds
Water & Sewer 33,227 3,568,229 - 3,701,456

Total advance to §133.227 5 4854524 $ 228372 $35216123

The composition of interfund advance to and from
balances at December 31, 2015 is to fund outstanding
special assessments and highway debt paid in annual
installments for storm sewer development.

Nonmajor Total
Govemnmental funds Gov't Due From
Nenmajor govemmental $1,072,005 31,072,005
Total Due To $ 1,072,005 $1.072,005

The interfund due to and from balances are to maintain
positive fund balances as of the end of the year.

Transfers are used to 1) move revenues from the fund
with collection authority to the debt service fund as
debt service principal and interest payments become
due, 2) move restricted amounts from borrowings to
the debt service fund to establish mandatory reserve
accounts, and 3) move unrestricted general fund
revenues to finance various programs the government
must account for in other funds in accerdance with
budgetary authorizations.
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The following table shows transfers out by major fund
and nonmajor funds in aggregate:

Special Nonmajor Nonmajor
General  Sales Tax  Assessment  Highway Capital  Gowernmental Water &  Enterprise Tatal

Transfers Out Fund NAWS Debt Reserve  Purchases Funds Airport  Sanitation Sewer Funds  Transfers In
General fund $ 142 5 50000 S 3131 8 69511 S - % 6320231 S 14969 § 282256 S 147862 & 1051 § 6,880,153
Assessment debt - - - - - - - - 3315 - 3313
Highway reserve - - - . - 69,058 - - - - 69,058
Capital purchases 37,097 - B - - 2,511,044 - - - - 2548141
Nenmajor govemmentat funds 29,860 - - 56,750 2658260 5,258,673 82,130 127,148 2,126,174 63,276 10,396,268
Admport - - - - - 532917 - - 12,256 - 345,173
Sanitation - - - - - 16,267 - - 226,777 - 243,044
Water and sewer - - - 7.862 - 1,029,077 - - - . 1,036,939

Total trans fers out S 67099 § 50000 S 3131 § 128123 § 2658260 § (5737267 § 97099 § 409404 5 2516381 § 64327 $21.731001
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Transfers infout consisted of the following:
$ 197204 Interest Distribution tzansfers to Genesal Fund
50,000  Highway Reserve budgeted transfers to General Fund for highway repairs
157  Highway Reserve transfers to Gereral Fund
30,000  Sales Tax NAWS budgeted transfess to general fund for administration
7,862 Highway Reserve transfers to Water/Sewer
30,750 Highway Reserve transfers to Street Improvements
1,600,000  Capital Purchases transfers to Flood Control Capital for MREFPP project
168  Capital Purchases transfers to Street Improvements
82,130 Aimort transfers to Sales Tax Econemic Development
275,775  Sanitation budgeted transfers to Generai Fund
76,990  Water/Sewer budgeted transfers to General Fund
13,448  Emergency fund transfers to General Fund
28,i70  General Fund transfer to Equipment Purchase
14,679 Sales Tax Improvements transfer to Equipment Purchase
[04  Equipment Purchase transfer to Equipment Purchase
109,733 Sanitation budgeted equipment transfers to Equipment Purchase Fund
1,148  Sanitation transferto CDBG-DR $67.5M
33153 Water/Sewer trans fers to Special Assessment Debt Fund for debt payments
12,256  Water/Sewer trans fers to Airport
226,777 Water/Sewer budgeted transfers to Sanitation
1,341,79%  Water/Sewer budgeted transfers to Special Assessment Capital
405,525  Water/Sewer budgeted equipment transfers to Equipment Purchase Fund
45 Special Assessment Capital to Sales TaxCommunity Facilities
5,375 Water/Sewer transfers to Highway Debt Fund for debt payments
180,000  Water/Sewer budgeted transfers to Street Improvements Fund
185,000  Water/Sewer transfers to Sales Tax Flood Control
63,276 Cemetery transfers to Sales Tax Improvements Fund
1,368,990  Sales TaxPropernty TaxRelief budgeted transfers to General Fund
179440  Sales TaxImprovements trans fers to General Fund
50,000  MAGIC Fund administration budgeted transfers to General Fund
4,527,148 Sales TaxProperty TaxRelief budgeted transfers to General Fund - Second Penny
30,000 Sales Tax Infrastructure budgeted trans fers to General Fund
50,000 Sales TaxCommunity Facilities budgeted transfers to General Fund
23401  Equipment Purchase transfer to Flood Control Capital
63,750  Equipment Purchase transfers to Fire Equipment
1,124 Equipment Purchase transfess to Library for noncapital purchases
15,000  Equipment Purchase transfers to Sales TaxFloed Control
16,267  Equipment Purchase trensfers to Sanitation
8473  Equipment Purchase transfers to Water/Sewer
69,058  Highway Debt budgeted transfers to Highway Reserve
50,087  Special Assessment Capital to Street Improvements
37,097  General Fuad transfer to Capital Purchases
1,411 Sales TaxImprovements transfer to Capital Purchases
245,000  Highway Debt transfers to Capital Purchases
6,167 Sales Tax Community Facilitics transfers to Street Improvements
68,770  Sertoma Sports Complextansfers to Sales Tax Improvements
500,000 Sales TaxInfrastructure budgeted transfers to Water/Sewer
300,000  Sales TaxImprovements budgeted transfers to Airport
520,602  Sales TaxImprovements budgeted transfers to Water/Sewer
220,862  Sales TaxImprovements budgeted transfers to Recreation/Auditorium
352,908  Sales Tax Improvements budgeted transfers to Street Improvements
101,000 Sales Tax Improvements budgeted transfers to Library
102,232 Library transfers to Library
1,118,294  Street Improvements transfers 1o Sales Tax Economic Development
1,032,692  Capitat Purchases transfer to Flood Control Capital
232917  Sales TaxInfrastructure transfers to Airport
547334  Sales Tax Economic Development transfer to Capital Purchases
2600000  Sales TaxFlood Contsol transfer to Flood Control Capital
2,000,083  Sales TaxInfrastructure budgeted transfers to Street Improvements Fund
170,000  Sales Tax Infrastructure budgeted transfers to Reereation/Auditorium
117,299  Fire Equipment transfers to Capital Purchase for capital purchases
$ 21.731.090 Total transfers infout
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G. LEASES

Operating Leases. The City leases equipment under
operating leases. Operating leases do not give rise to
property rights or lease obligations; therefore, the
results of the lease agreements are not reflected in the
City’s assets and liabilities. Total cost for such leases
were $253,121 for the year ended December 31, 2015.
The future minimum lease payments for these leases
are as follows:

Year Ended December 31 Amounts
2016 § 253,121
Total minimum payments § 253121

Capital Leases. The City has entered into two capital
lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition
Caterpillar compactor for the landfill and a mailer
machine for utility billing. The agreements have been
recorded at the present value of their future minimum
lease payments as of the inception date.

The assets acquired through capital leases are as

follows:
Governmental Proprictary

Activities Activities
Assel:
Equipment $ 7,921 $ 1,757,233
Less: Accumtlated depreciation {2,640} (651,518)
Total 3 5,281 $ 110575

The future minimum lease obligations and the net
present value of these minimum lease payments as of
December 31, 2015, were as follows:

Governmental Proprietary
Year Ended December 31 Activities Activities
20i6 s 3,403 § 348,487
2087 1,134 248,486
2018 - 153,996
2019 - 149,302
2020 - 257,250
Total mimirnum lease payments 4,537 1,157,521
Less: Amount representing interest (511} (128,132}
Present value of minimum lease payments _$ 4,026 $ 1.029.389

H. LONG-TERM DEBT

Governmental activities inciude the following types of
long-term debt:

General obligation bonds are issued to provide funds
for the acquisition and construction of major capital
iterns. They are direct obligations and pledge the full
faith and credit of the City of Minot. These bonds are
paid through the debt service fund by a tax levy and
sales tax funds sufficient to meet the current year’s

principal and interest payments. The City issued
$390,000 of general obligation bonds in 2015 for
highway projects. These bonds are generally issued as
10-year bonds and the outstanding bonds have interest
rates ranging from 1.15% to 4.60%.

General obligation bonds currently outstanding are as
follows:
Balance
Original Outstanding  Interest

Year Amount 12/31/2015 Rate Matures

2007 $ 1,785,000 % 420,000 3.65-3.70%  10/01/2017
2008 1,720,000 385,000 4.20-4.60%  10/01/2018
2009 2,005,000 870,000 2.623-3.10% 1070122019
2010 1,375,000 725,000 1.60-270%  106/08/2020
2012 2,900,000 1,565,000 2.00% 10/08/2023
2013 6,815,000 5,125,000 2.00-3.00%  10:01/2023
2014 3,950,000 3,580,000 2.004.00%  10/01/2024
2015 390,000 390,060 2.00-3.00%  10/01/2025

$ 20940000 § 13.260.000

Special assessment bonds are issued to provide funds
for the construction of improvement projects for
residential and commercial developments. Special
assessment bonds are paid directly from the sinking
funds with the annual certification payments made by
the property owners who directly benefit from each
project. During the year, the City issued $1,835,000 of
special assessment bonds for storm sewer districts and
paving districts. The City has $22,930,000 special
assessment bonds outstanding backed by property
owner annual certification payments. The City of
Minot is legally obligated to meet any deficiencies by
levying ad valorum taxes. Interest rates on the
outstanding bonds range from 0.50% to 5.00%,

Special assessment bonds currently outstanding are as
follows:

Balance
Original Qutstanding  Interest

Year Amount 12/31/2015 Rate Matures

2006 910,000 § 90,000 4.00% 10/G1/2006
2007 2,255,000 1,220,000 4.25-4.50%  10/01/2022
2007 460,000 110000  3.875% 10/01/2017
2008 1,905,000 650,000 3.00% 10/0172018
2011 4,285,000 2,750,000 2.00-3.00%  10/01/2021
2012 1,883,000 1,320,000 0.60-1.60%  10/01/2023
2013 11,393,000 10,925,000 2.00-4.00%  10/01/2033
2014 4,135,000 3,830,000 2.00-3.375% E0/01/2034
2015 1,835,000 1,835,000 2.00-3.25%  [0/01/2033

$ 29265000 $ 22.930.000
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Business-type activities include the following type of
long-term debt:

Notes outstanding as of December 31, 2015 include the
Bureau of Reclamation note on the Garrison Diversion
Project for $1,130,981 with a 3.50% interest rate, and
matures July 1, 2027, Water and sewer fund income is
used to pay the annual principal and interest due.

Revenue Bonds. The City of Minot issues bonds where
it pledges income derived from the acquired or
constructed assets to pay debt service. Interest rates on
the outstanding bonds range from 2.00% to 5.375%.

During the year, the City issued $11,770,000 in
revenue bonds for airport new terminal projects and
$6,860,000 for water and sewer projects. The following
are outstanding revenue bonds:

Airport
Batance
Original Quistanding  Interest
Year Amount 12/31/2015 Rate Matures
2013 $ 12,505,000 § 12,505,000 3.004.50% 10/01/2035
2014 6,710,000 6,780,000 2.00-4.00%  10/01/2035
2015 11,770,000 11,770,000 2.00-3.625% 10/01/2035

$ 30985000 3§ 30.985.000

Water & Sewer
Balance
Original Qutstanding  Inferest

Year Amount 12/31/2015 Rate Matures

972§ - % 1130981  3.50% 07/01/2027
2008 1,835,000 440,000 3.83-3.90%  10/01/2017
2008 10,380,000 6,660,000 4.50-5.375% 10/01/2023
2001 2,005,000 1,275,000 2.00% 10/01/2021
2012 3,650,000 2,320,000 2.00% 10/01/2023
2012 1,935,000 1,595,000 2.00% 10/01/2024
2013 5,220,000 4,640,000 3.004.00%  10/01/2028
2014 4,200,000 3955000 2.25-3.10%  10/012029
2015 6,860,000 6,860,000 2.00-3.00%  10/01/2025

$ 36105000 3 28.87508]

During the year, the City of Minot issued capital
financing program bonds for the All Seasons Arena to
update the facility for $1,945,000. Capital financial
program bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

Capital Financing Program Bonds
Balance
Original Qutstanding  Interest
Year Amount 12/31/2015 Rate Matures

2015 $ 1945000 $§ 1,910,000 3.00-400%  06/01/2029

Annual debt service requirements to maturity (not
including compensated absences) are as follows:

General OQbligation Bonds

Governmental Activities Principal Interest

2016 § 2,190,000 $ 355,181
2017 1,913,000 304,555
2018 1,745,000 256,173
2019 1,580,000 213,730
2020-2024 5,785,000 493,500
2025-2029 45,000 1,350

Total govemmental activities $§ 13,260,000 3 1,624,889

Special Assessment Bonds

Governmental Activities Principal Interest

2016 $ 2,180,000 § 702949
2017 2,140.000 645,334
2018 2,150,000 581,315
2019 1,570,000 516,981
2020-2024 8,563,000 1,746,165
2025-2029 2,890,000 848,406
2030-2034 2,915,000 313,023
2035 120,000 3.900

Total governmental activities  $22,930,000 § 5,358,073

Revenue Bonds

Business-Type Activitics Principal Interest

2016 § 4200000 3 1867048
2017 3,915,000 1,828,800
2018 3,800,000 1,716,906
2019 3,905,000 1,606,744
2020-2024 19,453,000 6,092,643
2025-2029 11,895,000 3,433,863
2030-2034 9,445,000 1,572,900
2035 2,115,000 85,019

Total business-type activities _$ 58.730.000 3 18.203.929

Notcs Payable

Business-Type Activities Principai Interest

2016 $ 81,119 § 40276
2017 83,983 37461
2018 86,948 34,547
2019 90,018 31,330
2020-2024 502,451 108,483
2025-2029 286,461 21,157

Total business-type activities _$ 1130981 3 273454
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Capital Financing Program Bonds

Governmental Activities Principal Interest

2016 3 110,000 $ 63,500
2017 115,000 60,125
2018 120,000 56,600
2019 120,000 53,000
2020-2024 660,000 207,550
2025-2029 785,000 81,100

Total govermnmental activities § 1,910,000 § 521,875

Changes in Long Term Liabilities. The following is a
summary of the activity for long-term liabilities for the
year ended December 31, 2015.

Beginning Due Within
Governmental Activities Balance Additions Deletions Ending Balance  One Year
Bonds payable
General obligation $ 15255000 % 390,000 % (2,385,000 § 13,260,000 $ 2,190,000
Special assessment 23,160,000 1.835,000 (2,065,000) 22,930,000 2,180,000
Capital Financing Program Bonds - 1,945,000 (35,0000 1,910,000 110,000
Total bonds payable 38,415,000 4,170,000 (4,485,000) 38,100,000 4,480,000
Unamortized premium 1,185,993 166,241 (107,596) 1,244,638 108.675
Unamortized discount (15,302) (1,779) 2,137 (14.544) 2218
Capital leases 6,495 - (2.469) 4.026 3,403
Compensated absences 1,024,492 821,541 (778.729) 1,067,304 373.556
Net pension liability 41,819,046 8,278,698 (3,698,048) 46,399,696 -

Governmental activity long-term liabilities § 82435724

$§ 13434701 § {9.069.703)

$ 86800720 § 4.963416

Beginning Due Within
Business-Type Activities Balance Additions Deletions Ending Balance  One Year
Bonds payable
Revenue bonds $ 42395000 $ 18,630,000 3 (2,295,000 § 38,730,000 $ 4,200,000
Unamortized premium 439,757 293,268 (45,096) 687,929 71,979
Unamertized discount (195,046) {133,333) 12,246 (316,133} (18,358)
Notes payable 1,209,334 - (78,333) 1,130,981 81,119
Capital leases 473,392 884,900 (328,903) 1,029,389 162,795
Compensated absences 268,099 235,800 (199,247) 304,652 106,628
Net pension liability 11,082,786 2,573,945 (732,597} 12,924,134 -

Business-type activity long-term liabilities § 55673322

§ 22484580 § {3.666.950)

§ 74490952 § 4,604,163

Compensated absences for governmental activities are
generally liquidated by the general fund.

Arbitrage is the reinvestinent of the proceeds of tax-
exempt securities in materially higher yielding taxable
securities. Any excess earnings resulting from arbitrage
must be rebated to the federal government.

The City’s debt limit is $203,226,781 and the legal
debt margin is $191,071,246.

Net pension liability of $59,323,830 was recorded at
December 31, 2015 due to the implementation of
GASB Statement No. 68 Accounting and Financial
Reparting for Pensions.
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L FUND BALANCE
Special Major Debt
Revenue Service Mzajor Capital Project Funds Nonmajor
Fund Special Other
General Sales Tax Assessment Higlway Capitai Govemmental
Fund NAWS Debt Reserve Purchases Funds Total
Fund balances
Nons pencable
[nventosy S - $ - s - $ - s - S 6,083 § 6,083
Long-term oans receivable - - - - - 1,750,000 1,750,000
Prepaid 197445 1,006 - - - 8.504 206,949
Other assets - capital credits 320414 - - - - 36,973 357,387
Totat nanspendalie 317.859 1,000 - - - 1.801.360 2.320419
Restricted
General government - - - - - 25,541 25,541
Highways and strects - . " - - 14,49} 14,491
Culture and recreation - - - - - 2,900 2,900
Community development - - - - - 6,440,273 6,440,271
Sales taximprovements - - - . - 5,862,916 5.862,9t6
Sales tax flood control - - - - - 11,238,809 11,238,309
Sales tax property tax relief - - - - - 3,320,232 3,320,232
Sales taxinfrastaucture - - - - - 7483,834 7.483,834
Sales tax community facilities - - - - - 6,669,543 6,669,543
NAWS - 34,099.423 - - - 34099423
Debt service reserve - - 3,166,702 - - 1,195,984 4,362,686
Tatat restricted - 34,095.423 3.166.702 - - 42,254,520 79,530,645
Assigned
General govemiment - - - - - 691,399 691,399
Public transportation - B - - - 343,023 343,023
Culture and recreation - - - - - 1,156,836 1,156,836
Emergency fund - - - - - 665,750 665,750
Highways and streets - - - 1,623,037 - 4314911 11,939,948
Debt service - - 1,334,502 - - 221,555 1.562,057
Equipment purchases - - - - - 1,507,100 1,107,100
Capital purchases - - - - 3117498 904,79 4,022 297
Special assessment districts - - . - - 1,214,962 1,214,969
Stonn sewer development - - - - - 3,122,266 3,122,266
Other purposces - - - - - 38716 38.716
Total assigned - - 1.334.502 7,625,037 3,117.498 13.787.324 25,864,361
Unassigned 24,689,554 - - - - - 24,689,554
Total fund balance S 25207413 5 34100423 § 4301204 $ 1623037 5 3117498 S 57843404 § 132394979
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NOTE 5-OTHER INFORMATION
A. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City of Minot is exposed to various risks of loss
related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and
natural disasters. During the mid - 1980s, the

City was not able to obtain general liability insurance
at a cost it considered economically justifiable.

In 1986, the state and other political subdivisions
joined together to form the North Dakota Insurance
Reserve Fund (NDIRF), a public entity risk pool
currently operating as a common risk management and
insurance program for the state and over 2,000 political
subdivisions. All members joined to help capitalize the
NDIRF. During the past five years, the NDIRF
returned approximately 13.6% of the capitalized
amount with a premium reduction or cash payment to
the City. The City pays an annual premium to NDIRF
for its general insurance, personal injury insurance,
auto insurance, and inland marine insurance coverage.
The coverage by NDIRF is limited to losses of
$1,000,000 per occurrence for general liability and
$2,000,000 per occurrence for errors and omissions.
The City continues to carry commercial insurance for
all other risks of loss, including workers' compensation,
employee health and accident insurance. Settled claims
resulting from the above risks have not exceeded
insurance coverage in any of the past three years.

Employee Health Benefits

Effective January 1, 1999, the City began insuring for
employee health benefits. All covered expenses are
paid from the City’s Health Insurance Fund, which is
operated by a third party administrator. Risks retained
by the employees include deductibles and co-insurance.
The City pays all other claims subject to the health plan
agreement up to plan maximums. Commercial stop loss
insurance has been purchased to limit catastrophic
losses. This coverage pays all claims in excess of
$20,000 per year per employee with a $2,230,300
lifetime employee maximum. The City’s insurer pays
all aggregate claims in excess of $1,858,583.

Claims, which have been incurred at year-end but not
reported, have been recorded as insurance claims
payable in the amount of $142,927. This reserve
requirement was calculated by the City and it is the
amount payable within 90 days of year-end. A
summary of the claim liabilities and related claim
payments are shown below:
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Current
Year Claims

Beginning Incurred and Ending

Claim  Changes in  Payments Claim
Liability  FEstimates on Claims Liability
2013 121,892 1,587.463 1,593,684 115,671
2014 115,671 1,809.265 1,815,867 109,069
2015 109,069 1,824,945 1,791,087 142,927

B. TERMINATION BENEFITS

The Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act
{COBRA) provides certain former employees, retirees,
spouses, former spouses, and dependent children the
right to temporary continuation of health coverage at
group rates. Group health coverage for COBRA
participants is usually more expensive than health
coverage for active employees, since the employer
pays a part of the premium for active employees while
COBRA participants pay the entire premium
themselves. It is ordinarily less expensive, though, than
individual health coverage.

As of December 31, 2015, the City had two COBRA
participants for health. Each COBRA participant who
voluntarily terminated is responsible for 100% of the
premium; however, there remains an implicit rate
subsidy to the City for a maximum of 18 months per
participant. The City has not reported a liability for
termination benefits because the amount is not
reasonably estimated. The City expects to have former
employees on COBRA on an ongoing basis.

C. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There are various police department claims against the
City; however, it is the opinion of the City they will
have no material effect on the financial statements.

D. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On January 21, 2016, the City was awarded $74.3M
from the National Disaster Resilience Competition.
The funds will be used to reduce flood risk and
increase resilience, build affordable resilient
neighborhoods, and foster economic resilience and
diversification.
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E. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

The City implemented GASB 68 Accounting for
Financial Reporting for Pengion in 2015 which
addresses the accounting and financial reporting
requirements for pension. The provisions of GASB
Statement 68 separate accounting and financial
reporting from how pension are funded and require
changes in the notes to the financial statements and
required supplementary information. Significant
changes include an actuarial calculation of the total and
net pension liability. It also includes comprehensive
footnote disclosure regarding the pension liability, the
sensitivity of the net pension liability to the discount
rate, and the pension expense and related deferred
outflows/inflows of resources disclosures. The City
restated the beginning net position to record the
beginning deferred pension contributions and net
pension liability as follows:

Governmental  Business-Type
Aclivities

Activities Total

Net position, January | -beginning as
previausly reported
Change in acounting principle

{41,819.446) (11,082,786}

3 284887973 5 223424625 $508,312,598
(52.901.832)

Net position, January 1, beginning as restated _$ 243.068,927 S 212341839 £455 410,766

F. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND
PLANS

The City of Minot administers a defined benefit
pension plan covering all civil service full-time
employees hired before January 1, 2014 and an Other
Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) plan. Each plan is
inciuded in the City’s financial reports as Pension and
OPEBR Trust Funds. The City of Minot Finance
Department, PO Box 5006, Minot, North Dakota
58702 has separate actuarial reports for each plan.
Separate financial statements are not issued. The City
of Minot also administers a defined contribution plan
and a deferred compensation plan for all full-time
employees hired after December 31, 2013,

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN AND OPEB PLAN

Plan Description. The City Employee Pension Plan
(CEPP) is a cost sharing, multiple employer public
employee retirement system. The pension plan
document provides all employees of the City of Minot
(excluding non-civil service employees) or the Minot
Park District, with a hire date before January 1, 2014,
shall become a member of the pension plan at the time
they begin employment. There are no provisions or
policies with respect to automatic and ad hoc
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postretirement benefit increases. Effective January 1,
2014 the Plian was closed to new participants.

OPEB Plan Description. The OPEB Plan is a single-
employer plan, which provides all employees of the
City of Minot (excluding the Minot Park District, as
they are not on the City health plan and non-civil
service City employees) participating in the City’s
group health insurance plan (medical and prescription
drugs), who retire under the CEPP, may continue to
participate in the City’s group health insurance plan
after retirement. Employees are eligible to continue
coverage in the group health insurance plan until they
attain age 63, provided eligibility requirements are met
and applicable premiums are paid. Retirees or spouses
that elect not to continue health coverage, at any time,
are not eligible to reenroll in the City’s group health
insurance plan.

Plan Administration. North Dakota Century Code 40-
46 grants the authority to establish and amend the
benefit terms to the City Council. Management of the
CEPP is vested in the CEPP Board, which consists of
10 members; the Mayor, City Auditor, Human
Resource Director, Police Chief, 2 members from the
Police Department elected by police plan members, 2
at large members elected by all plan members except
police department members, and 2 City Council
members appointed by the Mayor. Elected members
serve 2-year terms.

The following table summarizes membership
information by plan at the actuarial date:

Pension OPEB

Retirees and beneficiaries
receiving bencfits 248 61
Terminated employees

Vested 29 37

Non-vested 17 8
Total terminated employees 46 45
Active employees

Vested 175 236

Non-vested 132 46
Total active employees 307 282
Date ofannual valuation /120016 1/1/2015

Benefits Provided. For the CEPP, the benefit
provisions, amendments, and all requirements are
amended in the pension plan document. City civil
service employees hired before July 6, 2010, who retire
at or after the age of 60 with 60 months of service and
civil service employees hired on or after July 6, 2010,
who retire at or after the age of 60 with 120 months of
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service are eligible for a monthly pension benefit and
OPEB benefits. The average monthly earnings are
considered the average of the highest 36 months
earnings prior to July 6, 2010 and 48 months after July
6, 2010, within the last 120 months (need not be
consecutive).

After December 31, 2003, members satisfying the Rule
of 85 are also eligible for a monthly pension benefit
and QPEB benefits. After July 6, 2010, members
satisfying the Rule of 90 and who have attained age 55
are eligible for a monthly pension benefit and OPEB
benefits. Also, the average monthly earnings is
calculated using the highest 78 bi-weekly earnings
within the last 120 months. The Rule of 85/90 is
satisfied when the member’s age plus the member’s
total period of service equals 85/90 years and the
employee is at least 55 years old.

Prior to July 6, 2010, benefits vest after 5 years of
service. After July 5, 2010, benefits vest after 10
years. Vested employees may retire upon Rule of 85/90
or 60 years of age after 5/10years of employment. The
pension and OPEB plans provide the same death
benefits. If death is not in the course of employment
and the participant has less than 5/10 years of service,
then a refund of contributions is made. In all other
cases, the plan pays survivor benefits allocated on a
percentage dependent upon if there is a surviving
spouse and/or children or other beneficiaries. For
participants who die in the course of employment or
are deferred vested or active participants with more
than 5/10 years of service, the benefit amount is equal
to the normal retirement benefit.

Supplemental Benefils Provided. Employees who retire
under the City of Minot Employee’s Pension Plan
before January I, 2004 and annually provide proof of
health insurance coverage receive a monthly healthcare
supplement equal to the City’s portion of the group-
blended premium for an active employee with single
coverage. Employees who retire under the City of
Minot Pension Plan after December 31, 2003 and
employees hired before July 6, 2010 receive a monthly
healthcare supplement equal to $7.50 per year of
service, Employees hired after July 5, 2010 do not
receive any retiree healthcare supplement. These
supplements are accounted for in the pension plan
valuation because they are not restricted to the payment
of health insurance.

Contributions Required and Contributions Made. The
actuary does not determine the pension contribution
rates; rather it is done by employer recommendations
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within the limits established by state statute. The
employees contributed 14.74% and the employer
24.77% of covered payroll. The employer contributions
to the plans are to be made through an annual tax levy
or other budgeted sources. Based on an actuarial
valuation, contributions are providing for a closed
amortization period of 30 years (28 years remaining as
of January 1, 2016) respectively on the unfunded
liability at January 1, 2016.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan
Asset Matters.

Basis of Accounting, The City Employee Pension and
OPEB Plan financial statements are prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting. Employee contributions
are recognized as revenues in the period they are due.
Employer contributions are recognized when due and
the employer has made a formal commitment to
provide the contribution. Benefits and refunds are
recoghized when due and payable in accordance with
the terms of the plans.

Investment Policy. The pension plan’s policy in regard
to the allocation of invested assets is established and
may be amended by the CEPP Board by a majority
vote of its members. It is the policy of the CEPP Board
to pursue an investment strategy that reduces risk
through the prudent diversification of the portfolio
across a broad selection of distinct asset classes. The
pension plan’s investment policy discourages the use of
cash equivalents, except for liquidity purposes, and
aims to refrain from dramatically shifting asset class
allocations over short time spans. The following was
the Board’s adopted asset allocation policy as of
December 31, 2014:

Target

Asset Class Allocation
US Fixed Income 28%
International Fixed Income 7%
Domestic Equity 42%
International Equity 15%
Altemnative Investments 8%

100%

The target allocation and investment policy were last
amended in April 2013.

The City also has pension & OPEB investments valued
at $60,898,852 and $1,160,633, respectively. The fixed
income securities are broken down by subclass,
maturities and ratings in the following tables:
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Fixed [ncome Subclass Pension OPEB
US Treasuries $ 773,749 § 60,252
Govemment Agencies 4,500,095 166,096
Comporate Bonds 4,467,383
Foreign Corporate Bonds [,070,674 -
International Fixed Income [,527,247 22,672
Taxable Fixed Income 596,372 153,401
Taxable Municipal Debt 8,763,321 -
$21,699.341 § 402421
Pension QOPEB Fixed
Maturity (Years) Fixed Income Income
1-3 § 450,390 i) -
3-5 1,257,133 39,596
E0-15 6,525,718 129,562
15+ 11,342,481 57,190
Not Defined 2,123,619 176,073
$21,699,341 $ 402,421
Pension OPEB Fixed
Credit Rating Fixed Income Income
AAA $ 6,387,168 ¥ 144338
AA+ 2,078,932 -
AA 2,592,650 -
AA- 1,268,786 -
A+ 1,159,622 -
A 946,883 -
A- 721,398 -
BBB+ 1,975,791 -
BBB 418,900 -
Not Rated 2,025,593 82,010
Not Defined 2,123,619 176,073
$21,699,341 $ 402,421

Interest income is recognized when earned. Dividend

income is recorded on the ex-dividend date.
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The City’s annual OPEB cost and net OPEB
obligation for 2015 is as follows:

OPEB
205 2014 2013
Annuat required contribution (ARC) $ 32958 £ 2389:i3 § 248901
Interest on net OPEB obligation {asset) {3,066) (1,978) (1,955)
Adjustment to ARC - beginning of year 3,496 1,701 1,650
Annual OPEB cost 33,388 238,636 248,596
Employer contributions (32,958} (253,150) (248,901)
Increase (deerease) in net OGPEB obligation 430 {14,5:4) (305)
Net OPEB obligation {asset} Janusry | (40,885} (26,371) (26,066)
Net OPEB obligation {asset) December 31 § (40,435) $  (40,885) §  (20,371)
Percentage of annual benefit cost 98.71% 106.08% 100.12%

The long-term expected rate of return of 7.50% on plan
investments was determined using official rates of
returnt under the Global Investment Performance
Standards in which best-estimate ranges of expected
future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of
return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation. The best estimates of
geometric real rates of return for each major asset class
are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term
Expected Rate of
Asset Class Retumn
US Fixed Income 3%
International Fixed Income 4%
Domestic Equity 8%
International Equity 9%
Alternative Investments 6%

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the
total pension liability was 7.5 percent. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate
assumed that plan member contributions will be made
at the current contribution rate and that City
contributions will be made at rates equal to the
difference between actuarially determined contribution
rates and the member rates. Based on those
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
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pension plan investments was applied to all periods of

projected benefit payments to determine the total
pension liability.

Rate of Return. For the year ended December 31,
2015, the annual money-weighted rate of return on
pension plan investments, net of pension plan
investment expense, was -1.9 percent. The money-
weighted rate of return expresses investment
performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for
the changing amounts actually invested,

The components of the net pension liability of all
participants at December 31, 2015 were as follows:

Total Pension Liability $125,763,452
Plan fidugiary net position 61,158,850
Net pension liability (asset) S 64,604,602

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability 48.63%

Actuarial Assumptions. The actuarial methods and
assumptions are presented by plan below. The

information is based upon the actuary reports generated

by the studies conducted by the Gallagher Group.
Securities are valued at fair market value. The
calculations are based on the benefits provided under

the terms of the substantive plan in effect at the time of
each valuation and the pattern of sharing costs between

the employee and the plan members to that point.

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events far into the future, and that
actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual
revision as results are compared to past expectations
and new estimates are made about the future. Actuarial
calculations reflect a long-term perspective.

The costs of administering the City Pension and OPEB
plans are part of the calculation to determine the
employer and employee contributions.

Below is listed the various actuarial methods and
significant assumptions used to measure the total
pension Hability and actuarially determined
contributions.

Assumption Pension OPER

Veluation date January 1, 2016 January 12015
Measurement Date January 1, 2016 Januvary i, 2015
Actuarial cost method Entry age nonmal Entry age normal
Amortization method Level dollar amount Level percentage of pay
Remaining amottiztion period 30 year closed period (28 years remain as of 1/1/16) 28 year closed period
Asset valuation method-Smoothing 5 Years Gains and Losses Fair market value
Investment rate of return 7.5% 7.5%
Projected safary increases 04 years of service 7% Same

5-12years of service 4.5% Same

13+ years of service 4% Same
Cost of Living Adjustments 1% after age 65 N/A
Inflation Rate N/A 3%
Marriage rate 85% Same
Spouse age differential males 3 years older than female spouses Same
Mortality Rate RP-2000 Mortality Table with projected future Same

Health insurance clections N/A

improvements to the valuation date

80% City employees elect medical coverage
60% City employees elect spousal coverage
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The healthcare trend rates are used to project health
insurance claims and administration costs and retiree
premiums into the future. The foilowing table provides
the healthcare cost trend rates for future years.

Fiscal Year

Pension Costs. At December 31, 2015, the CEPP
reported a net pension liability of $64,604,602. The
City of Minot reported a liability of $59,323,830 for its
proportionate share of the CEPP’s net pension liability.
The net pension liability was measured as of December
31, 2015, and the total pension liability used to

Beginning ___ Valuation calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
2013 9.50% actuarial valuation as of that date. The City of Minot’s
2014 9.00% proportion of the net pension liability was based on its
2015 8 50% present value of future payroll reEat‘i\fe to the total
2016 8.00% present value gf payroll for alll pamcl[‘Jatn}g employers.
2017 7 5004 At Decgmber 31, 2015, the City of Mmot 5

A0 proportionate share was 91.83% which was a decrease
2018 7.00% of .22% from its proportion measured as of December
2019 6.50% 31,2014,
2020 6.00% For the year ended December 31, 2015, The CEPP
2021 5.50% recognized pension expense of $8,091,322. The City
2022+ 5.00% of Minot recognized pension expense of $7,429,938 for

its proportionate share of the CEPP’s pension expense.

2015 data for funding progress of OPEB is as follows:
At December 31, 2015, the CEPP reported the

Actuarial Valuation Date January 1,2016 following amounts and sources for deferred outflows of
Actuarial Value of Plan Assets 1,071,699 resources and deferred inflows of resources:

Actuazial Accrued Liability (AAL) 1,063,175

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) (8,524)

Funded Ratio 100.80%4

Annual Covered Payrolf 16,700,000

UA AL as a Percentage of Annual Covered Payroil 0.05%

The QPEB schedule of funding progress found in the
required supplementary information presents multi-
year trend information showing the actuarial value of
plan assets is increasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

City of Minot's Proportionate Share
Balances at
December 31,2015

Balances at
December 31,2015

Deferred Qutflows Deferred Inflows Deferred Qutflows Deferred Inflows

Source of Resources of Resources of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and ac § 3684352 §  (317983) % 3,383,194 § (291,991)
Changes of assumptions 2,596,544 - 2,384,303 -
Net difference between projected an¢ 3,634,100 - 3,337,049 -
Changes in proportion - - 1,748,098 (1,839,043)
Total $ 9914996 $§  (317983) § 10,852,644 3§ (2,131,034)
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Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources will be recognized in pension expense for the
CEPP and for the City of Minot’s proportionate share
as follows:

City of Minot
Year Pension Plan  Proportionate Share
2016 $ 2975337 % 2,709,397
2017 3,022,428 2,752,639
2018 2,058,608 1,867,602
2019 1,540,641 1,391,973
2020 - -
Thereafter - -

The following presents the CEPP’s net pension liability
calculated using the discount rate of 7.50 percent, as
well as what the net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1
percentage point lower (6.50 percent) or 1 percentage
point higher (8.50 percent) than the current rate. Also
presented is the City of Minot’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability using the discount rate of 7.50
percent, as well as what the proporticnate share of the
net pension liability would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower
(6.50 percent) or | percentage point higher (8.50
percent):

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.5%) {1.5%) (8.5%)
Net Pension Liability $ 79218838 § 646040602 352330404
City of Minot's proportionate
share of the Net Pension Liability 72,743,500 59,323,830 48052923

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The City administers the City of Minot North Dakota
401{a) Retirement Plan and the City of Minot North
Dakota 457 Plan, a defined contribution plan and a
457(e)(1)(A) deferred compensation plan, respectively,
for all full-time employees hired after December 31,
2013. The 401(a) plan requires eligible employees to
contribute 7.5 percent of their earnings to the Plan.
The employee contributions meet the requirements of
pick-up contributions under Internal Revenue Code
414(h) (2). The 457(b) plan is provided for those
employees who elect to defer a portion of their
compensation.

For each enrolled employee, the City shall contribute
an amount which will equal 400 percent of the amount
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of the employee’s contribution to the 457(e) (1) (A)
plan, not to exceed & percent of the employee’s eligible
compensation. Benefit terms, including contribution
requirements are established and may be amended by
the City Council. For the year ended December 31,
2015, employee contributions totaled $4 18,439 and the
City recognized pension expense of $297,091.

Employees are immediately vested in their own
contributions and earnings on those contributions and
become vested in City contributions and earnings on
City contributions based on the following schedule:

Years of Creditable Service Vested Portign
Less than | year 0%

Less than 2 years 20%
Less than 3 years 40%
Less than 4 years 60%
Less than 5 years 80%
5 years or more 100%

Non-vested City contributions are forfeited following a
five year period of severance. Such forfeitures are
used to make restorations for rehired participants and
to reduce employer contributions or to correct errors,
omissions and exclusions. For the year ended
December 31, 20135, forfeitures reduced the City’s plan
expense by $0.

G. MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE LANDFiLL

State and federal rules and regulations require the City
of Minot to place a final cover on its Municipal Solid
Waste Landfill (MSWLF) site when it stops accepting
waste and to perform certain maintenance and
monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after the
closure. Although closure and post-closure care costs
will be paid only near or after the date the landfill stops
accepting waste, the City reports a portion of these
closure and post-closure care costs as operating
expense in each period based on landfill capacity used
as of each balance sheet date. The $1,078,849 reported
as MSWLF closure and post-closure care liability at
December 31, 2015, represents the cumulative amount
reported to date based on the use of 59.3% of the
estimated capacity of the landfill. The City will
recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and
post-closure care of over $0.5 million as the remaining
estimated capacity is filled. These amounts are

based on what it would cost to perform all closure

and post-closure care in 2015. The City expects the
landfill will be operated for another 13 years with
closure anticipated in the year 2028, Actual costs may
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Notes to Financial Statements

be higher due to inflation, deflation, changes in
technology, or changes in applicable laws or
regulations.

The City is required by state and federal rules and
regulations to establish a mechanisim to demonstrate
financial assurance for both closure and post-closure
care. Mechanisms used to demonstrate financial
assurance must ensure the amount of funds assured are
adequate to cover the costs of closure and post-closure
care costs and the funds will be available in a timely
fashion whenever needed. All mechanisms must be
legally valid and binding under North Dakota law. The
City of Minot has chosen a financial test as their
mechanism of choice.

H. ISSUED BUT NON-EFFECTIVE
ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
{GASB) has issued several statements not yet
implemented by the City. The first statement issued but
not yet implemented that will affect the City is
statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and
Application. This statement will enhance comparability
of financial statements among governments by
requiring measurement of certain assets and liabilities
at fair value using a consistent and more detailed
definition of fair value and accepted valuation
techniques. This statement also will enhance fair value
applicable guidance and related disclosures in order to
provide information to financial statement users about
the impact of fair value measurements on a
government’s financial position. This statement will be
implemented at the City in the year ended December
31, 2016. The second statement issued but not yet
implemented that will affect the City is statement No.
75, Accounting and Financial

Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions. This statement replaces the requirements of
Statements No. 45 and No. 57. This statement
addresses accounting and financial reporting for OPEB
that is provided to employees of state and local
governmental employers, and establishes standards for
recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred
outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources,
and expense/expenditures. This statement will be
implemented at the City in the year ended December
31, 2018. Management has not yet determined the
effect these pronouncements will have on the City’s
financial statements.
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City of Minot
Required Supplementary Information
December 31, 2015

City of Minot Employees' Pension Plan
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liablity

2015 2014
Total Pension Liability
Service Cost $ 2,772,781 3 2,926,936
Interest 8,987,447 8,647,284
Differences between expected and actual expetience 912,914 930,846
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (7,939,080) (7,691,728)
Net change in total pension liability $ 4734062 § 4813338
Total Pension Liability—Beginning 121,029,390 116,216,052
Total Pension Liability--Ending (a) $ 125,763,452 3 121,029,390
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions--employer $ 4230241 $ 4,520,993
Contributions--member 2,635,549 2,705,235
Net investment income (1,168,638) 4222235
Benefit payments, incliding refunds of member contributions (7,939,080) (7,691,728)
Administrative expense (176,725) (252,270)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position $ (2398653 § 3,504,465
Plan fiduciary net position—beginning 63,557,503 60,053,038
Plan fiduciary net position—ending (b} $ 61,158,850 8§ 63,557,503
Net Pension Liability (asset)-ending (a) - (b) $ 64,604,602 § 57471887

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years commencing with the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, Additional years
will be displayed as they occur.
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City of Minot
Required Supplementary Information
December 31, 2015

City of Minot Employees' Pension Plan
Schedule of Net Pension Liablity

Total Pension Liability
Plan fiduciary net position

Net pension liability (asset)

2015 2014

$125,763.452  $121,029,390
61,138,850 63,557,503
$ 64604602 § 57,471,887

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 48.63% 52.51%
Covered-employee Payroll 17,357,716 18,018,692
Net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 37220% 318.95%
City of Minot Employees’ Pension Plan
Schedule of Contributions

2015 2014
Actuarially detennined contribution $ 472197  § 4772530
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 4,250,241 4,520,993
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ 471,735 § 251,537
Covered-employee Payroll 17,357,716 18,018,692
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroli 24.49% 25.09%

Schedules are intended to show information for 10 years commencing with the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014

years will be displayed as they occur.

City of Minot Employees' Pension Flan
Schedule of Investment Returns

. Additional

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expenses  -1.9%  7.1% 114% 115% 352% 125% 161% -16.7%
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City of Minot
Required Supplementary Information
December 31, 2015

City of Minot Employces' Pension Plan
Schedule of Net Pension Liability - City of Minot's Proportionate Share

Plan
Proportionate Fiduciary Net
Sharc of the Net  Positionas a

Proportion of Proportionate Pension Percentage of

the Net Share of the Liability as a the Total

Pension Net Pension Covered Percentage of Pension

Fisceal Year Ending Liability Liability Payroll Covercd Payrofl Lisbility
2014 92.0500% § 52902872 % 15885329 333% 48.34%
2015 91.8260% 59,323,830 15,633,476 379% 44.66%

City of Minot Employees' Pension Plan
Schedule of Contributions - City of Minot's Propoitionate Share

Contributions

in Relation to Contributions
the as a
Actuarially Actuarially Contribution Percentage of
Determined Determined Deficiency Covered Covered
Fiscal Year Ending  Contributions Contributions (Excess) Payroll Payroll
2014 §  4.074.587 § 40743587 $ - $ 15,885,329 25.65%
2015 3,872,412 3,872,412 - 15.633.476 24.77%

Schedules are intended to show information for 10 years commencing with the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014. Additional
years will be displayed as they occur.

Notes to City of Minot Employee’s Pension Plan:

Measurement Date: January 1, 2016

Assumption changes: In 2012 an experience study was conducted for the City of Minot Employee’s Pension Plan. Many assumptions
were changed effective with the January I, 2013 actuarial valuation. The disability assumption was removed and the marriage, salary
increase, mortality, withdrawal and retirement assumptions were all changed. The investment return assumption was also changed
from 7.75% to 7.50% and the plan was amended to exclude overtime from the average monthly earnings calculation effective
February 24, 2013, There were no assumption changes for the January 1, 2016 actuarial valuation from those used for the January 1,
2015 actuarial valuation., Effective January 1, 2014 the Plan has been closed to new participants. As a result of the plan closing, the
amortization method was changed from an open 30 year level percentage of payroll method to a 30-year close level dollar method. As
of January 1, 2016 there are 28 years remaining in the amortization period.
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City of Minot
Required Supplementary Information

December 31, 2015
OPEB Schedule of Funding Progress
Unfunded
Actuarial  Actuarial UAALas a
Accrued  Accrued Annual Percentage of
Actuarial Value Liability  Liability Funded Covered Annual Covered
Actuarial Valuation Date _of Plan Assets (AAL) (UAAL)  Ratio Payroll Payroll
January I, 2008 5 - $1,485924 $1,485924  0.00% $11,800,000 12.5%%
January I, 2009 (7.607) 1,881,683 1,889,290 -0.40% 11,500,000 16.43%
January 1, 2010 90,079 2,003,167 1,913,088  450% 11,800,000 16.21%
fanuary 1, 2011 286,836 2,524,963 2,238,127 11.36% 13,300,000 16.83%
January 1, 2012 510,513 2,679,242 2,168,729 19.05% 13,700,000 15.83%
Fanuary 1, 2013 766,792 2843885 2077093 26.96% 13,700,000 15.16%
January 1, 2014 1,044,145 2,906,678 1,862,533  35.92% 14,100,000 13.21%
January 1, 2015 1,143,320 1,045,699 {97,621y 109.34% 16,700,000 -0.58%
January 1, 2016 1,071,699 1,063,175 (8,524) 100.80% 16,700,000 -0.05%

Note to Opeb Schedule

Annual covered payroll represents the actuarial estimate of annual covered payroll for the subsequent year,
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual
Major Debt Service Fund
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Special Assessment Debt

Original Final 2015 Variance 2014
Budgeted Budgeted Actual with Final Actual
REVENUES Amounts Amounts Amounts Budget Amounts
Property tax collections $ 89,116 § 89,116 § 78,806 3 10,310 8 44,614
Special assessment collections 1,839,551 1,839,551 4,826,273 (2,986,722} 1,614,123
Interest income - - 107,758 (107,758) 110,754
Miscellaneous - - 87,854 {87,854) -
Total revenues 1,928,667 1,928,667 5,100,691 (3,172,024) 1,769,491
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government - - 2,084,467 (2,084,467 -
Debt service
Principal retirement 2,296,250 1,238,750 2,100,000 (861,250) 1,065,000
Interest and fiscal charges 829,480 829,479 753,402 76,077 576,101
Total expenditures 3,125,730 2,068,229 4,937,869 (2,869,640) 1,641,101
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (1,197,063) {139,562) 162,822 (302,384) 128,390
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bonds issued - - 1,945,000 {1,945,000) -
Bond premium - - 153,806 (153,806) -
Transfers in 276,319 256,644 3,315 253,329 1,621,892
Transfers out - - (3,131) 3,131 {15,962)
Total other financing sources (uses) 276,319 250,644 2,098,990 (1,842,346) 1,605,930
Net change in fund balance $ (920,744 § 117,082 2,261,812 _§ (2,144,730) 1,734,320
Fund balance, January 1 2,239,392 505,072
Fund balance, December 31 3 4,501,204 $ 2,239,392
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Total Total
Nonmajor Nonmajor
Special Debt Capital Governmental Governmental
Revenue Service Project Funds Funds
Funds Fund Funds 2015 2014
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 6,411,696 § - § 11,037,483 § 17,449,179 § 36,292,145
Restricted cash and investments 37,711,230 1,195,984 148,879 39,056,093 16,438,030
Investments - - - - 6,981
Taxes receivable delinquent 294,529 92,879 57,112 444,520 241,370
Special assessments receivable delinquent 7,270 - - 7,270 15,575
Accounts receivable 80,912 - 64,941 145,853 137,080
Loans receivable 2,550,000 - - 2,550,000 75,000
Allowance for loans receivable (510,000} - - (510,000) (15,000)
Due from other funds 1,072,005 - - 1,072,005 1,222,754
Intergovernmental receivable 4,129,185 747 727,739 4,857,671 6,036,548
Inventory 6,083 - - 6,083 6,590
Prepaid 8,504 - - 8,504 6,628
Other assets - capital credits 36,973 - - 36,973 18,444
Advance to other funds - 173,527 - 173,527 213,527
Special assessments receivable deferred 71,140 - - 71,140 151,947
Total assets $ 51,869,527 $ 1,463,137 § 12,036,154 § 65368.818 3§ 60,847,619
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 630,219 § - $ 565,824 % 1,196,043 $ 1,290,643
Retainage payable 749 - 83,666 84,415 302,794
Due to other funds 1,072,005 - - 1,072,005 1,860,272
Accrued salaries payable 34,049 - - 34,049 98,511
Advance from other funds - - 4,854,524 4,854,524 1,673,212
Unearned revenue - other - “ - - 139,397
Total liabilities 1,737,022 - 5,504,014 7,241,036 5,364,829
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Uncertified special assessment revenue 71,140 - - 71,140 151,947
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 132,243 39,598 34,127 205,968 202,552
Unavailable revenue - special assessments 7,270 - - 7,270 13,507
Total deferred inflows of resources 210,653 39,598 34,127 284,378 368,006
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable 1,801,560 - - 1,801,560 245,189
Restricted 40,909,657 1,195,984 148,879 42,254,520 44,758,723
Committed - - - - 198,623
Assigned 7,210,635 227,555 6,349,134 13,787,324 10,178,126
Unassigned - - - - (265,877)
Total fund balance 49,921,852 1,423,539 6,498,013 57,843,404 55,114,784
Total liabilities, inflows, and fund balance $ 51,869,527 § 1,463,137 § 12,036,154 § 65,368,818 $ 60,847,619
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City of Minot, North Dakota

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Total Total
Nonmajor Nonmajor
Special Debt Capital Governmental Governmental
Revenue Service Project Funds Funds
REVENUES Funds Fund Funds 2015 2014
Property tax collections $ 4345796 § 2,796,530 §$ 639,564 $ 7,781,890 $ 5,785,339
Special assessment collections 53,809 - - 53,809 411,178
Sales tax collections 21,484,644 - - 21,484,644 27,245,883
Intergovernmental 13,974,325 - 3,231,677 17,206,002 14,603,416
Charges for services 595,369 - 1,204,385 1,799,754 1,761,067
Interest income 99,794 4,807 15,754 120,355 119,049
Miscellaneous 266,743 214,524 792,648 1,273,915 89,361
Total revenues 40,820,480 3,015,861 5,884,028 49,720,369 50,015,293
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 13,812,809 1,005 - 13,813,814 14,055,898
Highways and streets 3,543,697 - - 3,543,697 4,766,103
Culture and recreation 9,762,841 - - 9,762,841 7,364,051
Economic Development 3,266,376 - - 3,266,376 3,292,475
Capital outlay
Contracted work - - 4,207,498 4,207,498 2,621,637
Equipment - - 2,581,331 2,581,331 2,489,396
Other - - 197,320 197,320 418,718
Engineering - - 3,223,643 3,223,643 304,321
Debt service
Interest and fiscal charges - 386,226 171,502 557,728 436,073
Total expenditures 30,385,723 2,772,231 10,401,382 43,559,336 37,743,672
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 10,434,757 243,630 (4,517,354) 6,161,033 12,271,621
OTHER FINANCING SOQURCES (USES)
Special assessment bonds issued - - 1,835,000 1,835,000 4,135,000
Premium on bonds - - - - 105,427
Discount on bonds - - (1,779) (1,779 -
Sale of City property 550 - 74,815 75,365 87,200
Transfers in 4,769,044 5,375 5,621,849 10,396,268 11,824,977
Transfers out (15,061,300) (318,865) (357,102) (15,737,267) (18,865,917)
Total other financing sources (uses) (10,291,706) (313,450) 7,172,783 (3,432,413) (2,713,313)
Net change in fund balance 143,051 {69,860} 2,655,429 2,728,620 9,558,308
Fund balance, January 1 49,778,801 1,493,399 3,842,584 55,114,784 45,556,476
Fund balance, December 31 $ 49.921,852 § 1,423,539 § 6,498,013 § 57843404 § 55,114,784
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City of Minet, North Dakota
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS -~ Funds used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources restricted or
committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects. {GASB Statement No 54,
paragraph 30) Additional information is provided below for some of the nonmajor funds in this category.

Public Transportation - To account for the provisions of transportation services to the residents of the City and surrounding
area. Funding is provided by a specific annual property tax levy in addition to miscellaneous revenues such as user fees and
grants.

Library - To account for the operation and maintenance of the City's library. Financing is provided by a specific annual
property tax levy to the extent miscellaneous revenues such as state grants, rental income and various other funds and fees are
not sufficient to provide adequate financing. Property taxes are levied in accordance with ND Century Code Sec. 40-37-01.

Recreation/Aunditerium - To account for the operation and maintenance of the City's recreation program and facilities.
Financing is provided by a specific annual property tax levy in addition to miscellaneous revenues such as user fees,
concessions, and facility rentals.

Emergency Fund - Accounts for amounts set aside for use in emergency situations caused by natural forces. This funding is
provided for by ND Century Code Sec. 57-15-48 and is limited to a maximum of unexpended funds equal to three dollars per
capita.

Sales Tax — The first penny sales tax is dedicated 10% to property tax, 15% to economic development, and 25% to
improvements, 50% to flood control. The second penny sales tax is dedicated 30% to property tax relief and community
facilities and 40% to infrastructure.

Sidewalk Improvement - To account for the maintenance of sidewalks within the City of Minot. City sidewalk maintenance
is funded by atax levy dollars.

Street Improvements - To account for the annual street improvement and street seal programs. The City has a budgeted levy
for this program.

Demolitions - To account for the demolition of condemned property within the City. Special assessments are levied against
benefiting property owners.

Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recover $67.5 million Fund - To account for the $67.5 million grant
received to assist the City of Minot in recovering from the 2011 flood.

Community Development Block Grant - Disaster Recover $35 million Fund - To account for the $35 million grant received
to assist the City of Minot in recovering from the 2011 flood.
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Sales Tax Sales Tax
Public Recreation  Emergency  Property Tax Economic
Transportation  Library Auditorium Fund Relief-1st Penny Development
ASSETS
Cash and investments 5 236481 §  77.835 % 968439 § 636,954 3 - 5 -
Restricted cash and investments - 28,440 - - 445,914 5.863.255
Investments - - - - - -
Taxes receivable delinquent 27,847 74,690 89,526 20,741 - -
Special assessments delinquent - - - - - -
Accounts receivable 1,551 63,490 4,370 9,763 - 1.738
Loans receivable - - . - - 2,550,000
Allowance for loans receivable - “ - - - (510,000)
Due from other funds - - - - - -
Intergovernmental receivable 99,851 17,523 3,237 450,397 92,4606 138,699
[nventory - - 6,083 - - -
Prepaid - 7,123 1,381 - - -
Other assets - capital credits 16,159 8.457 11,884 473 - -
Special assessments receivable deferred - - - - - -
Total assets b 381892 § 277558 $ 1.084.920 § 1.127.328 3§ 538,380 § 8.043.692
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 5298 § 18,202 % 25492 § 445151 § - b 2,300
Retainage payable - - - - - -
Due to other funds - - - - - -
Accrued salaries payable 5,890 11,880 14,339 - - -
Unearned revenue - other - - - - - -
Total Habilities 11,188 30,082 39,831 445,151 - 2,300
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Uncertified special assessment revenue - - - - - -
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 11,522 33,210 39,151 15,954 - -
Unavailable revenue - special assessments - - - - - -
Total deferred inflows of resources 11,522 33,210 39,151 15,954 - -
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable 16,159 13,580 19,348 473 - 1,750,000
Restricted - 28,440 - “ 538.380 6,291,392
Committed - - - - - -
Assigned 343,023 170,246 986,590 663,750 - -
Total fund balance 359,182 214,266 1,005,938 666,223 538,380 8,041,392

Total liabilities, inflows and fund balance 3 381,892 § 277538 § 1.084920 $ 1.127328 § 338.380 § 8.043.0692
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments
Investments
Taxes receivable delinquent
Special assessments delinquent
Accounts receivable
Loans receivable
Allowance for loans receivabie
Due from other funds
Intergovernmental receivable
Inventory
Prepaid
Other assets - capital credits
Special assessments receivable deferred
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Retainage payable

Due to other funds

Accrued salaries payabie

Uneamned revenue - other
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Uncertified special assessment revenue
Unavailable revenue - property taxes

Unavailable revenue - special assessments

Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCE

Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Total fund balance

Total liabilities, inflows and fund balance

Sales Tax

Sales Tax

Improvements Flood Control

Improvements Improvements

Sidewalk

Street

Sales Tax
Property Tax

Demolitions  Relief-2nd Penny

3 - $ - ¥ 34,282 § 3,784,575 % 673,127 § -
5,634,771 10,761,807 - 14,491 - 2,504.455
- 454 7,975 34,982 29,314 -
- - 905 - 6.365 -
231,215 477,002 67 575,046 220 271,397
- - 827 - 70,313 -
$ 5865986 § 11.239.263 § 44056 § 4409094 § 779339 % 2.781.852
b 3070 % - b - 3 61,861 % - b -
“ - - 749 - -
3,070 - - 62,610 - -
- - 827 - 70,313 -
- 454 3,608 17,082 11,262 -
- - 905 - 6,365 -
- 454 5,340 17,082 87,940 -
5,862,916 11,238,809 - 14,491 - 2,781,852
- - 38,716 4,314,911 691,399 -
5,862,916 11,238,809 38,716 4,325,402 691,399 2,781,852
$§ 5865986 3 11,239,263 § 44056 § 4409094 $§ 779339 § 2.781.852
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Sales Sales Tax
Tax Community CDBG-DR  CDBG-DR Tetal Total
Infrastructure  Facilities $67.5M 535 M 2015 2014
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ - $ - $ - 3 - $ 6411696 3§ 30.866.800
Restricted cash and investments 7,013,971 3,344,126 - - 37,711,230 15,016,001
Investments - - - - - 6,981
Taxes receivable delinquent - - - - 294,529 129,300
Special assessments delinquent - - - - 7,270 15,575
Accounts receivable - - - - 80,912 72,514
Loans receivable - - - - 2,550,000 75,000
Allowance for loans receivable - - - - (510,000 (15,000)
Due from other funds - 1,072,003 - - 1,072,005 1,175,625
Intergovernmental receivable 369,863 271,397 48,880 1,069,925 4,129,185 5,899,592
Inventory - - - - 6,083 6,590
Prepaid - - - - 8,504 6,628
Other assets - capital credits - - - - 36,973 18,444
Special assessments receivable deferred - - - - 71,140 151,947
Total assets $ 7483834 % 6.693.528 % 48.880 § 1069925 § 51.869.527 3 53.425.997
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3 - $ 23985 §% 8.860 % 36,000 § 630,219 35 1,166,881
Retainage payable - - - - 749 157.884
Due to other funds - - 38,910 1,033,095 1,072,005 1,813,143
Accrued salaries payable - - 1,110 8§30 34,049 98,511
Unearned revenue - other - - - - - 139,397
Total liabilities - 23,985 48,880 1,069,925 1,737,022 3,375,816
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Uncertified special assessment revenue - - - - 71,140 151,947
Unavailable revenue - property taxes - - - - 132,243 105,926
Unavailable revenue - special assessments - - - - 7,270 13,507
Total deferred inflows of resources - - - - 210,653 271,380
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable - - - - 1,801,560 31662
Restricted 7.483,834 6,669,543 - 40,909,657 43,242,643
Committed - - - - 49744
Assigned - - - 7,210,635 6,454,732
Total fund balance 7,483,834 6,669,543 - - 49,921,852 49,778,801
Total liabilities, inflows and fund balance $ 7.483,834 § 6.693,528 § 48,880 § 1.069925 $ 51,869,527 3 53.425.997
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Feor the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Sales Tax Sales Tax
Public Recreation  Emergency  Property Tax Econemic
Transportation  Library Auditorium Fund Relief-1st Penny Development
REVENUES
Property tax collections $ 437376 $ 1,112274 § 1,344613 % 369500 3 - 5
Special assessment collections - - - - - -
Sales tax collections - - - - 1,301,777 -
Intergovernmental 492,767 98,447 - 372,727 - -
Charges for services 99,838 2,209 493,322 - - -
Interest income 534 1,197 2,575 2,036 930 17,924
Miscellangous 6,681 102,153 63,353 19,763 - 18,250
Total revenues 1,037,196 1,316,280 1,903,863 964,026 1,302,707 36,174
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 837,589 - - 879,626 - -
Highways and streets - - - - - -
Culture and recreation - 1,545,144 [,903,537 - - -
Economic development - - - - - 3.266,3706
Total expenditures 837,589 1,545,144 1,903,537 879,626 - 3,266,376
Excess (deficicncy) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 199,607 (228.864) 326 84,400 1,302,707 (3,230,202)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Special assessment bond issued - - - - - -
Premium on bonds - - - - - -
Sale of City praperty 350 - - - - -
Transfers in - 204,356 390,862 - - 1,200,424
Transfers out {534) - (2,470) (15,484) (1,369,920) (597.334)
Total other financing sources (uses)} 16 204,356 388,392 (15.484) (1,369,920) 603,090
Net change in fund balance 199,623 {24,508) 388,718 68,916 (67,213)  (2,627.112)
Fund balance, January | 159,559 238,774 617,220 597,307 605,593 10,668,504
Fund balance, December 31 $ 359,182 § 214266 § 1005938 § 666223 3 538.380 & 8041392
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City of Minot, North Daketa
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

REVENUES

Property tax collections
Special assessment collections
Sales tax collections
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Interest income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current
General government
Highways and streets
Culture and recreation
Economic development

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Special assessment bond issued
Premium on bonds
Sale of City property
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, January 1
Fund balance, December 31

Sales Tax

Sales Tax
Improvements Flood Contrel Improvements Improvements Demolitions

Sidewalk

Street

Sales Tax
Property Tax

Retief-2nd Penny

5 - 68 117,137 & 481,303 § 483,525 § -
- - 2,435 - 31,374 -
3,254,215 6,508,886 - - - 3,905,333
11,393 5,183 - 888,121 - -
10,200 17,646 328 10,072 2,930 5444
20,259 - - 670 - -
3,296,067 6,531,783 119,900 1,380,166 537,829 3.010,777
- 34,334 92,018 - 26,559 -
- - - 3,543,697 . -
1,629,217 - - - - -
1,629,217 34,334 92,018 3,543,697 26,559 -
1,666,850 6,497,449 27,882 (2,163,531) 515270 3,910,777
132,046 200,000 - 2,640,163 - -
(1,776,333) (2,600,000) (198) (1,128,366) (1,158) (4.532,592)
(1,644,287) (2,400,000) (198) 1,511,797 (1,138) (4,532,592)
22,563 4,097,449 27,684 (651,734) 310,112 (621,815)
5,840,353 7,141,360 11,032 4,981,136 181,287 3,403,667
$ 5862916 $ 11238809 % 38716 3 4320402 § 691.399 % 2.781.852
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Sales Sales Tax
Tax Community CDBG-DR CDBG-DR Totsal Total
Infrastructure  Facilities 8$67.5M 835 M 2015 2014
REVENUES
Property tax colflections s - 8 - 5 - i - § 4345796 § 3,826,553
Special assessment collections - - - - 53,809 411,178
Sales tax collections 2,759,100 3,755,333 - - 21,484,644 27,245,883
Intergovernmental - - 2,334,265 9,571,422 13,974,325 14,111,920
Charges for services - - - - 595,369 589,870
Interest income 13,260 14,484 234 - 99,794 101,532
Miscetlaneous - - - 35,614 266,743 89,361
Total revenues 2,772,360 3,765,817 2,334,499 9,607,036 40,820,480 46,376,297
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government - - 2,335,647 9,607,036 13,812,809 14,053,898
Highways and streets - - - - 3.543,697 4,766,103
Culture and recreation - 4,684,943 - - 9,762,841 7,364,051
Economic development - - - - 3,266,376 3,292,475
Total expenditures - 4,684,943 2,335,647 9,607,036 30,385,723 20.478,527
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 2,772,360 (915,126) (1,148) - 10,434,757 16,897,770
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Special assessment bond issued - “ - - - 36,150
Premium on bonds - - - - B 922
Sale of City property - - - - 350 700
Transfers in - 43 1,148 - 4,769,044 T, 7004706
Transfers out (2,966,260} (70,631) - - {15,061,300) (14,988,067)
Total other financing sources (uses) (2,966,260) {70,6006) 1,148 - {10,291,706) (7.249,819)
Net change in fund balance (193,900) (985,732) - - 143,051 9,647,951
Fund balance, January | 7,671,134 7,655,273 - - 49,778,801 40,130,830
Fund balance, December 31 § 7483834 § 6669543 § - $ - $ 49921852 £ 40778 801
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City of Minot, Nerth Dakota
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Public Transportation

Original Final 2015 Variance 2014
Budgeted Budgeted Actual with Final Actual
Amounts Amounts Amounts Budget Amounts
REVENUES
Property tax collections $ 454,661 $ 454,661 § 437,376 § 17,285 § 244454
Intergovernmental 519,111 519,111 492,767 26,344 478,853
Charges for services 95,561 95,561 99,838 (4,277) 108,035
Interest income - - 534 (534) 179
Miscellaneous 9,623 9,623 6,681 2,942 14,763
Total revenues 1,078,956 1,078,956 1,037,196 41,760 846,284
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 1,078,956 1,094,971 837,589 257,382 827,679
Total expenditures 1,078,956 1,094,971 837,589 257,382 827,679
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - (16,015) 199,607 (215,622) 18,605
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of City property - - 550 (550) 700
Transfers out - - (534) 534 (179)
Total other financing sources (uses) - - 16 (16) 521
Net change in fund balance $ - $ (16,015) 199,623 3 (215,638) 19,126
Fund balance, January 1 159,559 140,433
Fund balance, December 31 $ 359,182 $ 159,559

———e
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Library
Original Final 2015 Variance 2014
Budgeted  Budgeted Actual with Final Actual
Amounts Amounts Amounts Budget Amounts
REVENUES
Property tax collections $1,143,141 §$1,170,141 $1,112274 § 57,867 51,001,115
Intergovernmental 98,750 132,768 98,447 34,321 90,498
Charges for services 18,500 18,500 2,209 16,291 43,294
Interest income 1,061 1,061 1,197 (136) 1,133
Miscellaneous 31,081 37,419 102,153 (64,734) 33,618
Total revenues 1,292,533 1,359,889 1,316,280 43,609 1,169,658
EXPENDITURES
Current
Culture and recreation 1,393,533 1,601,271 1,543,144 56,127 1,163,900
Total expenditures 1,393,533 1,601,271 1,545,144 56,127 1,163,900
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (101,000)  (241,382)  (228,864) (12,518) 5,758
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 101,000 176,232 204,356 {28,124) 5,902
Transfers out - - - - (31,355)
Total other financing sources (uses) 101,000 176,232 204,356 (28,124) (25,453)
Net change in fund balance $ - $ (65,150} 24,508y _§ (40,642) {19,695)
Fund balance, January 1 238,774 258,469
Fund balance, December 31 $ 214,266 3 238774

P ]
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City of Minot, North Dakota

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund

For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015

With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

REVENUES
Propeity tax collections
Charges for services
Interest income
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Culture and recreation
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, January 1
Fund balance, December 31

Recreation/Auditorium

Original Final 2015 Variance 2014
Budgeted Budgeted Actual with Final Actual
Amounts Amounts Amounts Budget Amounts
$1,403,865 % 1,409,338 § 1,344613 § 64,725 § 724,682
410,619 410,619 493,322 (82,703) 438,541
- - 2,575 {2,575) 3,493
22,067 22,067 63,353 (41,286) 11,892
1,836,551 1,842,024 1,903,863 (61,839) 1,178,608
2,206,551 2,329,666 1,903,537 426,129 2,098,405
2,206,551 2,329,666 1,903,537 426,129 2,098,405
(370,000) (487,642) 326 (487,968) (919,797)
370,000 370,000 390,862 (20,862) 23,571
- {1,000) (2,470) 1,470 (147,044)
370,000 369,000 388,392 (19,392) (123.473)
3 - 3 (118,642) 388,718 _§ (507,360)  (1,043,270)
617,220 1,660,490
$ 1,005,938 8 617,220
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Emergency Fund

Original Final 2015 Variance 2014
Budgeted Budgeted Actual with Final Actual
Amounts  Amounts Amounts Budget Amtounts
REVENUES
Property tax collections $ 365,079 $ 367,226 $ 369500 3% (2,274) § 1,248,368
Intergovernmental - - 572,727 (572,727 -
Interest income - - 2,036 (2,036} 1,952
Miscellaneous - - 19,763 (19,763) 339
Total revenues 365,079 367,226 964,026 (596,800 1,250,859
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 365,079  L137,773 879,626 258,147 9,149
Total expenditures 365,079 1,137,773 879,626 258,147 9,149
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - (770,547} 84,400 (854,947y 1,241,710
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out - - (15,484) 15,484 (301,952)
Total other financing sources (uses) - - (15,484) 15,484 (301,952)
Net change in fund balance 3 - $(770.547) 68,916 _§ (839.463) 939,758
Fund balance (deficit), January 1 597,307 {342,451)
Fund balance, December 31 $ 666,223 $ 597,307
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 20158
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Sales Tax Property Relief-1st Penny

Original Final 2015 Variance 2014
Budgeted Budgeted Actual with Final Actual
Amounts Amounts Amounts Budget Amounts
REVENUES
Sales tax collections $ 1,150,000 $1,150,000 $ 1,301,777 $ (151,777) § 1,362,295
Interest income - - 930 (930) 1,100
Totat revenues 1,150,000 1,150,000 1,302,707 (152,707) 1,363,395
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out {1,368,990) (1,369,920) (1,369,920) - (1,425,346)
Total other financing sources {uses) {1,368,990) (1,369,920) (1.569,920) - (1,423,346)
Net change in fund balance $ (218.990) § (219.920) (67.213) _§ (152.707) (61,951)
Fund balance, January 1 603,593 667,544
Fund balance, December 31 § 538.380 $ 605,593
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Sales Tax Economic Development

Original Final 2015 Variance 2014
Budgeted Budgeted Actual with Final Actual
REVENUES Amounts Amounfts Amounts Budget Amounts
Sales tax collections $ 1,725,000 § 1,725,000 S - $ 1,725,000 § 3,541,644
Interest income 28,405 28,405 17,924 10,481 26,381
Miscellaneous - - 18,250 (18,250) 1,348
Total revenues 1,753,405 1,753,405 36,174 1,717,231 3,569,373
EXPENDITURES
Current
Economic development 1,753,405 7,166,584 3,266,376 3,900,208 3,292,475
Total expenditures 1,753,405 7,166,584 3,266,376 3,900,208 3,292,475
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {(under) expenditures - (3,413,179)  (3,230,202) (2,182,971 276,898
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - 1,200,424 {1,200,424) -
Transfers out - {50,000) (597,334) 547,334 (50,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) - {50,000) 603,090 (653,090) (50,000)
Net change in fund balance 3 - $ (5,463,179  (2,627,112) % (2.836,067) 226,898
Fund balance, January | 10,668,504 10,441,606
Fund balance, December 31 $ 8041392 $ 10,668,504
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Sales Tax Improvements

Original Final 2015 Variance 2014
Budgeted Budgeted Actual with Final Actual
REVENUES Amounts Amounts Amounts Budget Amounts
Sales tax collections $2,875,000 § 2,875,000 $ 3,254,215 § (379215) § 4,903,938
[ntergovernmental - - 11,393 (11,393) -
Interest income - - 10,200 (10,200) 12,838
Miscellaneous income - - 20,259 (20,259) -
Total revenues 2,875,000 2,875,000 3,296,067 (421,067) 4,916,776
EXPENDITURES
General government - - - - 6,725
Culture and recreation 200,000 092,061 1,629,217 {637,156) 126,472
Total expenditures 200,000 992,061 1,629,217 {637,156) 133,197
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 2,675,000 1,882,939 1,666,850 216,089 4,783,579
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - 132,046 (132,046) 3,696
Transfers out (3,465,000) (3,334,492) (1,776,333) (1,558,159) (4,366,846)
Total other financing sources (uses) (3,465,000 (3,334,492) (1,644287)  (1,690,205) (4,363,150)
Net change in fund balance $ (790,000) $(1.451,553) 22,563 _§ (1.474.116) 420,429
Fund balance, January 1 5,840,353 5,419,924
Fund balance, December 31 $ 5862916 § 5,840,353

87 {continued)



City of Minot, North Dakota
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual
Major Special Revenue Fund
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Sales Tax Flood Control

Original Final 2015 Yariance 2014
Budgeted Budgeted Actual with Final Actual
REVENUES Amounts Amounts Amountis Budget Amounts
Property tax collection 3 - 3 - 5 68 3 (68) § 985
Sales tax collections 5,750,000 3,150,000 6,508,886 (3,358,886) 3,815,065
Intergovernmental - - 5,183 (5,183 956
Interest income 9,542 9,542 17,646 (8,104) 9,600
Total revenues 5,759,542 3,159,542 6,531,783 (3,372,241) 3,826,606
EXPENDITURES
General government 5,100,000 3,483,646 34,334 3,449,312 -
Total expenditures 5,100,000 3,483,646 34,334 3,449312 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures 659,542 (324,104) 6,497,449 (6,821,553) 3,826,606
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - 200,000 (200,000) -
Transfers out - - (2,600,000) 2,600,000  (1,319,386)
Total other financing sources (uses) - - (2,400,000) 2,400,000  (1,319,386)
Net change in fund balance § 659542 & (324,104) 4,097,449 _$(4,421,553) 2,507,220
Fund balance, January 1 7,141,360 4,634,140
Fund balance, December 31 $ 11,238,809 $ 7,141,360
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Sidewalk

Original

& Final 2015 Variance 2014
Budgeted Actual  with Final  Actual
Amounts Amounts Budget Amounts

REVENUES
Property tax collections $120,000 $ 117,137 § 2,863 §$116,648
Special assessment collections - 2,435 (2,435) 2,790
Interest income - 328 (328) 467
Total revenues 120,000 119,900 100 119,905
EXPENDITURES
General government 120,000 92,018 27,982 160,578
Total expenditures 120,000 92,018 27,982 160,578
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under} expenditures - 27,882 (27,882) (40,673)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfer in - - - 26,076
Transfers out - (198) 198 -
Total other financing sources (uses) - (198) 198 26,076
Net change in fund balance $ - 27,684 § (27.684) (14,597)
Fund balance, January 1 11,032 25,629
Fund balance, December 31 3 38,716 g 11,032
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Street Improvements

Original Final 2015 Variance 2014
Budgeted  Budgeted Actual with Final Actual
Amounts Amounts Amounts Budget Amounts
REVENUES
Property tax collections § 485,000 § 545000 $§ 481,303 § 63,697 § 483,318
Intergovernmental - - 888,121 (888,121) 593,703
Interest income - - 10,072 (10,072) 8,255
Miscellaneous income - - 670 (670) 6,052
Total revenues 485,000 545,000 1,380,166 (835,166) 1,091,328
EXPENDITURES
Highways and streets 3,125,000 3,599,288 3,543,697 55,591 4,766,103
Total expenditures 3,125,000 3,599,288 3,543,697 55,591 4,766,103
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures (2,640,000) (3,054,288) (2,163,531} (890,757)  (3,674,775)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer in 2,640,000 2,580,000 2,640,163 (60,163} 6,091,451
Transfers out - - (1,128,366) 1,128,366 (9,919
Total other financing sources {uses) 2,640,000 2,580,000 1,511,797 1,068,203 6,081,532
Net change in fund balance 5 - $§ (474,288) {651,734y § 177446 2,406,757
Fund balance, January 1 4,981,136 2,574,379
Fund balance, December 31 $ 4,329,402 $ 4,981,136
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Demolitions

Original
& Final 2015 Variance 2014
Budgeted Actual with Final Actual
Amounts Amounis Budget Amounts
REVENUES
Property tax collections § 500,000 § 483,525 § 16,475 § 6,983
Special assessment collections - 51,374 (51,374) 408,388
Interest income - 2,930 (2,930) 348
Total revenues 500,000 537,829 (37,829) 415,719
EXPENDITURES
General government 500,000 26,559 473,441 85,722
Total expenditures 500,000 26,559 473,441 85,722
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - 511,270 {511,270) 329,997
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Special assessment bond issues - - - 36,150
Premium on bonds - - - 922
Transfer in - - - 373,661
Transfers out - (1,158) 1,158 -
Total other financing sources (uses) - (1,158) 1,158 414,733
Net change in fund balance 5 - 510,112 _§ (510,112) 740,730
Fund balance, January 1 181,287 (559,443)
Fund balance, December 31 3 691,399 § 181,287
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Sales Tax Properfy Tax Relief - 2nd Penny

Original Final 2015 Variance 2014
Budgeted Budgeted Actual with Final Actual
Amounts Amounts Amounts Budget Amounts
REVENUES
Sales tax collections $3,450,000 § 3,450,000 3§ 3,905,333 F (455,333) §$4,086,883
Interest income - - 5,444 (5,444) 3,928
Total revenues 3,450,000 3,450,000 3,910,777 (460,777) 4,000,811
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (4,527,148) (4,532,592}  {4,532,592) - {(3,245,756)
Total other financing sources (uses) (4,527,148) (4,532,592) {4,532,592) - (3,245,756)
Net change in fund balance $(1,077,148) § (1,082,592} (621,815} _3 (460.777) 845,055
Fund balance, January 1 3,403,667 2,558,612
Fund balance, December 31 $ 2,781,852 $ 3.403,667
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Sales Tax Infrastructure

Original
& Final Final 2015 Variance 2014
Budgeted Budgeted Actual with Final Actual
Amounts Amounts Amounts Budget Amounts
REVENUES
Sales tax collections $ 4,600,000 § 5,141,270 § 2,759,100 § 2,382,170 § 5,449,176
Interest income - - 13,260 (13,260) 15,158
Total revenues 4,600,000 5,141,270 2,772,360 2,368,910 5,404,334
EXPENDITURES
General government 3,520,000 - - - -
Total expenditures 3,520,000 - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 1,080,000 5,141,270 2,772,360 2,368,910 5,464,334
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (50,000} (5,414,270)  (2,966,260) (2,448.010) (3,870,570)
Total other financing sources (uses) (50,000} (5,414,270) (2,966,260) (2,448,010) (3,870,570)
Net change in fund balance $ 1,030,000 § (273,000 (193,900) 8§  (79,100) 1,593,764
Fund balance, January I 7,677,734 6,083,970
Fund balance, December 31 $ 7.483.834 3 7.677.734
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Sales Tax Community Facilities

Original
& Final Final 2015 Variance 2014
Budgeted Budgeted Actual with Final Actual
Amounts Amounts Amounts Budget Amounts
REVENUES
Sales tax collections $3,450,000 3§ 3,450,000 § 3,755,333 $ (305,333) $ 4,086,882
Interest income - - 14,484 (14,484) 16,018
Total revenues 3,450,000 3,450,000 3,769,817 (319,817) 4,102,900
EXPENDITURES
Culture and recreation 2,150,000 4,918,687 4,684,943 233,744 3,975,274
Total expenditures 2,150,000 4,918,687 4,684,943 233,744 3,975,274
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures 1,300,000 (1,468,687) (915,126) (553,561) 127,626
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer in - - 45 45) 1,176,119
Transfers out {50,000) (200,000) (70,6510  (129,349) {216,018)
Total other financing sources {uses) {50,000) (200,000) {70,606) (129,394) 960,101
Net change in fund balance $ 1,250,000 3 (1,668,687) (985,732) _§ (682.955) 1,087,727
Fund balance, January 1 7,655,275 6,567,548
Fund bhalance, December 31 $ 6,669,543 § 7655275
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

CDBG - Disaster Recovery 3$67.5M

Original Final 2015 Variance 2014
Budgeted Budgeted Actual with Final Actual
REVENUES Amounts Amounts Amounts Budget Amounts
Intergovernmental $ 140940 $ 142,603 $2,334,265 § (2,191,662) § 7,396,427
Interest income - - 234 (234) 682
Miscellaneous - - - - 21,149
Total revenues 140,940 142,603 2,334,499 (2,191,896) 7,418,258
EXPENDITURES
General government 140,940 6,060,441 2,335,647 3,724,794 7,414,562
Total expenditures 140,940 6,060,441 2,335,647 3,724,794 7,414,562
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures - (5,917,838) (1,148) {5,916,690) 3,696
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - 1,148 {1,148) (3,696)
Total other financing sources (uses) - - 1,148 {1,148) (3.696)
Net change in fund balance 3 - 3 (5,917,838) - $ (5.917.838) -
Fund balance, January 1 - -
Fund balance {deficit), December 31 $ - $ -

{continued)
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual
Major Special Revenue Fund
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

CDBG - Disaster Recovery $35M

Original
& Final Final 2015 Variance 2014
Budgeted Budgeted Actual with Final Actual
REVENUES Amounts Amounts Amounts Budget Amounts
Intergovernmental $13,409,036 $ 13.409498 §$ 0,571,422 § 3,838,076 § 5,551,483
Miscellaneous - - 35,614 (35,614) -
Total revenues 13,409,036 13,409,498 9,607,036 3,802,462 5.551,483
EXPENDITURES
General government 13,409,036 25,539,342 9,607,036 15,932,306 5,551,483
Total expenditures 13,409,036 25,539,342 9,607,036 15,932,306 5,551,483
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - (12,129,844) - (12,129.844) -
Net change in fund balance 3 - $ (12.129.844) - $ (12.129.844) -
Fund balance, January 1 - -
Fund balance, December 31 $ - -
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds

Highway Debt — is a debt service fund established to accumulate the resources used to pay the principal and interest on bonds
for paving and street projects maturing in future years.
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Debt Service Fund
December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Highway Highway

Debt Debt
2015 2014
ASSETS
Restricted cash and investments $ 1,195984 §1,273,150
Taxes receivable delinquent 92,879 31,103
Intergovernmental receivable 747 548
Advance to other funds 173,527 213,527
Total assets $ 1,463,137 351,518,328
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 3 39,598 3 24,929
Total deferred inflows of resources 39,598 24,929
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable - 213,527
Restricted 1,195,984 1,273,149
Assigned 227,555 6,723
Total fund balance 1,423,539 1,493,399
Total deferred inflows and fund balance $ 1,463,137 $1,518,328
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City of Minot, North Dakota

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Nonmajor Debt Service Fund
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

REVENUES
Property tax collections
Interest income
Miscellaneous income
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government
Debt service
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, January 1
Fund balance, December 31
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Highway Highway
Debt Debt
2015 2014

$ 2,796,530 §1,081,623
4,807 4,298
214,524 -

3,015,861 1,085,921

1,005 -

2,385,000 1,995,000
386,226 317,252

2,772,231 2,312,252

243,630  (1,226,331)

5375 1,645,013
(318,865) (73,277)

(313,490) 1,571,736

(69,860} 345,405
1,493,399 1,147,994

§ 1423539 $1,493,399




City of Minot, North Dakota
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual
Nonmajor Debt Service Fund
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Highway Debt
Original Final 2015 Variance 2014
Budgeted  Budgeted Actual with Final Actual
Amounts  Amounts Amounts Budget Amounts
REVENUES
Property tax collections $1,477,705 $2,846,695 352,796,530 § 50,165 §1,081,623
Interest income - - 4,807 {4,807) 4,298
Miscellaneous income - - 214,524 (214,524) -
Total revenues 1,477,705 2,846,695 3,015,861 (169,166) 1,085,921
EXPENDITURES
General government 157,530 138,037 1,005 137,032 -
Debt service
Principal retirement 2,502,500 2,323,750 2,385,000 (61,250} 1,995,000
Interest and fiscal charges 446,563 446,562 386,226 60,336 317,252
Total expenditures 3,106,593 2,908,349 2,772,231 136,118 2,312,252
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures (1,628,888) (61,654) 243,630 (305,284) (1,226,331)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 1,628,889 259,899 5,375 254,524 1,645,013
Transfers out - (314,058) (318,865) 4,807 (73,277)
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,628,889 (54,15%9) (313,490) 259,331 1,571,736
Net change in fund balance $ - $ (115.813) (69,860) _§  (45,953) 345,405

Fund balance, January 1
Fund balance, December 31

100

1,493,399

$1423,539

1,147,994
$1.493,399
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Nonmajor Capital Project Funds

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS Funds used to account for and report financial resources restricted, committed, or assigned to
expenditure for capital outlays (items with a value greater than $5,000) including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and
other capital assets. Capital projects funds exclude those types of funds or for assets held in trust for individuals, private organizations,
or other governments. (GASB Statement No. 54, paragraph 33)

Sertoma Sports Complex - To account for resources used in construction of athletic facilities within the City. The City's share of
funding is provided by private donations, tournament and user fees.

Special Assessment Capital - To account for the financing of public improvements or services deemed advisable to benefit the
properties against which special assessments are [evied.

Fire Equipment - To account for the resources used for the purchase of budgeted fire capital assets. Funding is provided by ND
Century Code Sec. 57-15-42 upon a 60% vote of approval by the electorate.

Storm Sewer Development - To account for the resources used towards the construction of new storm sewer districts within the City
of Minot. Funding is provided by a monthly charge on user water bills.

Community Development Block Grant and Economic Development Adminisiration — To account for capital resources used toward
the intermodal park. Funding is provided by the Community Development Block Grants and the Economic Development
Administration.

Equipment Purchase - To account for the resources used for the purchase and replacement of capital equipment for various City
departments. Funding is provided by the sanitation and water and sewer utility funds and the mill levy.

Flood Controi Capital - To account for capital resources used towards flood control projects within the City of Minot. Funding is
provided by sales tax collections.
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Capital Project Funds
December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments
Taxes receivable delinquent
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Intergovernmental receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Retainage payable
Due to other funds
Advance from other funds
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes
Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCE
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balance
Total liabilities, inflows and fund balance

Sertoma Special
Sports  Assessment
Complex Capital

Fire Storm Sewer
Equipment Development

§ 6,642 5 980,638

- 275,926

$ 478,129 § 7,911,849

4472 ;
- 64,941

109 -

3 6,642 $1,256,564

$ 482,710 § 7.976.790

$ -5 14612 8 - s -
- 26,983 - -
- - - 4,854,524
. 41,595 - 4,854,524

6,642 1,214,969

481,337 3,122,266

6,642 1,214,969

481,337 3,122,266

3 6642 51,256,564

8 482,710 § 7,976,790

102



City of Minot, North Dakota
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Capital Project Funds
December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

CDBG Flood
and Equipment Control Total Total
EDA Purchase Capital 2015 2014
ASSETS
Cash and investments h) - $ 445,031 $ 1,215,194 $ 11,037,483 § 5,425,345
Restricted cash and investments 148,879 - - 148,879 148,879
Taxes receivable delinquent - 52,640 - 57,112 80,967
Accounts receivable - - - 64,941 64,566
Due from other funds - - - - 47.129
Intergovernmental receivable - 451,704 - 727,739 136,408
Total assets $ 148,879 & 949,375 § 1,215,194 §$ 12.036,154 $ 5.903.294
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable b - $ 234,175 § 317,037 $ 565,824 § 123,762
Retainage payable - 56,683 - 83,666 144,910
Due to other funds - - - - 47,129
Advance from other funds - - - 4,854,524 1,673,212
Total liabilities - 290,858 317,037 5,504,014 1,989,013
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes - 32,754 - 34,127 71,697
Total deferred inflows of resources - 32,754 - 34,127 71,697
FUND BALANCE
Restricted 148,879 - - 148,879 242,931
Committed - - - - 148,879
Assigned - 625,763 898,157 6,349,134 3,716,651
Unassigned - - - - (265,877)
Total fund balance 148,879 625,763 898,157 6,498,013 3,842,584

Total liabilities, inflows and fund balance $ 148879 § 949,375 § 1,215,194 § 12,036,154 $ 5,903,294
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City of Minot, North Daketa
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Capital Project Funds
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Sertoma Special
Sports  Assessment Fire Storm Sewer
Complex Capital Equipment Development
REVENUES
Property tax collections i - $ - $ 863835 § -
Sales tax collections - - - -
Intergovernmental - 849,519 5,941 -
Charges for services - - - 1,204,385
Interest income 131 - 818 [3.115
Miscellaneous - - 320,492 -
Total revenues 131 849,519 414,086 1,217,500
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay
Contracted work - 1,965,029 380,437 -
Equipment - - 283,818 -
Legal - - -
Other - 87,888 112 -
Acquisitions - - - -
Engineering - 440,641 7,754 -
Debt retirement
Interest and fiscal charges - 142 - 171,360
Total expenditures - 2,493,700 672,121 171,360
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures 131 (1,644,181)  (258.035)  1.046,140
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Special assessment bonds issued - 1,835,000 - -
Premium on special assessments bonds - - - -
Discount on special assessment bonds - {1,779) - -
Sale of City property - - - -
Transfers in - 1,341,796 63,750 -
Transfers out {68,901) (49,960)  (118.117) (13,115}
Total other financing sources (uses) (68,901) 3,125,027 (54,367} (13.115)
Net change in fund balance (68,770) 1,480,846 (312,402y 1,033,025
Fund balance (deficit), January 1 75,412 (265.877) 793,739 2,089,241
Fund balance, December 31 $ 6642 $1.214969 $ 481.337 § 3.122.266
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City of Minot, North Dakota

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Capital Project Funds
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

REVENUES

Property tax collections
Sales tax collections
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Interest income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay
Contracted work
Equipment
Legal
Other
Acquisitions
Engineering

Debt retirement

Interest and fiscal charges -

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures -

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Special assessment bonds issued -
Premium on special assessments bonds -
Discount on special assessment bonds -

Sale of City property
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses) -

Net change in fund balance -

Fund balance (deficit}), January |
Fund balance, December 31

CDBG Flood
and Equipment  Control Total Total
EDA Purchase Capital 2015 2014
§ - $ 552,729 - $ 639564 % 877,163
- 2,376,217 - 3,231,677 491,496
- - - 1,204,385 1,171,197
- 1,690 - 15,754 13,219
- 439,464 32,692 792,648 -
- 3,370,100 32,692 5,884,028 2,553,075
- 1,862,032 - 4,207,498 2,621,637
- 2,297,513 - 2,581,331 2,489,396
. . 3,751 3,751 -
- 109,320 - 197,320 418,718
- - 16,337 16,337 -
- 2,709 2,772,539 3,223,643 304321
- - 171,502 118,821
- 4,271,574 2,792,627 10,401,382 5,952,893
(901,474) (2,759.935) (4.517.354) (3.399.818)
- - 1,835,000 4,098,850
. - - 134,505
- - (1,779 -
- 74,815 - 74,815 86,500
- 558,211 3,658.092 5,621,849 2,479,488
- {106,979) - (357,102)  (3,804,573)
526,047 3,658,092 7,172,783 2,964,770
(375.427) 898,157 2,655,429 (435,048
148,879 1,001,190 - 3,842,584 4,277,632
$ 148879 $§ 625763 $§ 898.157 § 6498013 § 3.842.584
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual
Nonmajor Capital Project Fund
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Fire Equipment

Original Final 2015 Variance 2014
Budgeted  Budgeted Actual with Final Actual
Amounts Amounts Amounts Budget Amounts
REVENUES
Property tax collections $ 72900 § 72,900 § 86,835 § (13,935) § 143,142
Intergovernmental 277,000 277,000 5,941 271,059 35,072
Interest income - - 818 (818) 2,029
Total revenues 349,900 349,900 414,086 (64,186) 180,243
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay
Contracted work 420,000 - 380,437 (380,437) 591,187
Equipment 334,900 1,585,951 283,818 1,302,133 989,911
Other - - 112 (112) 6,337
Engineering - - 7,754 (7,754) 89,966
Total expenditures 754,900 1,585,951 672,121 913,830 1,677,401
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (405,000 (1,236,051 (258,035 (978,016) (1,497,158)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of City property - - - - 14,000
Transfers in 405,000 405,000 63,750 341,250 729,833
Transfers out - - (118,11°7) 118,117 (46,312)
Total other financing sources {uses) 405,000 405,000 (54,367) 459,367 697,521
Net change in fund balance b - § (831,051) (312,402)_§ (518.649) (799,637)
Fund balance, January 1 793,739 1,593,376
Fund balance, December 31 $ 481,337 $ 793,739

106



City of Minot, North Dakota
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual
Nonmajor Capital Project Fund
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Equipment Purchase

Original Final 2015 Variance 2014
Budgeted Budgeted Actual with Final Actual
Amounts Amounts Amounts Budget Amounts
REVENUES
Property tax collections § 542,463 § 539,315 $§ 552,729 & (13, 414) § 734,021
Intergovernmental 240,000 262,781 2,376,217 (2,113,436) 416,447
Interest income - - 1,690 (1,690) 2,525
Miscellaneous - 3,680 439,464 {435,784) -
Total revenues 782,463 805,776 3,370,100 (2,564,324) 1,152,993
-EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay
Contracted work - - 1,862,032 (1,862,032) 67,919
Equipment 1,887,463 5,365,441 2,297,513 3,067,928 1,355,985
Other - - 109,320 (109,320) 150,607
Engineering - - 2,709 (2,709) 92,015
Total expenditures 1,887,463 5,365,441 4,271,574 1,093,867 1,666,526
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures {1,105,000) (4,559,665) (901,474) (3,658,191) (513,533)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of City property 75,000 75,000 74,815 185 72,500
Transfers in 1,030,000 1,024,853 558,211 466,642 725,893
Transfers out - - (106,979) 106,979 (30,833
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,105,000 1,099,853 526,047 573,806 767,560
Net change in fund balance 5 - $ (3.459,812) (375,427 _$ (3,084,385) 254,027
Fund balance, January 1 1,001,190 747,163
Fund balance, December 31 $ 625,763 $1,001,190

s ———— e —
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual
Nonmajor Capital Project Fund
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Flood Control Capital

Original Final 2015 Variance 2014
Budgeted Budgeted Actual with Final Actual
Amounts Amounts Amounts Budget Amounts
REVENUES
Sales tax collections 5 - $ 2,984,211 § - $2,984,211 § -
Total revenues - 2,984,211 32,692 2,951,519 -
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay
Contracted work - 2,967,857 - 2,967,857 -
Legal - - 3,751 (3,751) -
Acquisitions - 16,354 16,337 17 -
Engineering - - 2,772,539 (2,772,539) -
Total expenditures - 2,984,211 2,792,627 191,584 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures - - (2,759,935) 2,759,935 -
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - 3,658,092 (3,658,092) -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - 3,658,092  (3,658,092) -
Net change in fund balance $ - § - 898,157 _§ (898.157) -
Fund balance, January | - -
Fund balance, December 31 $ B98.157 $ -
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

ENTERPRISE FUNDS ~ Funds for operations (a) financed and operated in a manner similar to private enterprises, where the
intent of the governing body is to provide goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis where the expenses,
including depreciation, be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) whete the governing body has decided
that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance,
public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.

Cemetery - To account for the provisions of burial services for the residents of the City and surrounding area. All activities
necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including but not limited to, administration, operations,
maintenance, and sale of burial plots and related services.

Parking Authoerity - To account for the provisions of providing parking for the Central Business District of the City of Minot.
All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited to, administration,

operations, and maintenance.
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Combining Statement of Net Position
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Total Total
Nonmajor Nonmajor  Nonmajor
Business-Type Activities Proprietary Proprietary
Parking Funds Funds
Cemetery  Authority 2015 2014
ASSETS
Current
Cash and cash equivalents $ 280330 § 200,957 3 481287 § 3593392
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - - - 14,402
Taxes receivable delinquent 10,741 - 10,741 3,406
Accounts receivable 14,442 2.856 17,298 9,251
Intergovernmental receivable 425 - 425 987
Prepaid 94 70 164 120
Total current assets 306,032 203,883 509,915 621,558
Noncurrent assets
Other assets - capital credits 1,987 [.354 3.341 1,623
Capital assets
Land 179,504 136,397 315,901 315,901
Buildings 150,885 - 150,885 150,885
Equipment 223,896 342,867 566,763 623,182
Infrastructure 390,061 17,228 407,289 319,136
Construction in progress 2,605 - 2,605 -
Total capital assets 946,951 496,492 1,443,443 1,409,104
[Less-accumulated depreciation (370,448) (334,294) {704,742) (643,408}
Net capital assets 576,503 162,198 738,701 763,696
Total assets 884,522 367,435 1,251,957 [,388,877
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources related to pension 64,150 - 64,150 -
Total deferred cutflows of resources 64,150 - 64,150 -
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 2,851 1,505 4,356 8.826
Accrued salaries payable 3.619 862 4,481 15,851
Compensated absences 7,287 - 7,287 83511
Total current liabilities 13,757 2,367 16,124 33,188
Long-term liabilities
Compensated absences 13,534 - 13,534 15,806
Customer deposits - 600 600 600
Net pension liability 501,921 - 501,921 -
Total long-term liabilitics 515,455 600 516,055 16,406
Total liabilities 529,212 2,967 532,179 49,594
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources related to pension 38,579 - 38,579 -
Total deferred inflows of resources 38,579 - 38,579 -
NET POSITION
[nvested in capital assets, net of related debt 576,503 162,198 738,701 765,696
Restricted for fountain, entrance, memorials - - - 14,402
Unrestricted net position (195,622} 202,270 6,648 559,185
Total net position § 380881 § 364468 3§ 745349 §1.339.283
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City of Minot, North Dakota

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries
Employee benefits
Professional services
Property services
Purchased services
Supplies
Sundry
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating income {loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Property tax collections
Interest income
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets
Miscellaneous income (expense}

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out
Total contributions and transfers

Change in net position

Net position, January 1

Change in accounting principle - Note 5E
Net position, January 1, as restated

Net position, December 31

It

Total Total

Nonmajor Nonmajor Nonmajor
Business-Type Activities Proprietary Proprietary
Parking Funds Funds

Cemetery  Authority 2015 2014
§ 313,679 & 45655 § 359334 § 358,974
313,679 45,655 359,334 358,974
266,134 45,753 311,887 298,959
84,303 4,961 39,264 101,140
97 - 97 260
19,762 10,316 30,078 34,131
6,434 12,028 18,462 7,967
18,464 6,813 25,277 27,551
26,098 5,298 31,396 27,363
47,799 13,536 61,335 64,260
469,091 98,705 567,796 561,631
(155,412) (53,050) (208,462)  (202,657)
166,746 - 166,746 82,201
668 383 1,051 581
- - - {1,513)
1,482 2,129 3,611 6,289
168,896 2,512 171,408 87,558
13,484 (50,538) (37,054)  (115,099)

- - - 280,000
(63,944) (383) (64,327) {1,259)
{63,944) (383) (64,327) 278,741
(50,460) (50,921) (101,381) 163,642
923,894 415,389 1,339,283 1,175,641
(492,553) - (492,553) -
431,341 415,389 846,730 1,175,641
$ 380,881 § 364468 $ 745349 §$1,339,283




City of Minot, North Dakota
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Due from other agencies
Due to other agencics
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Taxes received
Transfers in
Transfers ont
Net cash provided {used) by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Disposat of capital asset
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividends
Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and investments, January 1
Cash and investments, December 31

Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the following:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Total cash and equivalenis on the Statement of Net Position

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
FPROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation expense
Change in assets and liabilities:
Taxes receivable
Receivables, net
Intergovernmental receivable
Prepaid
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries payable
Accrued interest payable
Other assets
Net pension liability
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

E12

Total Fotal
Nonmajor Nonmajor Nonmajor
Business-Type Activities Proprietary Proprietary
Parking Funds Funds
Cemetery  Authority 2015 2014
$ 298451 § 45457 § 343908 § 354825
(70,730} (39,050)  (109,780) (97.412)
(382,251) (49,969) (432,220  (389,33])
109 - 109 -
- {1,266) (1,266) (1,030)
(154,421 (44,828)  (199,249)  (132,948)
168,228 2,129 170,357 88,490
- - - 280,000
{63.944) {383) {64,327) {1,259)
104,284 1,746 106,030 367,231
(34.339) - {34,339) (55,532)
“ - - (34,198)
{34,339} - {34,339) (89,730)
668 383 1,051 581
668 383 1,051 581
(83,808) {42,699}  (126,507) 145,134
364,138 243,656 607,794 462,660
$ 280,330 $ 200957 % 481287 § 607.794
$ 280,330 $ 200957 3% 48(,287 § 593,392
- - - 14,402
$ 280330 3 200957 § 481,287 § 607,794

$(155.412) $ (53,050) § (208.462)

$ (202,657)

47,799 13,536 61.335 64,260
(7.33%) - (7,335) 1,377
(7.919) (128) (8,047) (5,400)
562 - 562 (526)
26 (70) (44) (120)
125 (4,595) (4,470) {140)
(12,113) 745 (11,370} 4,400
(3,496) - (3.496) 6,368
(453) (1,2606) (1.719) (504)
(16,203) - {16,203) -
$(154421) § (44.828) § (199.249) 3§ (132.948)




City of Minot, North Dakota
Internal Service Funds

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS - To account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or agency of
a government to other departments or agencies on a cost reimbursement basis.

Central Garage - To account for the cost of providing fuel, maintenance and repairs to vehicles and equipment of all City
departments.

Self surance - To account for the cost of providing health insurance to City of Minot employees and retirees.
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Combining Statement of Net Position
Internal Service Funds
December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Total Total
Internal Internal
Service Service
Central Self Funds Funds
Garage Insurance 2015 2014
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 254,592 $2,053476 $2,308,068 $ 1,774,718
Accounts receivable 5,238 2,101 7,339 6,586
Inventory 312,509 - 312,509 350,361
Other assets - capital credits 2,232 - 2,232 2,232
Prepaid - - - 2,850
Total assets 574,571 2,055,577 2,630,148 2,136,747
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 4,127 16,360 20,487 4,399
Insurance claims payable - 142,927 142,927 109,069
Total liabilities 4,127 159,287 163,414 113,468
NET POSITION
Unrestricted 570,444 1,896,290 2,466,734 2,023,279
Total net position § 570,444 $1,896,290 $2.466,734 $2,023,279
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Internal Service Funds
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015

With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Total Total
Internal Enternal
Service Service
Central Self Funds Funds
Garage Insurance 2015 2014
OPERATING REVENUES
Sales $ 994277 § - 3 994277 3% 1,335,788
Cost of goods sold (902,794) - (902,794) (1,241,660}
Gross margin 91,483 - 91,483 94,128
Charges for services
Employer - 2,193,558 2,193,558 1,877,129
Employee - 633,410 633,410 562,813
Total operating revenues 91,483 2,826,968 2,918,451 2,534,070
OPERATING EXPENSES
Supplies - - - 50,529
Insurance ciaims - 2,523,588 2,523,588 2,038,201
Total operating expenses - 2,523,588 2,523,588 2,088,730
Operating income (loss) 91,483 303,380 394,863 445,340
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income 417 3,526 3,943 3,962
Miscellaneous income (expense) (5,207) 49,856 44,649 (333,074)
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) (4,790) 53,382 48,592 (329,112)
Income (loss) before transfers 86,693 356,762 443,455 116,228
Change in net position 86,693 356,762 443,455 116,228
Net position, January | 483,751 1,539,528 2,023,279 1,907,051
Net position, December 31 3 570,444 § 1,896,290 § 2,466,734 $ 2,023,279
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City of Minot, North Dakota

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Internal Service Funds

For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

Central
Garage

Self

Insurance

Total Total
Internal Internal
Service Service

Funds Funds

2015 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users

$ 1,032,977 § 2,825367 § 3,858,344 § 3,784,268

Payments to suppliers (903,066)  (2,470,520)  (3,373,586) (3,462,863)
Payments to employees - - - -
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 129,911 354,847 484,758 321,405
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Internal activity - payments from (to) other funds (5,207) 49,856 44,649 (333,074)
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities (5,207) 49,856 44,649 (333,074}
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividends 417 3,526 3,943 3,962
Net cash provided by investing activities 417 3,526 3,943 3,962
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 125,121 408,229 533,350 (7,707}
Cash and investments, January 1 129,471 1,645,247 1,774,718 1,782,425
Cash and investments, December 31 § 2543592 § 2053476 $§ 2308068 § 1,774,718

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (L OSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income (loss) $ 91,483 $ 303,380 F 394,863 § 445340

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to

net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Change in assets and liabilities
Receivables, net 848 {1,601) {(753) 7,034
Inventory 37,852 - 37,852 3,736
Other assets - capital credits - - - (2,232)
Prepaid - 2,850 2,850 (2,850)
Accounts payable (272) 16,360 16,088 (123,02h)
Insurance claims payable - 33,858 33,858 (6,602)

Net cash provided {(used) by operating activities $ 129911 § 354,847 § 484758 § 321405
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Trust and Agency Funds

TRUST FUNDS - A pension trust fund is a fund made up of money contributed to by both the employer and the employee for
pension benefits. A trustee administers the funds and invests the money, collects the earnings and interest and distributes the
benefits. Additional information is provided below for some of the major funds in this category.

City Employee Pension - Arrangement for the provision of pension benefits in which all assets accumulated for the payment
of benefits may legally be used to pay benefits (including refunds of member contributions) to any of the plan members or
beneficiaries, as defined by the terms of the plan.

OPEB - Other Postemployment Benefits include postemployment healthcare benefits, regardless of the type of plan that
provides them, and all postemployment benefits provided separately from a pension plan, excluding benefits defined as
termination offers and benefits.

AGENCY FUNDS - Funds used to report resources held by the reporting government in a purely custodial capacity (assets
equal labilities). Agency funds typically involve only the receipt, temporary investment, and remittance of fiduciary resources
to individuals, private organizations, or other governments. (SGAS 34) Additional information is provided below for some of
the major funds in this category.

Payroll Deductions - To account for the receipt and disbursement of employee payroll deductions on a monthly basis.

Employer Social Security - To account for the receipt and disbursement of employer and employee contributions to social
security.

Horel/Motel Tax - To account for the receipt and disbursement of hotel/motel tax as collected and distributed by the City to
the Convention and Visitor's Bureau and the All Season’s Arena.

Community Development Block Grant and Economic Development Administration — To account for resources provided by
the Community Development Block Grants and the Economic Development Administration.
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City of Minot, North Dakota

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
December 31, 2015

With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Money market

Equity/stocks

Fixed income

Alternative

Total investments

Taxes receivable delinquent
Due from other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Due to other funds
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes

NET POSITION
Restricted for pension benefits

Restricted for OPERB benefits
Total net position

Total Total
Fiduciary Fiduciary
Pension OPER Funds Funds
Trust Trust 2015 2014
$§ 171,064 - % 171,064 $ 137,160
785,921 34,855 820,776 1,778,908
34,211,683 669,625 34,881,308 34,708,216
21,699,341 402,421 22,101,762 23,257,901
4,201,907 53,732 4,255,639 5,049,989
60,898,852 1,160,633 62,059,485 64,795,014
25,131 - 25,131 101,141
88,934 - 88,934 -
61,183,981 1,160,633 62,344,614 65,033,315
- 88,934 88,934 231,359
- 88,934 88,934 231,359
25,131 - 25,131 101,141
61,158,850 - 61,158,850 63,557,495
- 1,071,699 1,071,699 1,143,320
$61,158,650 § 1,071,699 362230,549 §64.700,815
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
For the Year-to-Date as of Pecember 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer
Employee
Total contributions

Investment income
Interest and dividends
Net increase {decrease) in the fair value of investments
Total investment income
Less investment expense
Net investment income
Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits paid to plan member and beneficiaries
Refunds paid to plan member and beneficiaries
Retiree claims
Third party premiums
Administrative expenses
Total deductions

Change in net position
Net position, January 1
Net position, December 31

Total Total

Fiduciary Fiduciary

Pension OPEB Funds Funds

Trust Trust 2015 2014
4,250,241 § 32959 $ 4283200 $ 4,847,704
2,635,549 466,515 3,102,064 3,194,919
6,885,790 499 474 7,385,264 8,042,623
1,596,449 22,292 1,618,741 1,690,204
(2,765,087) (34,777)  (2,799,864) 2,605,674
(1,168,638) (12,485)  (1,181,123) 4,295,878
157,642 3,161.00 160,803 149,915
(1,326,280) (15,646)  (1,341,926) 4,145,963
5,559,510 483,828 6,043,338 12,188,586
7,299,926 - 7,299,926 6,912,542
434,086 - 434,086 566,634
- 363,549 363,549 549,772
- 176,300 176,300 166,938
224,143 15,600 239,743 316,469
7,058,155 555,449 8,513,604 8,512,355
(2,398,645) (71,621)  (2,470,266) 3,676,231
63,557,495 1,143,320 64,700,815 61,024,584

$ 61,158,850 $1,071.699 § 62,230,549 §64,700,815
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With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

City of Minot, North Dakota
Combining Statement of Net Position

Agency Funds
December 31, 2015

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Taxes receivable delinquent
Accounts receivable
Intergovernmental receivable
Due from other funds
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Total Total
Employer Hotel/ Agency Agency
Payroll Social Motel CDBG/ Funds Funds
Deductions Security Tax EDA 2015 2014
$ 308,653 § - 5 95773 - § 404,426 37,107
- 1,015 - - 1,015 4,085
398 - 80,007 - 80,405 127,805
- 14 2,090 22,739 24,843 621,851
- - 265 - 265 227,474
$ 309,051 § 1,029 $ 178,135 22,739 3 510,954 1,018,322
$ 309,051 § 1,629 § 178,135 22,474 § 510,689 1,016,912
- - - 265 265 1,410
$ 309050 8 1,029 § 178,135 22,739 % 510,954 1,018,322
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City of Minof, North Dakota
Combining Statements of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds
For the Year-to-Date as of December 31, 2015
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014

PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS
Assets
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Total liabilities

EMPLOYER SOCIAL SECURITY
Assels
Cash and investments
Taxes receivable delinguent
Intergovernmental receivable
Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Togal liabilities

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX
Assets
Cash and investments
Accounis receivable
Intergovernmental receivable
Due from other funds
Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Total liabilities

CDBG/EDA
Assels
Cash and investiments
intergovernmental receivable
Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Totai fabilities

TOTAL DECEMBER 31, 2015
Assets
Cash and investments
Taxes receivable delinquent
Accounts receivable
intergovernmental receivable
Due from other funds
Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due 10 other funds
Total liabililies

TOTAL DECEMBER 31, 2014
Assets
Cash and investments
Taxes receivable delinquent
Accounts receivable
intergovemmental receivable
Due 10 other funds
Total assels
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Total liabilities

Beginning Additions Deletions Ending
$ 3107 8§ 6320488 5 6048942 % 308,653
5,391 1463 6,656 308
43,692 - 43,692 -
§ 86390 5 632195F 8 6099290 % 309.05]
3 86,300 S 608411 $ 831,072 § 309,051
§ 86390 & 608411 5 831072 § 309.051
) - s 3301 § 330 8% E
4,085 2 3,072 1,015
72 734 752 14
$ 4,157 8 4037 % 7,165 % 1,029
3 4,157 8 - 3 (3,128) 3 1,029
5 4137 8 - ) (3.128) % 1.029
$ - S 1,585,163 § 1489390 § 95773
122,214 1,398,073 1,440,280 30,007
2,601 2,090 2,661 2,090
183,782 - 183,517 265
% 308657 § 2985326 & 3.115848 § 178,135
$ 308,637 § 1335875 % 1205353 % 178,135
$ 308657 S 1335875 5§ 1205353 % 173135
3 - S5 3,234,785 § 3234785 § -
610,118 2,829,500 3,425,879 22,739
$ 619918 $ 6064285 § 6660664 $ 22739
$ 617,708 § 668,171 5§ 72,937 § 22474
1,410 1,145 - 265
§ 610118 S 609316 8§ 72937 8§ 22139
$ 37,107 511,045,737 § 10,776,418 5 404,426
4,083 2 3,072 1,015
127,805 1,399,536 1,446,936 80,405
621,851 2,832,324 3429332 24,843
227474 - 227,209 265
S 1018322 515375599 % 15882967 § 510,954
S 1,016912 § 2612457 § 2,106,234 S 510,689
1,410 1,145 - 265
$ 1018322 § 2613602 § 2106234 § 510,954
S 187444 §$12241,289 §$ 12391626 $ 37,107
3,584 3,164 2,663 4,085
150,178 1,795,749 1,818,123 127,805
42,094 2,036,829 1,457,072 621,851
- 227474 - 227,474
$ 383300 5 16,304.505 § 15669481 $1.018,322
5 383300 $ 4467951 $ 5,101,563 $1,016912
- . 1,450 1,410
$ 383300 $ 4467951 § 5.002,973 § 1018322
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Comparative Schedule by Source December 31, 2015 and 2014

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS 2015 2014
Land $ 42,569,187 $ 31,055,094
Buildings 14,889,521 14,913,448
Equipment 21,515,354 17,911,741
Infrastructure 224,711,583 180,559,156
Intangible assets 598,329 598,329
Books 3,330,862 3,794,171
Construction in progress 20,208,352 8,215,463

Total governmental finds capital assets § 327,823,188 3 257.047.402

INVESTMENTS IN GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS BY SOURCE
Capital project funds

$ 21,120,985
3,554,141
17,348,617
90,051,872
19,929,061
1,216,423
59,418,892
24,588,029
17,389,897
465,739
1,963,746

General obligation bonds and levies $ 27,483,151
Revenue bonds 3,554,141
Sales tax 20,779,115
Federal grants 104,456,915
State grants 28,527,103
County grants 1,216,423
Contributions from others 96,627,842
General fund 24,607,593
Special revenue 17,555,095
Urban renewal 465,739
Enterprise fund 2,550,071
Total governmental funds capital assets 5 327,823,188

3 257,047.402
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity

December 31, 2015
Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund
Capital Assets Capital Assets
January 1, Construction  December 31,
FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY 2013 Additions Deletions Transfers in Process 2015
GENERAL GOYERNMENT
Civic center/property maintenance  § 4,060,815 § 27492 § - $ (15273 % - $ 4,073,032
Clerk 7,999 - - - - 7,999
Finance 26,388 - - - - 26,888
Information technology 420,764 8.834 - - - 429,598
Assessor 148,785 - 43,206 - - 105,579
Engineering 757,573 70,539 478,080 29,047 9 379,088
Inspection 287,988 - - 2,643 - 290,631
Traffic control 3,443,491 2,638,689 27,174 19,359 16,992 6,091,357
Public works 1,530,039 - - 15,275 - 1,545,314
General 34,855,947 12,729,530 4,569,650 - 16,137,895 59,153,722
Total general government 45,540,289 15,475,084 5,118,110 51,049 16,154,896 72,103,208
PUBLIC SAFETY
Police 3,141,067 2,825,630 669,669 (51,049) - 7,245,979
Fire 9,977,891 1,431,083 1,026,343 - 3,026,900 13,409,531
Total public safety 15,118,958 4,256,713 1,696,012 (51,049) 3,026,900 20,655,510
Street 182,446,802 39,281,075 2,737,664 - 1,020,778 220,010.991
Shop 277,163 - - - 8 277173
Library 7,019,767 491,179 682,811 . 5,744 6,833,879
Public transportation 3,196,354 923.596 - - - 4,119,950
Recreation 3,448,067 374,384 - - 26 3,822,477
Total governmental funds $ 257.047.402 §$ 60,802,031 310,234,597 § - $ 20,208,352 § 327.823,188
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Statistical Section

This statistical section presents information to provide financial statement users with additional historical perspective, context, and
detail to assist in using the information in the basic financial statements, notes to the financial statements, and combining financial
statements to understand and assess the City of Minot’s overall economic condition.

The Statistical Section is presented in five categories:

Sources:

Financial Trends — schedules are intended to assist users in understanding and assessing how the City’s financial position has
changed over time.

Net Position by Component

Changes in Net Position

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Revenue Capacify — schedules are intended to assist users in understanding and assessing the factors affecting the City’s
ability to generaie its own-source revenues. The City of Minot’s own-source revenues are property and sales taxes.

Sales tax-Taxable Sales and Purchases

Sales tax-Taxable Sales and Purchases by Industry

Governmental Activities Tax Revenues by Source

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

Property Tax Rates in Mills - Direct and Overlapping Governments

Property Tax Levies and Collections

Principal Property Taxpayers

Debt Capacity — schedules are intended to assist users in understanding and assessing the City’s debt burden and its ability to
issue new debt in the future.

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and Net Bonded Debt per Capita

Direct and Overlapping Debt

Legal Debt Margin

Legal Debt Margin, Last Ten Fiscal Years

Revenue Bond Coverage

Demographic and Economic - schedules are intended (1} to assist users in understanding the socioeconomic environment
within which a government operates and (2) to provide information that facilitates comparisons of financial statement
information over time and with other governments,

Demographic and Economic Statistics

Principal Employers, Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Operating - schedules are intended to provide information about the City’s operations and resources to assist readers in
understanding how the City’s financial information relates to the services the city provides and the activities it performs.
Full-time Equivalent City Employees by Function
Operating Indicators by Function
Capital Asset Statistics by Function

Unless otherwise noted, the information in the schedules is from the Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports of the City of

Minot for the current year and prior years as presented. If less than 10 years of information is presented the schedule will
provide an explanation. The City of Minot implemented GASB #54 in 2009,
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

unaudited
Assessed
(nH 1) (2) Value as a

Commercial Residential Total Total Percentage of Total

Land and Land and Public Assessed True and Full True and Full Direct
Year Buildings Buildings Utilities Value Value Value Tax Rate
2006 $ 303,626,400 3 568287700 3 8,075,165 § 879,989,265 § 1,759,978,530 50.00% 122.74
2007 342,470,100 616,720,533 7.982,740 967,173,373 1,934,346,747 30.00% 183.70
2008 364,312,900 658,155,100 7,921,785 1,030,389,785 2,060,779,570 30.00% 113.25
2009 399,824,050 727,791,050 8,697,477 1,136,312,577 2,272,625,153 30.00% 108.12
2010 451,055,991 820,974,530 9,717,790 1.281,748,311 2.563,496,622 50.00% 107.33
2011 485,485,645 828,297,280 9,492,470 1,323,275,395 2,646,530,790 30.00% 76.67
2012 620,200,100 936,981,878 13,467,661 1,570,649,639 3,141,299.270 30.00% 84.64
2013 843,373,150 1,188,428,700 15,175,410 2,046.977.260 4,093,954,520 50.00% 76.05
2014 1,000,617,300 1,227,636,250 15,781,324 2.244,034.874 4,488,069,748 50.00% 77.90
2015 1,249,607,644 1,273,775,044 16,952,078 2,540,334,767 5,080,669,333 50.00% 77.05

(1) Data obtained from the City Assessor's Office and Ward County Auditor’s Office

(2) Assessed values are finalized by the State Assessment Board on the second Tuesday in August of each year.

The assessed value is calculated at 50% of the true and full value,
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City of Minot, North Dakeota
Property Tax Rates in Mills - Direct and Overlapping Governments
Per $1,000 Taxable Valuation
Last Ten Fiscal Years

City of Minot

Special Debt Minot Minot State
General Proprietary Revenue Capital Service Park School and
Year Fund Funds Funds  Funds Funds Total District  District  County Total
2006 53.44 0.43 38.62 2.70 27.55 122.74 30.83 20842 79.75 441.74
2007 49.50 0.84 36.16 1.73 25.47 113.70 3148  206.47 68.13 419.78
2008 51.11 3.01 32.93 2.88 23.32 113.25 32.80  204.65 74.45 42515
2009 50.19 295 3575 2.39 16.84 108.12 30.68 133.40 77.43 349.63
2010 51.91 4.24 33.37 3.63 14.18 107.33 29.83 129.75 72.66 339.57
2011 54.59 - 15.17 0.39 6.52 76.67 30.87 135.19 69.58 31231
2012 55.32 .33 16.00 8.44 3.55 84.64 31.65 141.02 71.12 328.43
2013 42,88 0.44 21.90 4.63 6.20 76.05 28.11 31.98 63.03 249.17
2014 46.01 0.82 20.64 2.94 7.49 77.90 27.09 92.41 7122 268.62
2015 47.41 1.70 16.62 7.11 4.21 77.05 29.35 98.25 64.79 26944

Data obtained from the City of Minot Budget and the Ward County Auditor's Office
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Total Qutstanding
(1) Collection (4} Delinquent
Total {2} Percent 2) 2) as Percent Accumulated  as Percent
Levy Current Current of Levy  Delinquent Total of Current ()] Qutstanding  of Current
Year Tax Levy Collections  Collected  Collections  Collections Levy Adjustments Taxes Levy

2006 $10,132,780 $ 9,573,509 94.48% § 125,104 § 9,698,613 95.72% % 373,073 & 368,178 3.63%

2007 10,329,502 9,754,043 94.43% 188,150 9,942,193 96.25% 385,933 369,554 3.58%
2008 10,895,992 10,322,163 94.73% 201,647 10,523,810 96.58% 404,619 337.117 3.09%
2009 11,453,689 10,852,906  94.75% 257,025 11,109,931 97.00% 398,636 282,239 2.46%
2010 12,736,802 12,063,643  94.71% 205,011 12,268,634 96.32% 466,124 284,263 2.23%
201 9,408,148 8,943,179  95.06% 206,031 9,149,210 97.25% 315,299 227,902 2.42%
2012 12,449,978 11,789,696  94.70% 170,747 11,960,443 96.07% 354,891 362,546 2.91%
2013 14,505,927 13,803,849  95.16% 264,952 14,068,802 96.99% 351,294 448,378 3.09%
2014 16,451,633 15,063,278  91.536% 309,745 15,373,023 93.44% 459,639 1,067,348 6.49%
2015 17,616,035 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

(1) Amounts are given to Ward County in November of each year but are not due until February 15 of the following year.
(2) Coltections are for the 12 month period January through December of the year following the levy year.
(3) Includes discount, mobile homes, abatements & change orders

(4) Prior year accumulated taxes + current levy - current collections - delinquent collections - adjustments
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Principal Property Taxpayers
December 31, 2015
wnaudited

2015 2006
(1) % of total [4))] o of total
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
TAXPAYER Value Rank Value Value Rank Yalue

Investor's Real Estate Trust (IRET) 5 7,462,100 1 2.94% $ 1,303,620 b3 1.75%
Minot Dakota Mall, LLC (includes Sleep lnn Complex) 4,294,650 2 £.69% 3,213,840 1 4.31%
ARHC MMMINNDO1, LLC {Medical Arts/Wellington) 1,328,250 3 0.52%
Stonebridge Devetopment Company LLC 1,299,500 4 0.51%
SUS0 3 Southgate LP 1,078,200 5 0.429%
Northdale Apartments 111 LLC 974,950 [ 0.38%
Prairie Heights Apartments 947,400 7 0.37%
Wal-Mart Real Estate 946,600 8 0.37% 558,100 4 0.75%
Southwood Apartments 938,100 9 0.37%
Hartland Hospitality Fund LLC 913,250 10 0.36%
North Highland Minet LLC 906,550 11 0.36%
The Pines on 37th LLC 837,650 12 0.34%
Menard'’s [re. 840,700 13 0.33% 399,860 7 0.54%
St Alexius Medical Center 824,950 14 0.32%
Inzemational Inn 821,400 15 0.32% 395,000 8 0.53%
Northern Plains Apartments 818,030 15 0.32%
Meadow Ridge, LLC (Apartiments) 813,950 17 0.32%
KCR Investments LLC 794,900 18 0.31%
Farmers Union Oil Co 783,600 19 0.31%
Cognizant Technology Selutions 171,350 20 0.30%
Kadima Medial Properies (Former Unimed Clinic) 603,480 3 0.81%
Northem States Power (Xcel) 555,000 5 0.74%
Glacial Holdings (Apattients) 324,940 13 0.44%
Canbridge Capital Management 362,690 10 0.49%
RelinStar (ING) 393,870 9 0.53%
Trinity 276,930 16 0.37%
Minot Senior Living (Brentmoor} 246,510 18 0.33%
Minot Vista Properties {(Edgewood Vista} 336,690 11 0.45%
L & § Family {MLT} 330,630 12 0.44%
Dayton-Hudson (Tarpet) 285,310 15 0.38%
Riverside Inc. (Holiday [rn) 292,320 14 0.39%
ISP Portfolic Two (Fonmer Wal-Mart) 239,470 19 0.32%%
Philadelphia Macaroni 417,200 6 0.56%
Johanneson's Property (Marketplace} 250,550 17 0.34%
Somerset Court Partnership 226,080 20 0.30%
Community Care Group
Alg Cilers 225,625,377 88.82% 63,597,870 85.24%
Total Taxable Assessed Value $254.033.477 100.00%% 374610000 100.00%

(1) Data oblained from City Assessor’s Office. Taxable Value is 5% of

actual market value per state statute.
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Ratios of Qutstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

unaudited
Governmental Activities Busincss-?ypu Activitics
Capital (1)

General Special Financing Percentage (2)

Ohbligation  Assessment  Program Cagpital Revenue Notes Loans Capital Total of Personal Per
Year Bonds Bonds Bonds Lease Bonds Payablc Pavable Leases Government Income Capita
2006 $10,075,000 $ 5385000 $ - - S11,E80,00C 3 L747241 § 273,563 - 28,660,804 10.59%  § 78379
2007 10,485,000 6,955,000 B - 15,270,000 1.687.879 210,756 - 34,608,635 12.39% 946.44
2008 10,675,000 7,735,000 - - 25,620,000 £,627.479 144,146 . 45,801,625 15.58% 1,252.54
2009 11,440,000 6,555,000 - - 23,675,000 1,562,795 74,567 - 43,307,362 14.01% 1.184.33
2010 11,480,000 5,160,000 - 9,748 21,110,000 1,496,921 - 360,656 39,617,325 12.18% 968.92
2011 9,970,000 8,750,000 - 6,563 20,830,000 1428722 - 640,437 41,605,722 12.12% 1,017.55
2012 8,390,000 9,585,000 - 3,383 20,595,000 1,358,115 - 491,120 40,422,618 9.13% 988.62
2013 13,300,000 20,090,000 - 265 36,005,000 1,285,015 - 683,680 71,363,960 15.08% 1,745.35
2014 15,255,000 23,160,000 - 6,495 42,395 000 1,209,334 - 473,392 82,499,221 16,74% 2,017.69
2015 13,260,000 22,930,000 1,910,000 4,026 58,730,000 1,130,981 - 1,029,389 98994396  20.[7% 242111

{1) $49.088 (ND Job Service Q3 2014)

{2) 40,888 - U.S. Census Bureau 2010, prior years 36,567 (2000 Census)
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt to Assessed
Value and Net Bonded Debt per Capita
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(2) Less Ratio of Net
)] Gross Debt Net Net Bonded Bonded

Assessed Bonded Service Bonded Debt to Debt
Year Population Value Debt Funds Debt Assessed Value per Capita
2006 36,567 $ 879,989,265 $ 10,075,000 $ 225765 § 9,849,234 1.12% 3 269
2007 36,567 973,539,940 10,485,000 1,076,549 9,408,451 0.97% 257.29
2008 36,567 1,030,389,785 10,675,000 1,043,314 9,631,686 0.93% 263.40
2009 36,567 1,136,312,577 11,440,000 1,350,573 10,089,427 0.89% 275.92
2010 40,888 1,281,748,311 11,480,000 297,431 11,182,569 0.87% 273.49
2011 40,888 1,323,275,395 9,970,000 348,339 9,621,661 0.73% 23532
2012 40,888 1,570,649,639 $,390,000 510,105 7,879,895 0.50% 192,72
2013 40,888 2,046,977,260 13,300,000 352,896 12,947,104 0.63% 316.65
2014 40,888 2,244,034,874 15,255,000 1,273,150 13,981,850 0.62% 341.95
2015 40,888 2,540,334,767 13,260,000 1,195,984 12,064,016 0.47% 295.05

(1} Assessed values are finalized by the State Assessment Board on the second Tuesday
in August of cach year. Since 1982, assessed value is calculated at 50% of the
true and full value. Prior to 1982, assessed value was calculated at a residential
or commercial percentage of market value,

(2} This includes all long-term general obligation debt
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City of Minet, North Dakota
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

unaudited
City's
Outstanding Sinking Net Share of
Governmental Unit Debt Funds Debt Ratio Debt
Minot School District (1) § 60952276 3 - $ 60952276 91.75%  $55,923,997
Minot Park District 11,704,848 - 11,704,848  90.01% 10,535,004
Ward County (2) 44,521,452 - 44,521,452 82.12% 36,561,723
Overlapping Debt 103,020,814
City of Minot (General Obligation Direct Debt) 13,260,000 100.00% 13,260,000
City of Minot (Special Assessment Direct Debt) 22,930,000 100.00% 22,930,000
City of Minot (Capital Financing Program Bonds) 1,910,000 100.00% 1,910,000
City of Minot (Capital Lease) 4,026 100.00% 4,026
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 136,214,840
2015 2015 City's

Ratios Used Assessed Value Assessed Value Percentage
Minot School District (2) $ 2.330,768,992 $2,540,334,767 91.75%
Minot Park District (2) 2,286,459,956 2,540,334,767 90.01%
Ward County (2) 3,093,382,490 2,540,334,767 82.12%

(1) Data obtained from Minot Public School's Administration Office & Ward County Auditor's Office

(2) Data obtained from City Assessor's Office & Ward County Auditor's Office

The method used to determine the percentage of overlap was the percentage of the City's assessed value

shared by the separate entity.



City of Minot, North Dakota
Computation of Legal Debt Margin

December 31, 2015
unaudited
True and full value of taxable property - 2013 § 5,080,669,533
Debt limit - 8% of 50% of true and full value 203,226,781
Amount of debt applicable to debt limit:
General obligation bonds $ 13,260,000
Special Assessment bonds with Government Commitment 91,519
Less: cash in debt service sinking funds 1,195,984
Total net debt applicable to limit 12,155,535
Legal debt margin § 191,071,246
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Revenue Bond Coverage

Airport Bonds
L.ast Ten Fiscal Years
unaudited
Budget Net
State & n Appropriated Revenue Debt Service Requirements
Charges Federal Direct Transfers In Avatlable Interest &
For Collected Tax QOperating for for Debt (2) Fiscal

Year Services Revenues Levy Expenses  Debt Service Service Principal Charges Total Coverage
2006 % 973,986 § 322,184 5 107 3 993225 % 150,000 § 433,052 § 255000 % 93,190 § 348,190 1.30
2007 1,143,245 1,764,185 o4 1,066,534 150,000 1,950,990 275,000 81,890 356,890 5.58
2008 1,148,227 562,050 71,847 1,177,910 150,000 754,214 280.000 69,474 349,474 2.16
2009 1.237.245 1,248,678 280,979 1,189,502 150,000 1,727,400 295,000 36,287 351,287 4.92
2010 1,113,294 851,041 298424 1,458,934 150,000 953,825 305,000 42,205 347.205 2.75
201t 1.810,807 744,646 480,907 1,353,188 150,000 1,833,172 320,000 27,395 347395 3.28
2012 2,555,744 8,103,353 679 2,419,903 150,000 8,390,073 340,000 12,128 352,128 23.83
2013 3,946,497 13,510,812 397 2,679,069 - 14,778,637 - 83,485 83,485 177.02
2014 4,054,181 20,518,010 7 2,758,673 - 21,813,525 - 444,141 444,141 49.11
2015 3,339,385 22,735,030 - 4,494,305 - 21,580,110 - 397,076 597,076 36.14

(1) Excludes depreciation

(2) Permanent financing only
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Revenue Bond Coverage

Water & Sewer Bonds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
unaudited
Budget Net
(1) Appropriated  Revenue Debt Service Requirements
Direct Transfers Available Interest &
Gross Operating In for for Debt 2) Fiscal

Year Revenue Expenses Operations Service Principal Charges Total Coverage
2006 $ 7,597,350 $ 5,963,549 % 100,000 § 1,733,801 $ 840,000 $ 349,127 § 1,189,127 1.46
2007 7,695,089 6,319,567 550,000 1,925,522 1,125,000 457,548 1,582,548 1.22
2008 8,362,319 6,312,316 350,000 2,400,003 1,470,000 710,515 2,180,515 1.10
2009 9,291,021 6,940,378 350,000 2,700,643 1,650,000 998,986 2,648,986 1.02
2010 10,383,153 6,627,269 817,667 4,573,551 2,225,000 977,069 3,202,069 1.43
2011 11,080,614 9,698,469 1,840,666 3,222,811 1,965,000 857,474 2,822,474 1.14
2012 14,730,248 9,582,090 1,454,790 6,602,948 5,500,000 382,602 6,382,602 1.03
2013 17,375,336 9,403,818 550,000 8,521,518 2,315,000 726,360 3,041,360 2.80
2014 19,191,243 11,520,824 1,650,000 8,720,419 4,520,000 717,507 5,237,507 1.66
2015 19,956,729 10,920,830 1,050,000 10,085,899 2,295,000 838,360 3,133,360 3.22

(1) Excludes depreciation

(2) Permanent financing only
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

unaudited
(2} (2)
(2) Per Education
Annuzal Capita 3) Levels in Years

¢} Personal Personal  Median of Formal School Unemployment
Year Population Income Income Age Schooling Enrollment Rate
2006 36,567 $ 989,905,257 § 27,071 35.0 13.16 7,039 2.59%
2007 36,567 1,021,426,011 27,933 35.0 13.16 6,932 3.2%
2008 36,567 1,075,325,769 29.407 35.0 13.47 7,100 2.9%
2009 36,567 1,130,541,939 30,917 35.0 13.16 7,233 2.9%
2010 40,888 1,330,168,416 32,532 35.0 13.16 7,503 2.9%
2011 40,888 1,403,235,272 34,319 332 13.47 7,424 1.7%
2012 40,388 1,809,375,776 44,252 332 13.47 7,758 3.1%
2013 40,888 1,.934,820,160 47,320 33.8 13.44 7,737 2.3%
2014 40,888 2,015,614,848 49,296 304 13.50 7,783 2.8%
2013 40,888 2,290,709,312 56,024 31.0 13.52 8,192 3.5%

(1) U.S. Census Bureau

(2) Job Services, North Dakota

(3) Minot Area Development Corporation Community Profile

1438



Principal Employers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

unaudited

Employer
Minot Air Force Base
Trinity Health
Minot Public Schools
Minot State University
Cognizant {(ING Minot Service Center)
City of Minot
Marketplace Foeds
Wal-Mart
Kalix (MVAW)
MLT Inc.
Ward County
SRT Communications
Menards
Pumpco
Westlie Motors
Central Trenching
Ryan Family Dealerships-Minot
Cameron Qil
Colter Energy
Pure Energy/FMC Technology Completion Services
Enbridge
First Western Bank
Weatherford
Chotice Hotels International, Inc.
E Telecare Global Solutions
Sykes, Inc.
Miracle Mart
Dakota Boys & Girls Ranch
International Inn
US Post Office
Total

Source: Minot Area Development Corp

2015

2006

%% of Total
City

Employees Rank Employment

12,107
2,790
1,030

453
350
380
327
290
309
243
227
205
150
173
170
164
200
150
140

80
110
130
110

20,328

59.56%
13.72%
5.07%
223%
1.72%
1.87%
1.61%
1.43%
1.52%
1.20%
1.12%
1.01%
0.93%
0.85%
0.84%
0.81%
0.98%
0.74%
0.69%
0.39%
0.54%
0.64%
0.54%

100.00%

% of Total
City

Employees Rank Employment

5,896
2,709
1,300
549
750
289
217
350
526
300
220
213
185

453
300
300
394
184
165
130
15,430

Above information was all that was available on the MADC website
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12
10

18
19
20

38.21%
17.56%
8.43%
3.56%
4.86%
1.87%
1.41%
227%
3.41%
1.94%
1.43%
1.38%
1.20%

2.94%
1.94%
1.94%
2.55%
1.19%
1.07%
0.84%

100.00%



City of Minot, North Dakota

Full-time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function (1)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

unaudited
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Function
General government 31 31 31 33 33 33 38 4484 4834 5584
Public safety
Police
Officers 63 64 64 63 67 69 70 75.00 79.00  83.00
Civilians 20 20 20 20 20 20 22 2500 2500 26.00
Fire
Firefighters and officers 49 49 49 49 49 50 47 5000 5000 56.00
Civilians I I I I ! 1 1 2.00 2.00 2.00
Highways and streets
Engineering 9 9 9 9 9 10 I 12,00 12.00  14.00
Maintenance 35 36 36 36 36 38 35 3668 36.68 39.68
Culture and recreation 24 25 25 24 24 24 24 2500 2500  25.00
Airport 13 13 13 13 tl 12 16 1800 18.00 1850
Cemetery 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4.21] 4.2] 421
Parking authority 1 1 I 1 I 1 1 1.00 1.00 -
Sanitation 20 20 20 22 22 22 23 2715 30.15 0 3147
Water and sewer 39 39 39 39 39 38 41 42.62 48.62 4930
Total 308 31t 311 313 305 321 332 363.50 380.00 405.00

(1) Budgeted and appropriated positions are shown,

Data obtained from City Clerk's Office - Annual Budget
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City of Minot, North Dakota

Capital Asset Statistics by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years*®

unaudited
2006 2007 2008 2009 2018 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
FUNCTION
General governiment
Public works building H [ 1 I 1 H 2 2 2 2
Public safety
Police
Stations t l 1 I ] H 1 1 H 1
Patrol units 33 3t 31 3t 31 33 35 36 40 4]
Fire
Stations 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Highways and streets
Streets (square miles) 16,170 16.395 16.73 17.31 18.78 1972 2514 27.32 2736 2748
Street lights 2273 2311 2,375 2,504 2672 2,604 897 3229 3400 3603
Traffic signals 44 30 50 50 51 5t 52 53 53 53
Culture and recreation
Parks H l 1 1 ] i 1 2 2 2
Libraries i 1 1 | | H 1 1 1 1
Ball diamonds 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 i6
Tennis courts 12 12 10 10 10 10 10 2 2 2
Indoor tennis center f l 1 i 1 H 1 | 1 !
Sanitation
Collection trucks 7 8 8 8 8 8 8 g 9 9
Water
Water treatment plant i H 1 | | 1 1 1 1 1
Water mains (mites-estimated) 160 210 210 210 245 269 292 302 315 3229
Maximum daily capacity (millions of gallons) 13.13 12.91 11.96 10.56 .93 8.2 il.5 10.95 1.3 il3

Sources: Various city departments
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{CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to the
Passenger Facility Charge Program and Internal Control over Compliance

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Minot, North Dakota

Report on Compliance

We have audited the compiiance of the City of Minot, North Dakota Airport, with the compliance
requirements described in the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies (Guide), issued
by the Federal Aviation Administration for its Passenger Facility Charge Program for the year ended
December 31, 2013,

Management’s Responsibility
Compliance with the requirements of laws and regulations applicable to its Passenger Facility Charge
Program is the responsibility of the City of Minot, North Dakota Afrport’s, management.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the City of Minot, North Dakota Airport’s, compliance
based on our audit. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the
Guide. Those standards and the Guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on the Passenger Facility Charge Program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Minot, North Dakota Airport’s, compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination of the City of Minot, North Dakota Airport’s, compliance with those
requirements.

Opinion
In our opinion, the City of Minot, North Dakota Airport, complied, in all material respects, with the

requirements referred to above that are applicable to its Passenger Facility Charge Program for the year
ended December 31, 2015.
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance

The management of the City of Minot, North Dakota Airport, is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws and regulations
applicable to the Passenger Facility Charge Program. In planning and performing our audit, we
considered the City of Minot, North Dakota Airport’s internal control over compliance with requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on the Passenger Facility Charge Program in order to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Minot, North Dakota
Airport’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the
Guide on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a compliance requirement will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of the Guide that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

QOur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, However, material weaknesses may exist
that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for
any other purpose.

é"’@ L7

Fargo, North Dakota
April 20, 2016
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CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Minot, North Dakota

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Minot, North Dakota as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated April 20, 2016.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combinaticn
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not yet been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Govermmnent Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compiiance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

CZ—M L7

Fargo, North Dakota
April 20, 2016
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CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; Report on
Internal Control Over Compiiance Required by the Uniform Guidance

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Minot, North Dakota

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Minot, North Dakota’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect
on each of the City’s major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2015. The City’s major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance for each of the City’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the andit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a divect and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect of each of its major Federal programs for the year ended
December 31, 2015.
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a compliance requirement will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance
is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist
that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

é@/&é’% Le7?

Fargo, North Dakota
April 20, 2016

158



City of Minot, North Dakota

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Fedezal GramtorT'ass-Through
Granmor/Sropram or Cluster Tide

Depagiment of Commecee
Pasged throngh N2 Departinent af Continerce,
Disision of Commintity Services
Lconomic Adustment Assistance
Eeononiie Adjustnent Assistame

Total Depariment of Contmeree

Depastment of Pefease
North Dakota Envirotmutal Difrastreciure

Depariment ol 1lousing aed Urban Development
North Dakota Environmental Infrastreciuse
Passed throwgh ND Depariment of Cammerce,

Ditision of Community Serviees
Cammuity [inck Development Granis
tlurricance Sandy Commwnily Development
Biock Granl Disaster Recovery Grants
Pussed throngh ND Deportnent of Comenerce,
Division of Comannity Senives

1urricane Samly Commanily Development
Block Granl Disaster Recovery Grants

Total CFIXA #14.269

Totl Department of Housiag and Lirban Development

[§] fgg
Passed through NI Deparimeni of Health
Viglmee Against Wonnest Formula Grants
Virkmee Against Women Formula Grants
Tonal CIFIA #16,588
Bullelproof Vest Parinership Program

Public Safcty Parinership und Commany Policing Graats
Publis Safcly Parmership and Conmanity Policing Grants

Total CELA #16.710
Passed throwgh NI Atomey General’s Office
Lidward Byrae Memarial Juslice
Assistunee Grant Program

Total Department af Justice

Federal
CIEDA

Number

11307

11307

12118

14218

14.269

165858
14,585

16607

G670
16710

16,738

Pagsed-
Pass-through Enlaty Through o
ldenlyfying Numbee Lixpeiwd Subrecipicnts
05-79-05271 5 35078 5 31900
3.132.828 LURE
5.367.906
354072
11,786,032
1,239,966 6000
§ 15.550.989
Ba33.DS-38.0001 1,855,203 30.000
17.406.192
30,432.240
Glaale4 33,433
412326 11,201
44,629
5403
2014-121-BX-0508 9,597
2015-1)-8X-0382 3,004
17,6031
WIS - 123815 4,450 14950
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City of Minot, North Dakota

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2015

Lederal Passed-
Federal Gramor/Pass-Through CFDA Pass-rough oty Through to
GrantorMrogram o Clustee Tide Numbee Tdenniyving Number Lixpenditures Subsecagicnty
Awport [provenent fzogram LR LY 11615473
Pagsed throngh NOD Department of Transportation
Toremula Grants for Rural Arcas Captal 20 500 38140854 and 3B {4074 415075
Foyrnulu Grants for Rurat Arces 20.5u% 3BI415001 and 35315150% 446,965
Tormala Cirants for Rural Arcas W56 18140858 154,638
Alcchol Impaired Driving
Lountermeasures Incentive Grants | * 20601 PLSPLID1510-02-12 14,536
Alcohol Jmpaired Driving,
Connternweasures Incentive Grants | * 2061 THISFLL1S10-02-60 4,269
Nutipnal Proeny Safety Programs * 20616 PHSPDISLL02.47 4173
Natignal Prsoety Safely Proprams * 20616 PHSPID1610.02-15 2100
National Mnority Safety Programs - 204616 PHSPOT1605-05013 1126
National Prioeity Safety Programs 20616 PHSPOP1505-08-13 S22
Totul CFDA B20.60L 7 H20.616 Cluswer 3L6ls
“Towl Depanment of Transportaton 12,713.767
Brownsfields Tesining, Rescarch, and Technical
Assistance Grants and Cooperabive Agrecnients 66814 96826801 107,218
Brownsfickls Asscssment and
Cleanup Cooperative Agreements G6 B8 968256801 96.622
Total Environmental Protection Agency 203,540
n Il Y 9
Pugsed dirough ND Depariment of Emeegeney Services
Disayter Girants - Public Assistance
sProsidenually Declared Disastess) ST036 [TEMA-IS81-DEND DRIC N
Disaster Grants ~ Public Assisiage
tP'residennally Declared Disastors) 97.036 FEMA-1T1-DR-ND 120 (R K]
Disaster Grams - Public Assistance
residentially Declared Disastess) 97.035 PA-DY-ND-4128-PW-00 152 and B0183 1394645
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance
{Presidenually Deglared Disasters) 97036 PA-03-ND-4 [90-FW-DR36t0) 29492
Disaster Grams - Fublic Asslance
iPresidentially Doclared Lisasters) $7.036 PA-DB-NI-A 1 90-PW-003 10y 130.568
Disaster Grants - Public Assistasee
{I'residentially Deglared Disasters) 97.036 PA-OR-N1-4 1 90-PW-003%00) 104,808
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2015

Federal Girantor/Pass-Through
Grantor/rogram or Cluster Title

Depanment of omeland Sceurity fcontinued)
Disaster Crans - Puhlic Assisiance
(Presidenunlly Declured Disusters)

ilazard Mitgation Granl
Hazard Muigation Grant
Hazard Mitigaion Grant
ilasard Mitgaton Grant

Homeland Security Grant Program
Homeland Security Gram Program
Hameland Seenruy Grant Program
Homeland Seeurily Gramt Peagram
Homeland Securily Grant Program
Homeland Secunty Grant Program
Homeland Security Girant Program
Horoelane Seearity Grant Program
Honwlmd Seeanty Grant Prograny
Homeland Sevarity Gray Progaim

ederal Passed-
CEFDA Pass-through Enthy Through to
Number Ldentifving Number Lxpendiwres Subreeynens
57036 PAS-ND-I190-PW-00IN0) 54,086
Tidal CFA B47.036 813052
97039 ND-DR-198}-38-R 189,224
97.639 N-DR-1981-391 1,288,093
874039 ND-DR-1981-27R 26,207
$7.039 ND-DR-198 1s268 22318le
Tewal 1A £97.039 3735400
Y067 ADTTI-001-2013-RQ 2,828
BTU67 AOTTL-002-2013-RLE 8.193
97.667 ADTTL02-243-RY 17.996
57.067 ALTTL-001-2014-RQ 448
97.667 AUTTILO2 2 LR 40,050
97.067 AOTEI-001-2012-RQ 1,329
HI007 AUTSI-001-2013-RQ 4]
B1.067 ALT51-001-2014-RQ 375
$7.067 ALLTL-00:-2014-RQ 102,10
Y7067 AL7IU01-2015-RT 3944
Total CFIDA $97.067 198.973

Total Depasument of Homeland Sccurity
Total Federal Finaneial Assistance

* Denoles & program cluster

161

4. 747425

5 54,101,933 S 166,850




City of Minot, North Dakota
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2015

Note A - Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the City of
Minot, North Dakota, and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. The City received federal
awards both directly from federal agencies and indirectly throngh pass-through entities. Federal financial
assistance provided to a subrecipient is treated as an expenditure when it is paid to the subrecipient.

Note B - Significant Accounting Policies

Governmental and proprietary fund types account for the City’s federal grant activity. Expenditures in the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards are recognized on the modified accrual basis — when they become a
demand on current available financial resources. The City’s summary of significant accounting policies is

presented in Note 1 in the City’s basic financial statements.

The City has not elected to use the 10% de minimis cost rate.
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City of Minot, North Dakota

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Section I — Summary of Auditor’s Results

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditor's report issued
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified

Significant deficiencies identified not
considered to be material weaknesses

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

FEDERAL AWARDS

Internal control over major programi:
Material weaknesses identified
Significant deficiencies identified not

considered to be material weaknesses

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Uniform Guidance 2 CFR 200.516:

Identification of major programs:

Name of Federal Program

Economic Adjustment Assistance
Hurricane Sandy Community Development
Block Grant Disaster Recovery Grants

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A
and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?
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Unmodified

No

None Reported

No

No

None Reported

Unmodified

CFDA Number

11.307

14.269

$ 1,623,058

No



City of Minot, North Dakota

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2015

Section IT - Financial Statement Findings

None reported.

Section ITI - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.
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City of Minot, North Dakota
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
Year December 31, 2015

No federal findings reported in the prior year

165



